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Net Income per Share from  
Continuing Operations
(dollars)

	� NOTE: All periods presented reflect the classification of the marine products division’s financial results as discontinued operations.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
(dollars and shares in thousands, except per-share data) 2009 2008 % Change

For the Year
Sales $ 1,565,887 $ 1,948,254 –20%

Operating income 164,970 182,799 –10%

Net income from continuing operations 101,017 117,395 –14%
Percent of sales 6.5% 6.0%

Per Share
Net income from continuing operations (diluted) $ 3.05 $ 3.50 –13%

Dividends paid 1.56 1.52 3%
Average shares outstanding (diluted) 33,074 33,564 –1%

Financial Position
Total assets $ 763,653 $ 751,148 2%
Stockholders’ equity 204,541 137,027 49%

Other Information
Property and equipment (net) $ 194,416 $ 215,637 –10%

Capital expenditures 43,932 76,575 –43%

Depreciation and amortization 64,594 66,112 –2%

Borrowings under credit agreement 200,000 200,000 0%

Total credit facility 450,000 450,000 0%

Return on average shareholder equity 59% 76%    

Average dividend yield 4.3% 4.0%

Number of employees — average 3,000 3,300 –9%
Stock price at year end 43.63 28.65 52%
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Purchase of Property and Equipment  
for Continuing Operations

Other Investor Information

Stock Exchange
Shares of common stock of Polaris 
Industries Inc. trade on the New 
York Stock Exchange under the 
symbol PII.

Independent Auditors
Ernst & Young LLP
Minneapolis, MN

Transfer Agent and Registrar
Communications concerning transfer 
requirements, address changes, dividends and 
lost certificates, as well as requests  
for Dividend Reinvestment Plan enrollment 
information, should be addressed to:

�Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. 
Shareowner Services 
161 North Concord Exchange 
South St. Paul, MN 55075-1139 
1-800-468-9716 
www.wellsfargo.com/ 
com/shareowner_services

Annual Shareholders’ Meeting
The meeting will be held at 9:00 a.m. 
Central Time, April 29, 2010, at the Polaris 
Industries Inc. corporate headquarters, 
2100 Highway 55, Medina, Minnesota. 
The proxy statement will be available on or 
about March 10, 2010. The shareholder-of-
record date is March 1, 2010.

Summary of Trading
For the Years Ended December 31,

2009 2008

Quarter High Low High Low

First $32.76 $14.53 $48.00 $34.96

Second 36.62 21.05 49.84 40.11

Third 44.00 30.31 54.26 37.05

Fourth 49.74 37.33 46.72 19.48

Cash Dividends Declared
Cash dividends are declared quarterly and 
have been paid since 1995. On January 21, 
2010, the quarterly dividend was increased to 
$1.60 per share.

Quarter 2009 2008

First $0.39 $0.38

Second 0.39 0.38

Third 0.39 0.38

Fourth 0.39 0.38

Total $1.56 $1.52

Shareholders of Record
Shareholders of record of the Company’s 
common stock on February 16, 2010,  
were 2,719.

Shareholder Composition

■  Institutions

■  Individuals and Others

■  Officers, Directors 
  and Employees76%

13%
11%

Dividend Reinvestment Plan
Shareholders may automatically reinvest their 
dividends in additional Polaris common stock 
through the Dividend Reinvestment Plan, 
which also provides for purchase of common 
stock with voluntary cash contributions. For 
additional information, please contact Wells 
Fargo Shareowner Services at 1‑800‑468‑9716 
or visit the Wells Fargo Bank website  
at www.wellsfargo.com.

Product Brochures
For product brochures, write or call:

�Polaris Industries Inc. 
2100 Highway 55 
Medina, MN 55340 
1-800-POLARIS (1-800-765-2747)

Internet Access
To view the Company’s annual report 
and financial information, products and 
specifications, press releases and dealer 
locations, access Polaris on the Internet at:

www.polarisindustries.com 
www.victory-usa.com

Investor Relations
Security analysts and investment professionals 
should direct their business-related 
inquiries to:

�Richard Edwards 
Director of Investor Relations 
Polaris Industries Inc. 
2100 Highway 55 
Medina, MN 55340 
763-513-3477 
richard.edwards@polarisind.com

Research Coverage as of February 2010
BMO Capital Markets Corp. 
Citigroup 
Craig-Hallum Partners 
KeyBanc Capital Markets Inc. 
Raymond James & Associates 
RBC Capital Markets 
Robert W. Baird & Co. 
Rochdale Securities 
Sidoti & Company 
Wells Fargo Securities 
Wedbush Morgan Securities

Stock-Split History
August 1993	 2 for 1 
October 1995	 3 for 2 
March 2004	 2 for 1

Certifications
The Company’s chief executive officer 
submitted the annual CEO certification to the 
New York Stock Exchange, certifying that he 
is not aware of any violation by the Company 
of the New York Stock Exchange’s corporate 
governance listing standards.

The chief executive officer and chief 
financial officer certifications required by 
section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 
have been filed as exhibits to the Form 10‑K 
included with this report.

Polaris at a Glance

Products
Polaris Industries Inc. (Polaris) designs, manufactures and markets innovative, high-quality, 
high-performance motorized products for recreation and utility use. Our product lines consist of all-
terrain recreational and utility off-road vehicles (ORVs); snowmobiles; on-road vehicles including 
motorcycles and low-emission vehicles; and related parts, garments and accessories (PG&A).

Distribution
Polaris products are sold through a network of approximately 1,500 independent dealers in North 
America, and nine subsidiaries and 43 distributors in approximately 130 countries outside of 
North America.

Financial Services
Polaris has a 50/50 joint venture with GE to provide floor plan financing to Polaris dealers in the 
United States. Polaris also has arrangements with HSBC, GE and Sheffield to provide revolving and 
installment consumer and commercial credit to customers of Polaris dealers for Polaris products. 
Polaris has no credit, interest rate or funding risk under the retail credit contracts with HSBC, 
GE or Sheffield. Polaris also provides extended service contracts to consumers, and certain other 
insurance contracts to dealers and consumers through various third-party suppliers.

Manufacturing/Research & Development
Polaris designs, tests and assembles its products at its manufacturing and research and 
development facilities in the upper Midwest United States. The Company prides itself on being 
close to the customer, and extremely flexible and efficient in designing, testing and manufacturing 
Polaris products.

New-product introductions are the lifeblood of the Company. Polaris has a state-of-the-art 
Product Development Center in Wyoming, Minnesota, which drives the introduction of high-
quality products for recreation, utility, industrial and military use.

Gross Margin Percentage  
from Continuing Operations

Cash Flow Provided  
from Continuing Operations(1)

Return on Average  
Shareholder Equity from Continuing 
Operations

Dividends per Share
In January 2010, Polaris announced a 3% increase in 
the regular quarterly dividend, the 15th consecutive 
year of increases, to $1.60 per share.

Polaris Shares Repurchased
Since inception of the share repurchase program in 1996, approximately 33.7 million shares  
have been repurchased at an average price of $32.66 per share.

Sales
(dollars in millions)
Year ended December 31

$
1,0

2
1 

$
1,19

5
 

$
1,3

0
6

 

07 08 09

Worldwide ORV Industry*
(units in thousands)
*�Side-by-side data is Polaris estimate

1,2
5

0
 9

5
5

 

07 08 09

■  Side-By-Sides
■  ATVs

7
3

4
 

Sales
(dollars in millions)
Year ended December 31

$
17

9
 

$
17

9
 

$
2

0
5

 

07 08 09

16
0

 

14
7

 

16
4

 

07 0908

Worldwide Industry
(units in thousands)
Season ended March 31

65%

12%
3%

20%
�  Off-Road Vehicles
�  Snowmobiles
�  On-Road Vehicles
�  PG&A

Percentage of  Sales by Product Line

■  United States
■  Canada
■  International

69%

15%

16%

Percentage of  Sales by Geographic Area

Polaris PG&A  
Product Mix by 
Business Line

67%

20%

5%
8%

■ Off-Road 
 Vehicles
■ Snowmobiles
■ On-Road 
 Vehicles
■ General
 Merchandise

Sales
(dollars in millions)
Year ended 
December 31

$
2

9
3

 

$
3

13
 

07 09

$
3

4
4

 

08

2
78

 

18
4

 

2
5

4
 

07 08 09

Sales
(dollars in millions)
Year ended 
December 31

$
113

 

$
5

3
 

$
9

4
 

07 08 09

Scorecard

(dollars in millions)(dollars in millions, before changes in current  
operating items and deferred taxes)

Forward-looking statements made herein involve certain important factors that could change and cause actual results to differ materially from those anticipated. See “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operation” under Part II, Item 7 in the Form 10-K included with this report.

(dollars) (shares in millions) (dollars in millions)

(1) A reconciliation of the Company’s calculation of Cash Flow Provided to the most directly comparable cash flow measure, as required by Regulation G, appears under Part II, Item 6 in the Company’s Form 10-K.

Off-Road Vehicles Snowmobiles On-Road Vehicles PG&A

U.S. Industry 
Motorcycles
(units in thousands)
Cruisers and Touring  
(1400cc and above)

LEV Opportunity 
300,000 Units

People Transport
Light Duty
Government
Commercial
Stealth Hunters
Multi-acre Homeowners

Neighborhood
Vehicles 

2009 Summary	
• �Gained market share in  

ATVs & SxS
• �Launched over 25 new products
• �Successfully merged ATVs and 

SxS business — realized synergies

Bobcat Strategic Alliance
• �On track to source Bobcat utility 

vehicles in second half of 2010
• �Co-developed product planned for 

the future

Military
• �Strong growth continued
• �Expanded margins
• �Expanded customer base  
• �Expand product line in 2010

2009 Summary	
• �Industry retail sales very weak
• �Market share gains in International 

& Canada 
• �Industry-leading quality —  

6 years straight
• �Q4 retail sales up significantly
• �Cross Roads™/Cross Country™ 

well received

Low-Emission Vehicle (LEV):
• �Launched first electric low-

emission vehicle
• �Polaris BREEZE™ well received
• �Signed 10 dealers to-date
• �Learning the business

2009 Summary	
• �RUSH™ named Snowmobile of the Year
• �Industry weaker than expected
• �Dealer & factory inventory at acceptable levels
• �Modest market share decline

2010 Objective
• �Industry-leading customer satisfaction
• �Flawless new product launch in March 
• �Grow market share
• �Continue to improve profitability

2009 Summary	
• �Sales outperformed company
• �Now 20% of Polaris sales
• �Expanded margins
• �Remains highest-margin product line
• �Productivity improved 15% in 2009
• �200+ model year 2010 introduction of new accessories 

2010 Objective
• Grow sales
• More focus on installed base 
• Continue innovation focus
• Grow PG&A adjacencies 

2010 Objective
• �Build on retail sales momentum
• �Grow from adjacencies, international and Bobcat
• �Successfully launch new products — RANGER RZR® 4 + others
• �Gain market share again

2010 Objective
• �Create demand in North America — grow market share
• �Realign cost structure 
• �Expand globally
• �Improve profitability
• �Continue aggressive expansion of LEV
	 » Expand product line	 » Grow profitability
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for Continuing Operations

Other Investor Information

Stock Exchange
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Industries Inc. trade on the New 
York Stock Exchange under the 
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Independent Auditors
Ernst & Young LLP
Minneapolis, MN

Transfer Agent and Registrar
Communications concerning transfer 
requirements, address changes, dividends and 
lost certificates, as well as requests  
for Dividend Reinvestment Plan enrollment 
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Shareowner Services 
161 North Concord Exchange 
South St. Paul, MN 55075-1139 
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com/shareowner_services

Annual Shareholders’ Meeting
The meeting will be held at 9:00 a.m. 
Central Time, April 29, 2010, at the Polaris 
Industries Inc. corporate headquarters, 
2100 Highway 55, Medina, Minnesota. 
The proxy statement will be available on or 
about March 10, 2010. The shareholder-of-
record date is March 1, 2010.

Summary of Trading
For the Years Ended December 31,
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Quarter High Low High Low

First $32.76 $14.53 $48.00 $34.96

Second 36.62 21.05 49.84 40.11

Third 44.00 30.31 54.26 37.05

Fourth 49.74 37.33 46.72 19.48

Cash Dividends Declared
Cash dividends are declared quarterly and 
have been paid since 1995. On January 21, 
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First $0.39 $0.38

Second 0.39 0.38
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Fourth 0.39 0.38

Total $1.56 $1.52

Shareholders of Record
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were 2,719.
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■  Institutions

■  Individuals and Others

■  Officers, Directors 
  and Employees76%

13%
11%

Dividend Reinvestment Plan
Shareholders may automatically reinvest their 
dividends in additional Polaris common stock 
through the Dividend Reinvestment Plan, 
which also provides for purchase of common 
stock with voluntary cash contributions. For 
additional information, please contact Wells 
Fargo Shareowner Services at 1‑800‑468‑9716 
or visit the Wells Fargo Bank website  
at www.wellsfargo.com.

Product Brochures
For product brochures, write or call:

�Polaris Industries Inc. 
2100 Highway 55 
Medina, MN 55340 
1-800-POLARIS (1-800-765-2747)

Internet Access
To view the Company’s annual report 
and financial information, products and 
specifications, press releases and dealer 
locations, access Polaris on the Internet at:

www.polarisindustries.com 
www.victory-usa.com

Investor Relations
Security analysts and investment professionals 
should direct their business-related 
inquiries to:

�Richard Edwards 
Director of Investor Relations 
Polaris Industries Inc. 
2100 Highway 55 
Medina, MN 55340 
763-513-3477 
richard.edwards@polarisind.com

Research Coverage as of February 2010
BMO Capital Markets Corp. 
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Craig-Hallum Partners 
KeyBanc Capital Markets Inc. 
Raymond James & Associates 
RBC Capital Markets 
Robert W. Baird & Co. 
Rochdale Securities 
Sidoti & Company 
Wells Fargo Securities 
Wedbush Morgan Securities

Stock-Split History
August 1993	 2 for 1 
October 1995	 3 for 2 
March 2004	 2 for 1

Certifications
The Company’s chief executive officer 
submitted the annual CEO certification to the 
New York Stock Exchange, certifying that he 
is not aware of any violation by the Company 
of the New York Stock Exchange’s corporate 
governance listing standards.

The chief executive officer and chief 
financial officer certifications required by 
section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 
have been filed as exhibits to the Form 10‑K 
included with this report.

Polaris at a Glance

Products
Polaris Industries Inc. (Polaris) designs, manufactures and markets innovative, high-quality, 
high-performance motorized products for recreation and utility use. Our product lines consist of all-
terrain recreational and utility off-road vehicles (ORVs); snowmobiles; on-road vehicles including 
motorcycles and low-emission vehicles; and related parts, garments and accessories (PG&A).

Distribution
Polaris products are sold through a network of approximately 1,500 independent dealers in North 
America, and nine subsidiaries and 43 distributors in approximately 130 countries outside of 
North America.

Financial Services
Polaris has a 50/50 joint venture with GE to provide floor plan financing to Polaris dealers in the 
United States. Polaris also has arrangements with HSBC, GE and Sheffield to provide revolving and 
installment consumer and commercial credit to customers of Polaris dealers for Polaris products. 
Polaris has no credit, interest rate or funding risk under the retail credit contracts with HSBC, 
GE or Sheffield. Polaris also provides extended service contracts to consumers, and certain other 
insurance contracts to dealers and consumers through various third-party suppliers.

Manufacturing/Research & Development
Polaris designs, tests and assembles its products at its manufacturing and research and 
development facilities in the upper Midwest United States. The Company prides itself on being 
close to the customer, and extremely flexible and efficient in designing, testing and manufacturing 
Polaris products.

New-product introductions are the lifeblood of the Company. Polaris has a state-of-the-art 
Product Development Center in Wyoming, Minnesota, which drives the introduction of high-
quality products for recreation, utility, industrial and military use.
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Shareholder Equity from Continuing 
Operations

Dividends per Share
In January 2010, Polaris announced a 3% increase in 
the regular quarterly dividend, the 15th consecutive 
year of increases, to $1.60 per share.

Polaris Shares Repurchased
Since inception of the share repurchase program in 1996, approximately 33.7 million shares  
have been repurchased at an average price of $32.66 per share.
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Forward-looking statements made herein involve certain important factors that could change and cause actual results to differ materially from those anticipated. See “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operation” under Part II, Item 7 in the Form 10-K included with this report.
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2009 Summary	
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• �Successfully merged ATVs and 

SxS business — realized synergies

Bobcat Strategic Alliance
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well received

Low-Emission Vehicle (LEV):
• �Launched first electric low-

emission vehicle
• �Polaris BREEZE™ well received
• �Signed 10 dealers to-date
• �Learning the business

2009 Summary	
• �RUSH™ named Snowmobile of the Year
• �Industry weaker than expected
• �Dealer & factory inventory at acceptable levels
• �Modest market share decline

2010 Objective
• �Industry-leading customer satisfaction
• �Flawless new product launch in March 
• �Grow market share
• �Continue to improve profitability

2009 Summary	
• �Sales outperformed company
• �Now 20% of Polaris sales
• �Expanded margins
• �Remains highest-margin product line
• �Productivity improved 15% in 2009
• �200+ model year 2010 introduction of new accessories 

2010 Objective
• Grow sales
• More focus on installed base 
• Continue innovation focus
• Grow PG&A adjacencies 

2010 Objective
• �Build on retail sales momentum
• �Grow from adjacencies, international and Bobcat
• �Successfully launch new products — RANGER RZR® 4 + others
• �Gain market share again

2010 Objective
• �Create demand in North America — grow market share
• �Realign cost structure 
• �Expand globally
• �Improve profitability
• �Continue aggressive expansion of LEV
	 » Expand product line	 » Grow profitability
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UNWAVERING HEART AND UNFAILING 

PERFORMANCE. FIERCELY LOYAL CUSTOMERS 

AND IMPASSIONED EMPLOYEES. THERE’S NO 

QUIT IN ANY OF US. IMPOSING OBSTACLES AND 

ROUGH ROADS ARE THERE TO BE CONQUERED. 

THE LANDSCAPE IN 2009 WAS TREACHEROUS. 

BUT THAT DIDN’T STOP US. FROM DRIVING 

MARGINS, DESIGNING NEW PRODUCTS. 

INVESTING IN OUR FUTURE. EXCUSES 

WERE NEITHER MADE NOR ACCEPTED. 

WE CONTINUED OUR STRATEGIC PUSH. 

PROMISING NEW MARKETS WERE OPENED. 

WE FORMED INTELLIGENT ALLIANCES. WE 

RELENTLESSLY DROVE OPTIMIZATION IN 

OUR ENGINEERING, MANUFACTURING AND 

SALES. MOST IMPORTANTLY, WE STAYED 

ON A DETERMINED PATH. AND THE STRONG 

POLARIS BRAND EVOLVED. FEARLESSLY. 
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2010 Polaris RANGER RZR® 4 Robby Gordon Edition Side-By-Side Vehicle. / Polaris’ first four-seat sport side-by-side. 
Featuring seating for four, on-demand all-wheel drive, 60 mph top speed and 11.5 inches of ground clearance.
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dear fellow shareholders

Scott W. Wine
Chief Executive Officer (left)

Bennett J. Morgan 
President and Chief Operating 

Officer (right)

The ability to perform in tough conditions is a 
hallmark of Polaris products. In 2009, we showed 
that the Polaris business model is also capable of 
weathering tough economic conditions. We were 
able to maintain our history of consistent financial 
and business performance despite unprecedented 
declines and uncertainty in our industry and the 
economic climate across the world. This is the kind 
of performance that our shareholders and other 
stakeholders have come to expect from Polaris, and we 
did it while still making investments in our future. 

As we anticipated, the markets in which we oper-
ate declined significantly in 2009, and Polaris saw 
a drop in sales and earnings as well. Polaris sales 
declined 20 percent to $1,565.9 million while net 
income was down 14 percent to $101.0 million. The 
important story here is what we were able to achieve 
in year-over-year improvements in the face of these 
steep declines:

• �Gross profit margins expanded 220 basis points 
to 25.1 percent, supporting a strong 50-basis-
point improvement in net income margin. 

• �Cash flow of $193.2 million was up 10 percent, 
yielding cash flow as a percent of net income of 
191 percent, up 41 percent, both of which speak 
to the quality of earnings in a tough year. 

• �Factory inventory declined 19 percent — our 
lowest level since 2004.

• �Polaris dealer inventories in North America 
declined 24 percent — our lowest levels 
since 1999.

• �Paid a dividend of $1.56 per share, up 3 percent.
• �Return on shareholder equity was strong at 

59 percent. 
• �Achieved significant market share gains in 

off-road vehicles (ORV), our largest and most 
profitable business, in both North America 
and Europe. 

We did have some disappointments in 2009. 
In addition to the overall industry weakness and 
corresponding impact on our retail sales, our 
Victory motorcycle business did not meet its retail 
sales or profitability objectives in 2009. We also did 
not meet all of our quality objectives, which cost us 
additional warranty expense. We have launched 
several programs that should accelerate our progress 
toward our goals of being the industry leader in 

quality in each of our businesses and improving the 
performance of our motorcycle business.

There was not just one thing that enabled our 
successes in 2009. It was a combination of careful 
planning, a highly disciplined business model and 
process, a strong, experienced team and continued 
focus on our vision and strategy, which focus on five 
key themes: Best in Powersports Plus; Global Market 
Leadership; Growth through Adjacencies; Operational 
Excellence; and Strong Financial Performance. 

Best in Powersports Plus. Our commitment to 
product innovation helped us gain ORV market share 
in a year when many of our competitors retreated 
from investment in new-product introductions. 
We diversified our product portfolio by launching 
34 new products including the RANGER EV, the 
first electric side-by-side vehicle in the industry, and 
the RANGER® 400, our first mid-sized side-by-side 
vehicle. In January 2010, we launched our first four-
seat recreational side-by-side vehicle, the RANGER 
RZR® 4, Robby Gordon Edition. These new vehicles 
will open profitable new markets for us including the 
military market, which is one of our key growth objec-
tives. We also introduced several value-priced ATVs 
and a touring model, two new touring motorcycles and 
a new snowmobile, the RUSH,™ which was named 
2010 Snowmobile of the Year by SnowGoer magazine.

Global Market Leadership.  We see many 
opportunities to expand the percentage of Polaris 
sales that come from outside of  North America, which 
was 16 percent in 2009. We put the infrastructure 
in place to create a new European headquarters, 
reengaged our distributor in Brazil and entered into 
a distribution agreement in China for ORVs. We 
added resources and staff that will give us additional 
capacity and capability to successfully execute on 
organic growth, business partnerships and strategic 
acquisitions in the international markets.

Growth through Adjacencies.  In 2009, we 
continued to expand outside of powersports with 
the addition of a low-emission electric vehicle, 
the Polaris Breeze™ which is popular in planned 
communities. Our military business continued to 
grow, and in 2010 we will begin shipments of the 
private-label work vehicle through our strategic 
alliance with Bobcat. We also hired an experienced 
business development executive to lead our merger 
and acquisition activities who will supplement our 
strong focus on innovation and organic growth.
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2010 Polaris RZR® Side-By-Side and Sportsman XP. 

Operational Excellence. The focus we have had on operational 
excellence across the enterprise for the past several years paid 
substantial dividends in 2009. We saw significant cost reductions 
in our engineering and manufacturing functions and substantial 
efficiency improvements in our dealer ordering processes. Our 
flexible manufacturing platform gave us the agility to scale up and 
down to meet the fast-changing market demands. All this allowed 
us to minimize inventories, shorten lead times and dramatically 
reduce our cost of goods sold. The savings and efficiencies we 
achieved are not just short-term fixes. We did not cut corners — 
we found smarter, faster, better ways to design, manufacture and 
deliver our products. These are long-term, sustainable operational 
improvements that will have a lasting impact on our profitability. 

Strong Financial Performance. Profitable growth is our objec-
tive, and while we were unable to grow sales in 2009, we did achieve 
net income margin expansion, cash flow increases, reduction in  
factory and dealer inventories and an increase in shareholder 
return on equity. 

Global economic and industry conditions made 2009 a challeng-
ing year for this great company. The true test of a business strategy 
and team is their ability to perform even when conditions are tough. 
That is why we are pleased that even with declining sales volumes, 

we improved our business fundamentals. In 2010, it is anticipated 
that global markets will remain tough, but we expect to see further 
margin expansion and a return to growth in both sales and earnings. 
Our ORV business is poised to outperform the market again, and 
initiatives in operational excellence, international expansion and 
business development should give us additional traction. We also 
expect to see the improvements in our Victory business accelerate, 
and we will expand our presence in adjacent markets outside of 
powersports including military, work and low-emission vehicles.

We proved in 2009 that  we perform in tough conditions. We deliv-
ered solid financial performance and made key investments to drive 
future growth. We remain focused on executing our vision and strat-
egy. Together, these elements provide a solid foundation and roadmap 
to continue to improve our performance in 2010 and beyond, and 
deliver increasing value to you, our stakeholders and customers.

Sincerely, 

Scott W. Wine 
Chief Executive Officer

 

Bennett J. Morgan 
President and Chief Operating Officer
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Strong profitability in a year of economic turmoil
A chart hangs on the walls of the conference rooms 
and executive offices at Polaris headquarters. The 
chart details the objectives for the current year, goals 
for the next three to five years and a 10-year vision.

The three-to-five-year vision calls for $3 billion 
in annual sales and 8 percent net income margin. An 
even more forward-looking part of the chart projects 
$5 billion in sales and 10 percent net income margin 
by 2018.

Other companies post similar goals and visions. For 
most of them, the global economy in 2009 delayed — or 
flat-out destroyed — those plans. Near- and long-term 
plans at Polaris, however, remained unchanged despite 
the economic turmoil. And it was no accident.

Several years ago, company leadership foresaw 
changes in the global economy that would require 
fresh thinking. While the company was driving 
sales, generating profit, growing market share and 
strengthening an already powerful brand, it was 
clear that emerging changes in competition and in 
the lives of consumers required careful planning.

Operational Excellence plans were initiated for 
every aspect of the business, including engineering, 
manufacturing, distribution and sales. While many 
companies tried to scramble and cut their way 
through 2009, Polaris deployed carefully conceived 
plans that kept the company profitable and healthy, 
despite a decline in top-line revenue.

Protecting profitability was critical. In addition to 
optimizing engineering, manufacturing, distribution 
and sales, achieving mid- and long-term sales 
objectives requires growth into adjacent lines of 
business — and expansion into new global markets. 

Polaris was able to continue its product development 
and global distribution expansion plans because the 
cash flow required to drive those strategies remained 
uninterrupted and, in fact, expanded.

So, while 2009 showed a decline in top-line sales 
and bottom-line profits, it was actually a year when 
Polaris was able to advance its strategic plan while 
many competitors stood still — or lost ground.

Driving down costs by design
The Operational Excellence initiatives in engi-
neering drove two critical outcomes in 2009 — cost 
improvement in all areas and quality improvement 
in most areas.

From a cost improvement perspective, engineers 
implemented design changes that allowed them to 
use more common components and subsystems 
across multiple Polaris platforms. They leveraged 
commonalities in drivetrains, chassis, electrical 
subsystems, body frames and controls to drive 
significant savings across the portfolio of products. 

Polaris engineering teams reduced cycle time for 
product design by nearly 50 percent and discovered 
new ways to reduce the weight of most vehicles. And 
they found ways to make manufacturing processes 
faster and less labor-intensive, which also had a 
strong impact on costs and margins. 

The skills and tools used for painting, welding and 
assembly are now common across most Polaris plat-
forms. This long-planned, recently deployed strategy 
will become more robust in the coming years and drive 
even deeper cost reductions and quality improve-
ments. It will also help make us faster-to-market with 
new products and more responsive to dealer needs. 

A PLAN, NOT A REACTION
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LEFT AND CENTER: Advanced robotics 
shown here bring new speed, quality and 
efficiency to our manufacturing lines. 
Speed gets products to market faster, and 
precision drives exceptional quality.

RIGHT: The welding process is core to 
the quality and ruggedness of Polaris 
vehicles. Breakthroughs in manufacturing 
technology allow us to deploy robotics 
for simple welding tasks, while tenured 
Polaris craftsmen complete the steps 
that require deep expertise. The goal is 
industry-leading quality.
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Manufacturing gets lean
Dramatic increases in manufacturing productivity 
also accounted for important cost savings and margin 
improvements in 2009. 

The manufacturing optimization strategies we 
deployed — which are based on LEAN principles — 
elevated productivity by approximately 8 percent and 
reduced manufacturing costs by about 25 percent.

Some of the savings were generated by the use 
of common components and the streamlining 
that comes with the construction of common 
base platforms. But a significant amount of the 
productivity improvements and cost savings was 
the result of a new, highly flexible manufacturing 
process. Because of our flexible manufacturing 
process, we are able to operate the plants with much 
lower factory inventory. In 2009, factory inventory 
decreased 19 percent, the lowest level in five years.

Instead of maintaining dedicated production 
lines for specific products, Polaris manufacturing 
teams built a flexible process that allows multiple 
lines to manufacture all products — and react almost 
immediately to changes in demand. Most models 
can be assembled, painted and tested by any line, 
minimizing stockouts for popular models and 
downtime for the production lines.

As orders roll in from dealers, the flexible 
manufacturing lines are able to meet the order 
demand quickly. In addition to saving money in 
manufacturing, this process significantly minimizes 
lead times for dealers — and it allows Polaris 
customers to quickly get the vehicles they desire, 
building strong customer satisfaction.

Dealer operations
The dealer portion of our Operational Excellence 
initiative is called the Maximum Velocity Program, 
or MVP. We introduced this program in 2008 and 
enrolled a select group of dealers. This year, the 
program expanded to about 50 percent of North 
America ORV dealer volume, and our relationships 
with our dealers have significantly improved.

Before the launch of MVP, dealers ordered ORV 
products from Polaris approximately twice each year. 
They carried large inventories, and periodically the 
dealer and Polaris needed to spend additional dollars 
to discount the product at retail. Additionally, many 
times the dealer was carrying a different product 
than what the customer was looking for.

MVP allows dealers to place smaller, more 
customized orders approximately twice each 
month. For customers, this means they can get the 
exact vehicle they want. For dealers, it means less 
inventory and a much healthier financial position. In 
fact, dealer inventories are down 24 percent in North 
America in 2009, the lowest level since 1999.

Strong Polaris dealers make us stronger.
For Polaris, MVP is driving deep and sustained 
savings through the entire supply chain. Component 
costs and supplier inventories are markedly lower. 
Manufacturing processes are moving rapidly toward 
a made-to-order environment. And transportation, 
which is a significant part of Polaris’ overall costs, is 
far more efficient.
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LEFT: Leveraging a common vehicle plat-
form and reengineering our production 
lines for cross-platform flexibility allow 
us to get products to market faster and 
minimize dealer inventories.

CENTER TOP: New advanced injection 
molding systems contribute heavily to 
recent efficiency and quality gains.

CENTER BOTTOM: Automating the most 
tedious portions of our manufacturing 
processes and deploying software-driven 
quality controls are having a deep effect 
on cost, quality and customer satisfac-
tion. Our margins reflect this impact.

RIGHT TOP: Automation is powerful, but 
Polaris craftsmen are still the heart of 
our manufacturing lines.

RIGHT BOTTOM: Every vehicle under–
goes thorough testing before shipment. 
Both quality and satisfaction are at all-
time highs for a majority of our vehicles.
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Off-road vehicles
Polaris extended its global leadership position in 
off-road vehicles with a two-pronged strategy — 
power and value. While sales of off-road vehicles 
contracted during the year, Polaris was able to 
minimize sales declines by capturing market share 
with new products.

The RANGER 800 XP® is built on the successful 
Ranger heritage, but adds a whole new level of power. 
A 15 percent increase in horsepower and a notice-
ably quieter ride made the 800 XP popular with 
dealers and customers. The RANGER 800 CREW® 
featured an entirely new platform and seating for 
six passengers.

The new midsized RANGER 400 brought Polaris 
quality to the market at an affordable price. This 

powerful and agile side-by-side outshines the 
competition with its unmatched ride and a top speed 
of 40 mph. It’s ideal for farming, ranching, hunting 
and recreational  riding.

Polaris also introduced the RANGER EV electric-
powered side-by-side in 2009. This clean and quiet 
vehicle delivers a smooth ride, 25 mph top speed and 
50-mile range with each charge.

Finally, we added several new ATVs including the 
all-new two-up Sportsman Touring ATV models, 
built on the same award-winning chassis as the 
Sportsman XP introduced in 2008. Several other 
ATV models received enhancements including more 
horsepower, redesigned chassis and suspensions for 
better handling, and updated styling.

THE GAP WIDENS

NEW-PRODUCT INTRODUCTIONS STRENGTHEN OUR COMPETITIVE ADVANTAGE

POLARIS ENJOYS A STRONG COMPETITIVE ADVANTAGE IN THE POWERSPORTS MARKET AS A WHOLE. /   

THIS COMPETITIVE ADVANTAGE IS DEEPLY EMBEDDED IN THE PEOPLE OF POLARIS. WE DESIGN AND 

BUILD BETTER POWERSPORTS VEHICLES BECAUSE IT’S WHO WE ARE. WE INTIMATELY UNDERSTAND 

WHAT DRIVES OUR CUSTOMERS AND WHAT THEY WANT TO ACCOMPLISH, WHETHER THEY ARE USING 

OUR VEHICLES FOR WORK OR PLAY. / THE ECONOMIC DOWNTURN LEADING UP TO AND INCLUDING 2009 

CRIPPLED MANY ENGINEERING AND DESIGN EFFORTS IN OUR INDUSTRY AND MANY OTHERS. BUT POLARIS 

NEVER WAVERED AND NEVER PULLED BACK ON PRODUCT DESIGN — THE SINGLE LARGEST DIFFERENTIATOR 

THAT SEPARATES US AND MAKES US GREAT.
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RANGER EV (battery powered) 
The first choice for electric-powered side-
by-sides is the RANGER EV. It’s clean, 
quiet and powerful. With 25 mph speed 
and 50-mile range, it’s perfect for work, 
sport and enclosed environments.

Sportsman 850 & 550 Touring 
Polaris’ new two-up Touring ATV offers superb 
handling and comfortable seating for two.

Percentage of vehicle sales  
from new products introduced  

in previous three years.
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THE RANGER 800 XP® / NO COMPETITIVE OFF-ROAD VEHICLE COMPARES TO POLARIS RANGER SIDE-BY-SIDES. THESE RUGGED OFF-ROAD VEHICLES REIGN SUPREME IN 
EVERY ATTRIBUTE THAT MATTERS MOST TO OUR CUSTOMERS — POWER, SEATING, COMFORT, RIDE, HAULING AND TOWING. PREFERENCE FOR THE POLARIS BRAND AND 
RANGER POWER CUTS ACROSS ALL APPLICATIONS. WHETHER IT’S RECREATIONAL RIDING, FARMING, RANCHING, HUNTING OR CONSTRUCTION, POLARIS AND RANGER 
OUTPERFORM AND OUTSELL EVERY OTHER BRAND.
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POLARIS 600 RUSH™ / IT’S ONE THING TO TALK ABOUT A SLED THAT BREAKS THE RULES AND RISES FAR ABOVE ANYTHING ON THE MARKET. BUT IT’S A WHOLE DIFFERENT 
FEELING WHEN YOU ACTUALLY BRING OUT A FAMILY OF SLEDS THAT THE EXPERTS AND CRITICS AT SNOWGOER MAGAZINE SIMPLY CALL “INCREDIBLE.”  WE MADE NO 
COMPROMISES IN DESIGN OR MANUFACTURING. OUR BREAKTHROUGH SUSPENSION ELIMINATES THE BOTTOMING-OUT EFFECTS YOU GET WITH OTHER SUSPENSIONS, WHICH 
ALLOWS US TO DELIVER SLEDS THAT ARE BUILT TO CONQUER EVERY TRAIL, DITCH OR MOUNTAIN THEY ENCOUNTER. 
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Snowmobiles
This year Polaris launched the first snowmobile with 
a truly progressive-rate rear suspension, The Polaris 
RUSH.™ SnowGoer magazine, the industry’s 
premier publication, selected the new Polaris 600 
RUSH as its 2010 Snowmobile of the Year. 

A virtually bottomless suspension 
lets snowmobilers ride like motocross 
riders. Every bump is absorbed, so the 
sled adapts instantly to any terrain. This 
focus on ride and handling will be the basis  
for new snowmobiles currently in development.

Industry analysts predict the snowmobile market 
will continue to contract, even as the economy 
recovers a bit in 2010 and 2011. Our focus will be on 
improving margins while retaining an intensely loyal 
customer base around the world. 

Low-emission vehicles
A key to the Polaris growth strategy is bringing new 
products to entirely new customers — developing 
intense brand loyalty with people who have never 
before purchased Polaris products.

In 2009, Polaris executed on that strategy by 
launching a family of low-emission vehicles (LEVs). 
The new Polaris BREEZE™ Neighborhood Electric 
Vehicle has met with success in gated and planned 
communities, especially in the U.S. Sun Belt.

The Breeze serves as a spacious and powerful 
vehicle, then converts in 60  seconds or less to 
comfortably carry four passengers, hit the links 
or make a grocery run. It has found a perfect home 
with people looking for a safe, convenient and 
environmentally friendly way to run errands or 
visit  friends.

Pro Ride doesn’t bottom — its 
suspension rate rises parallel 
with the suspension load. It’s a 
system designed to eliminate 
the spine-crunching, bottoming-
out effect felt from other 
suspension systems.

The new RUSH™ named 
Snowmobile of the Year 
by SnowGoer magazine.

Polaris Breeze™  
Our electric-powered 
vehicles — designed for 
golfing, neighborhood 
riding and consumers living 
in master-planned communities — 
expanded our product portfolio in 2009.
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In 2009, worldwide military 
sales grew 51 percent. We 

also strengthened our 
relationships with military 
customers. We developed a 

deeper understanding of their 
needs and reached out to new 

organizations around the world. 

Motorcycles
We spent years designing and 

perfecting our motorcycles, 
sold under the Victory® 
name. Just like boats and 
sports cars, however, the 

motorcycle market was hit 
hard by the economic troubles of 2009. Victory sales 
to dealers were down 44 percent over the previous 
year. A slow, but steady comeback is expected in the 
next few years for the overall market.

The media, Victory dealers and motorcycle 
enthusiasts all loved the new Touring 2010 models. 
In addition to superb styling, they offer more storage, 
more torque and better suspension than anything on 
the market. The Victory Vision™ Tour ABS provides 
the ultimate in a luxury touring motorcycle, while 
the new Victory Cross Country™ and Victory Cross 
Roads™ set new standards for performance and 
comfort for hard-baggers.   

The strategy moving into 2010 is to stay focused 
on the core motorcycle enthusiast in North America 
and compete on quality and value — while steadily 
expanding distribution to international audiences 
who deeply appreciate American motorcycle design 
and craftsmanship.

Military market
Polaris has been successfully providing a 

family of military off-road vehicles to 
the U.S. armed forces and other selected 
governments since 2001. The military’s 
demand for tough, unfailing and high-

value vehicles fits our company and our 
culture perfectly.

We expect this vertical market to 
be a key growth area as we pursue our 
three-to-five-year plan.

PG&A
Sales of parts, garments and acces-
s o r i e s  ( P G & A )  w e r e  j u s t  o v e r 

$300 million, which declined 9 percent from 
last year. But the efficiencies we drove in sourcing 
and the fulfillment process as well as continued 
healthy innovation, dramatically increased PG&A 
margins. For model year 2010, we introduced over 
200 new accessory products, which help drive 
margin improvement.

Global strategy
While international sales have been strong and 
growing for several years, 2009 saw Polaris add 
infrastructure that prepares the company for rapid 
and sustained growth in Europe, the Middle East, 
Africa, China and South America.

As was the case in the United States, international 
sales were weaker across all markets and product 
lines in 2009, declining 17 percent. However, we 
again gained market share in ORVs in Europe in 
2009. We didn’t slow down our investments either. 
We named a new general manager in China, and 
we took steps toward establishing a robust sales 
and distribution model in Europe, the Middle East 
and Africa. 

Our international strategy calls for global platform 
development that can be leveraged to create products 
that are designed for various geographic markets and 
manufactured locally. This globally driven and locally 
relevant strategy will result in high-margin products 
that truly align with the consumers worldwide. 

State of the brand
The Polaris brand manifests itself in some obvious 
ways. Our familiar star-shaped logo appears on our 
products, our sales materials and throughout dealer 
showrooms. People know the Polaris name and the 
Polaris symbol. That is certainly part of our brand.

But the true essence of a brand is the experience 
we deliver to the people who matter most — our 
customers, dealers, distributors and business 
partners. Our brand is strong because that experience 
is consistently positive. People expect innovative 
ideas, powerful performance and consistency from 
Polaris. And we deliver. Every part of our company 
delivers, from engineering and manufacturing to 
sales and support.

We plan to foster steady, profitable growth by 
bringing that Polaris brand experience to untapped 
or under-served markets around the world. We will 
do this by expanding international distribution, 
evolving our existing lines of business, and acquiring 
companies, technologies and brands where it 
makes sense.

Whatever growth strategies we pursue, the 
consistent brand experience that makes Polaris 
great — and helps us endure difficult economic 
times — will be at the heart of our plans. And it will 
help Polaris deliver the strong financial performance 
that has made this company great for so many years.

The new Victory Cross Roads™ 
won the Excellence Award for 

“2010 V-Twin Bike of the Year” 
from V-Twin magazine 

The Cross Roads™ has the most 
horsepower and cargo capac-

ity in its class. Victory not only 
understands its riders — it shares 
their passion. It’s why riders have 

consistently voted Victory high 
in ownership satisfaction six 

years in a row. For more than a 
decade Victory has never stopped 

FUELING IT.
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THE SPORTSMAN® 850 XP / THE POWER, STYLING AND PERFORMANCE OF OUR SPORTSMAN® ATVs MIGHT JUST BE THE PERFECT EMBODIMENT OF THE POLARIS BRAND. 
THEY OUTSELL AND OUTPERFORM EVERY OTHER VEHICLE YEAR AFTER YEAR. DESPITE THIS, WE’RE NEVER SATISFIED. WE CONTINUALLY IMPROVE THE PLATFORM. THE 
SPORTSMAN® 850 XP, FOR EXAMPLE, FEATURES A POWERFUL, NEW 70 HP 850cc EFI ENGINE AND ROLLED INDEPENDENT REAR SUSPENSION. SO, IT’S IDEAL FOR TRAIL RIDING, 
HUNTING OR HEAVY WORK ON THE FARM, RANCH OR CONSTRUCTION SITE.
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Purchase of Property and Equipment  
for Continuing Operations

Other Investor Information

Stock Exchange
Shares of common stock of Polaris 
Industries Inc. trade on the New 
York Stock Exchange under the 
symbol PII.

Independent Auditors
Ernst & Young LLP
Minneapolis, MN

Transfer Agent and Registrar
Communications concerning transfer 
requirements, address changes, dividends and 
lost certificates, as well as requests  
for Dividend Reinvestment Plan enrollment 
information, should be addressed to:

�Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. 
Shareowner Services 
161 North Concord Exchange 
South St. Paul, MN 55075-1139 
1-800-468-9716 
www.wellsfargo.com/ 
com/shareowner_services

Annual Shareholders’ Meeting
The meeting will be held at 9:00 a.m. 
Central Time, April 29, 2010, at the Polaris 
Industries Inc. corporate headquarters, 
2100 Highway 55, Medina, Minnesota. 
The proxy statement will be available on or 
about March 10, 2010. The shareholder-of-
record date is March 1, 2010.

Summary of Trading
For the Years Ended December 31,

2009 2008

Quarter High Low High Low

First $32.76 $14.53 $48.00 $34.96

Second 36.62 21.05 49.84 40.11

Third 44.00 30.31 54.26 37.05

Fourth 49.74 37.33 46.72 19.48

Cash Dividends Declared
Cash dividends are declared quarterly and 
have been paid since 1995. On January 21, 
2010, the quarterly dividend was increased to 
$1.60 per share.

Quarter 2009 2008

First $0.39 $0.38

Second 0.39 0.38

Third 0.39 0.38

Fourth 0.39 0.38

Total $1.56 $1.52

Shareholders of Record
Shareholders of record of the Company’s 
common stock on February 16, 2010,  
were 2,719.

Shareholder Composition

■  Institutions

■  Individuals and Others

■  Officers, Directors 
  and Employees76%

13%
11%

Dividend Reinvestment Plan
Shareholders may automatically reinvest their 
dividends in additional Polaris common stock 
through the Dividend Reinvestment Plan, 
which also provides for purchase of common 
stock with voluntary cash contributions. For 
additional information, please contact Wells 
Fargo Shareowner Services at 1‑800‑468‑9716 
or visit the Wells Fargo Bank website  
at www.wellsfargo.com.

Product Brochures
For product brochures, write or call:

�Polaris Industries Inc. 
2100 Highway 55 
Medina, MN 55340 
1-800-POLARIS (1-800-765-2747)

Internet Access
To view the Company’s annual report 
and financial information, products and 
specifications, press releases and dealer 
locations, access Polaris on the Internet at:

www.polarisindustries.com 
www.victory-usa.com

Investor Relations
Security analysts and investment professionals 
should direct their business-related 
inquiries to:

�Richard Edwards 
Director of Investor Relations 
Polaris Industries Inc. 
2100 Highway 55 
Medina, MN 55340 
763-513-3477 
richard.edwards@polarisind.com

Research Coverage as of February 2010
BMO Capital Markets Corp. 
Citigroup 
Craig-Hallum Partners 
KeyBanc Capital Markets Inc. 
Raymond James & Associates 
RBC Capital Markets 
Robert W. Baird & Co. 
Rochdale Securities 
Sidoti & Company 
Wells Fargo Securities 
Wedbush Morgan Securities

Stock-Split History
August 1993	 2 for 1 
October 1995	 3 for 2 
March 2004	 2 for 1

Certifications
The Company’s chief executive officer 
submitted the annual CEO certification to the 
New York Stock Exchange, certifying that he 
is not aware of any violation by the Company 
of the New York Stock Exchange’s corporate 
governance listing standards.

The chief executive officer and chief 
financial officer certifications required by 
section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 
have been filed as exhibits to the Form 10‑K 
included with this report.

Polaris at a Glance

Products
Polaris Industries Inc. (Polaris) designs, manufactures and markets innovative, high-quality, 
high-performance motorized products for recreation and utility use. Our product lines consist of all-
terrain recreational and utility off-road vehicles (ORVs); snowmobiles; on-road vehicles including 
motorcycles and low-emission vehicles; and related parts, garments and accessories (PG&A).

Distribution
Polaris products are sold through a network of approximately 1,500 independent dealers in North 
America, and nine subsidiaries and 43 distributors in approximately 130 countries outside of 
North America.

Financial Services
Polaris has a 50/50 joint venture with GE to provide floor plan financing to Polaris dealers in the 
United States. Polaris also has arrangements with HSBC, GE and Sheffield to provide revolving and 
installment consumer and commercial credit to customers of Polaris dealers for Polaris products. 
Polaris has no credit, interest rate or funding risk under the retail credit contracts with HSBC, 
GE or Sheffield. Polaris also provides extended service contracts to consumers, and certain other 
insurance contracts to dealers and consumers through various third-party suppliers.

Manufacturing/Research & Development
Polaris designs, tests and assembles its products at its manufacturing and research and 
development facilities in the upper Midwest United States. The Company prides itself on being 
close to the customer, and extremely flexible and efficient in designing, testing and manufacturing 
Polaris products.

New-product introductions are the lifeblood of the Company. Polaris has a state-of-the-art 
Product Development Center in Wyoming, Minnesota, which drives the introduction of high-
quality products for recreation, utility, industrial and military use.

Gross Margin Percentage  
from Continuing Operations

Cash Flow Provided  
from Continuing Operations(1)

Return on Average  
Shareholder Equity from Continuing 
Operations

Dividends per Share
In January 2010, Polaris announced a 3% increase in 
the regular quarterly dividend, the 15th consecutive 
year of increases, to $1.60 per share.

Polaris Shares Repurchased
Since inception of the share repurchase program in 1996, approximately 33.7 million shares  
have been repurchased at an average price of $32.66 per share.

Sales
(dollars in millions)
Year ended December 31

$
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Worldwide ORV Industry*
(units in thousands)
*�Side-by-side data is Polaris estimate
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Worldwide Industry
(units in thousands)
Season ended March 31

65%

12%
3%

20%
�  Off-Road Vehicles
�  Snowmobiles
�  On-Road Vehicles
�  PG&A

Percentage of  Sales by Product Line

■  United States
■  Canada
■  International

69%

15%

16%

Percentage of  Sales by Geographic Area

Polaris PG&A  
Product Mix by 
Business Line

67%

20%

5%
8%

■ Off-Road 
 Vehicles
■ Snowmobiles
■ On-Road 
 Vehicles
■ General
 Merchandise

Sales
(dollars in millions)
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Sales
(dollars in millions)
Year ended 
December 31

$
113

 

$
5

3
 

$
9

4
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Scorecard

(dollars in millions)(dollars in millions, before changes in current  
operating items and deferred taxes)

Forward-looking statements made herein involve certain important factors that could change and cause actual results to differ materially from those anticipated. See “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operation” under Part II, Item 7 in the Form 10-K included with this report.

(dollars) (shares in millions) (dollars in millions)

(1) A reconciliation of the Company’s calculation of Cash Flow Provided to the most directly comparable cash flow measure, as required by Regulation G, appears under Part II, Item 6 in the Company’s Form 10-K.

Off-Road Vehicles Snowmobiles On-Road Vehicles PG&A

U.S. Industry 
Motorcycles
(units in thousands)
Cruisers and Touring  
(1400cc and above)

LEV Opportunity 
300,000 Units

People Transport
Light Duty
Government
Commercial
Stealth Hunters
Multi-acre Homeowners

Neighborhood
Vehicles 

2009 Summary	
• �Gained market share in  

ATVs & SxS
• �Launched over 25 new products
• �Successfully merged ATVs and 

SxS business — realized synergies

Bobcat Strategic Alliance
• �On track to source Bobcat utility 

vehicles in second half of 2010
• �Co-developed product planned for 

the future

Military
• �Strong growth continued
• �Expanded margins
• �Expanded customer base  
• �Expand product line in 2010

2009 Summary	
• �Industry retail sales very weak
• �Market share gains in International 

& Canada 
• �Industry-leading quality —  

6 years straight
• �Q4 retail sales up significantly
• �Cross Roads™/Cross Country™ 

well received

Low-Emission Vehicle (LEV):
• �Launched first electric low-

emission vehicle
• �Polaris BREEZE™ well received
• �Signed 10 dealers to-date
• �Learning the business

2009 Summary	
• �RUSH™ named Snowmobile of the Year
• �Industry weaker than expected
• �Dealer & factory inventory at acceptable levels
• �Modest market share decline

2010 Objective
• �Industry-leading customer satisfaction
• �Flawless new product launch in March 
• �Grow market share
• �Continue to improve profitability

2009 Summary	
• �Sales outperformed company
• �Now 20% of Polaris sales
• �Expanded margins
• �Remains highest-margin product line
• �Productivity improved 15% in 2009
• �200+ model year 2010 introduction of new accessories 

2010 Objective
• Grow sales
• More focus on installed base 
• Continue innovation focus
• Grow PG&A adjacencies 

2010 Objective
• �Build on retail sales momentum
• �Grow from adjacencies, international and Bobcat
• �Successfully launch new products — RANGER RZR® 4 + others
• �Gain market share again

2010 Objective
• �Create demand in North America — grow market share
• �Realign cost structure 
• �Expand globally
• �Improve profitability
• �Continue aggressive expansion of LEV
	 » Expand product line	 » Grow profitability
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PART I

Item 1. Business

Polaris Industries Inc. (the “Company” or “Polaris”), a Minnesota corporation, was formed in 1994 and is the
successor to Polaris Industries Partners LP. The term “Polaris” as used herein refers to the business and operations of
the Company, its subsidiaries and its predecessors which began doing business in the early 1950’s. Polaris designs,
engineers and manufactures off-road vehicles (“ORV”) which includes all terrain vehicles (“ATV”) and
side-by-side vehicles for recreational and utility use, snowmobiles, and On-Road vehicles (“On-Road”) including
motorcycles and low emission vehicles (“LEV’’), together with the related replacement parts, garments and
accessories (“PG&A”). These products are sold through dealers and distributors principally located in the United
States, Canada and Europe. Sales of ORVs, snowmobiles, On-Road vehicles, and PG&A accounted for the
following approximate percentages of Polaris’ sales for the years ended December 31:

ORVs Snowmobiles On-Road PG&A

2009 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 65% 12% 3% 20%
2008 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 67% 10% 5% 18%

2007 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 67% 10% 6% 17%

The Company discontinued the manufacture of marine products effective September 2, 2004. The marine
products division’s financial results are reported separately as discontinued operations for all periods presented. See
Note 10 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for a discussion of the discontinuation of marine products.

Industry Background

Off-road Vehicles (ORVs). Off-road vehicles include both core ATVs and RANGERTM side-by-side vehicles.
ATVs are four-wheel vehicles with balloon style tires designed for off-road use and traversing rough terrain,
swamps and marshland. Side-by-side vehicles are multi-passenger off-road, all terrain vehicles that can carry up to
six passengers in addition to cargo. ORVs are used for recreation, in such sports as fishing and hunting, as well as for
utility purposes on farms, ranches and construction sites.

ATVs were introduced to the North American market in 1971 by Honda. Other Japanese motorcycle
manufacturers including Yamaha, Kawasaki and Suzuki entered the North American ATV market in the late
1970s and early 1980s. Polaris entered the ATV market in 1985, Arctic Cat entered in 1995 and Bombardier
Recreational Products Inc. (“BRP”) entered in 1998. KTM Power Sports AG (“KTM”) entered the market in 2007.
In addition, numerous Chinese and Taiwanese manufacturers of youth and small ATVs exist for which no industry
sales data is available. By 1985, the number of three- and four-wheel ATVs sold in North America had grown to
approximately 650,000 units per year, then dropped dramatically to a low of 148,000 in 1989. The industry grew
each year in North America from 1990 until 2005. The market declined in 2007, 2008 and 2009, primarily due to
weak overall economic conditions. Internationally, similar ATVs are also sold primarily in Western European
countries by similar manufacturers as in North America. Polaris estimates that during the calendar year 2009 world-
wide industry sales declined 25 percent from 2008 levels with approximately 496,000 core ATVs sold worldwide.

Polaris estimates that the side-by-side vehicle market sales decreased approximately 18 percent during the
calendar year 2009 over 2008 levels with an estimated 238,000 side-by-side vehicles sold worldwide. The main
competitors for the RANGERTM side-by-side vehicles are John Deere, Kawasaki, Yamaha, Arctic Cat, Kubota and
Honda.

Polaris estimates that during calendar year 2009, the ORV industry sales, which includes core ATVs and
side-by-side vehicles, decreased 23 percent from 2008 levels with approximately 734,000 units sold worldwide.

Snowmobiles. In the early 1950s, a predecessor to Polaris produced a “gas powered sled” which became the
forerunner of the Polaris snowmobile. Snowmobiles have been manufactured under the Polaris name since 1954.

Originally conceived as a utility vehicle for northern, rural environments, the snowmobile gained popularity as
a recreational vehicle. From the mid-1950s through the late 1960s, over 100 producers entered the snowmobile
market and snowmobile sales reached a peak of approximately 495,000 units in 1971. The Polaris product survived
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the industry decline in which snowmobile sales fell to a low point of approximately 87,000 units in 1983 and the
number of snowmobile manufacturers serving the North American market declined to four: Yamaha, BRP, Arctic
Cat and Polaris. These four manufacturers also sell snowmobiles in certain overseas markets where the climate is
conducive to snowmobile riding. Polaris estimates that during the season ended March 31, 2009, industry sales of
snowmobiles on a worldwide basis were approximately 147,000 units, down ten percent from the previous season.

On-road vehicles: On-road vehicles consists of Victory motorcycles and low emission vehicles (“LEV”).
Heavyweight motorcycles are over the-road vehicles utilized as a mode of transportation as well as for recreational
purposes. There are four segments: cruisers, touring, sport bikes, and standard motorcycles. Polaris entered the
motorcycle market in 1998 with an initial entry product in the cruiser segment. U.S. industry retail cruiser sales
more than doubled from 1996 to 2006, however the motorcycle industry declined in 2007, 2008 and 2009 due to
weak overall economic conditions. Polaris entered the touring segment in 2000. Polaris estimates that the 1,400cc
and above cruiser and touring market segments combined, declined 28 percent in 2009 compared to 2008 levels
with approximately 184,000 cruiser and touring motorcycles sold in the U.S. market. Other major cruiser and
touring motorcycle manufacturers include BMW, Harley Davidson, Honda, Yamaha, Kawasaki and Suzuki.

The Company’s initial LEV product, the Polaris BreezeTM, introduced in 2009, is an electric powered low
emission vehicle primarily used in master planned communities primarily in the sunbelt United States. Polaris
estimates the target market for LEVs at approximately $1.8 billion in 2009, which includes master planned
communities and golf courses, light duty people transport and urban/suburban commuting. Other major LEV
manufacturers include EZ-Go, Club Car, Yamaha and Starcar.

Products

Off-road Vehicles. Polaris entered the ORV market in the spring of 1985 with an ATV. Polaris currently
produces four-wheel ATVs, which provide more stability for the rider than earlier three-wheel versions. In 2000,
Polaris introduced its first youth ATV models. In addition, Polaris also introduced a six-wheel off-road ATV utility
vehicle and the Polaris RANGERTM, an off-road side-by-side utility vehicle. In 2001, Polaris expanded its
side-by-side line, the Polaris Professional Series (“PPS”), with a third party sourced all surface loader product
as well as a 4X4 and 6X6 ATV (ATV Pro), which were modifications of existing products. In 2004, the PPS line was
phased out and the RANGERTM line expanded to meet both the commercial and recreational customer. In 2007,
Polaris introduced its first recreational side-by-side vehicle, the RANGER RZRTM and the Company’s first six-
passenger side-by-side vehicle, the RANGER CrewTM. Additionally, in 2007, the Company introduced military
version ATV and side-by-side vehicles with features specifically designed for ultra-light tactical military appli-
cations. Polaris line of military vehicles consisted of thirteen models, with 2010 model year suggested United States
retail prices ranging from approximately $8,000 to $19,000. Polaris’ line of ORVs consisted of thirty-three models,
including two, four and six-wheel drive general purpose, sport and side-by-side models, with 2010 model year
suggested United States retail prices ranging from approximately $2,000 to $15,000.

Most of Polaris’ ORVs feature the totally automatic Polaris variable transmission, which requires no manual
shifting, and several have a MacPherson strut front suspension, which enhances control and stability. Polaris’ on
demand all-wheel drive provides industry leading traction performance and ride quality due to its patented on
demand, easy shift on-the-fly design. Polaris’ ORVs have four-cycle engines and both shaft and concentric chain
drive. In 1999, Polaris introduced its first manual transmission ATV models. In 2003, Polaris introduced the
industry’s first electronic fuel injected ATV, the Sportsman 700 EFI. In 2005, Polaris introduced the industry’s first
independent rear suspension on a sport ATV named the OutlawTM. In 2007, Polaris introduced the RANGER RZRTM,
a big bore recreational side-by-side model, and two military vehicles equipped with engines that operate on JP8
militarized fuel. In 2008, Polaris celebrated the 1 millionth unit sale of its Sportsman ATV family, which has been
the industry leading big bore ATV for 13 years, by introducing the 100 percent redesigned Sportsman XP, a
reengineered Sportsman from top to bottom. In 2008, Polaris also introduced an extension of its recreational
side-by-side vehicle with the introduction of the RANGER RZR STM. In 2009, the Company introduced its first all
electric side-by-side vehicle, the RANGER EV. In January 2010, the Company introduced its first 4-seat recreational
side-by-side, the RANGER RZR» 4, Robby Gordon Edition.
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Snowmobiles. Polaris produces a full line of snowmobiles, consisting of twenty-seven models, ranging from
youth models to utility and economy models to performance and competition models. Polaris has made snow-
mobiles since 1954. The 2010 model year suggested United States retail prices range from approximately $2,300 to
$12,000. Polaris snowmobiles are sold principally in the United States, Canada and Europe. Polaris believes its
snowmobiles have a long-standing reputation for quality, dependability and performance. Polaris believes that it
and its predecessors were the first to develop several features for wide commercial use in snowmobiles, including
independent front suspension, long travel rear suspension, hydraulic disc brakes, liquid cooling for brakes and a
three cylinder engine. In 2001, Polaris introduced a new, more environmentally-friendly snowmobile featuring a
four-stroke engine designed specifically for snowmobiles. In 2009, Polaris introduced the first true progressive-rate
rear suspension snowmobile, the Polaris RUSHTM.

On-road vehicles. Motorcycles: In 1998, Polaris began manufacturing V-twin cruiser motorcycles under the
Victory» brand name. In 2008, Polaris introduced its first luxury touring models, the Victory Vision StreetTM and
Victory Vision TourTM. In 2009 the Company expanded its touring product line to include the Victory Cross RoadsTM

and Cross CountryTM models. Polaris’ 2010 model year line of motorcycles consists of thirteen models with
suggested United States retail prices ranging from approximately $12,500 to $25,000. In 2009, Polaris introduced
its first electric neighborhood vehicle, the Polaris BreezeTM. The Company has one model with a retail price of
approximately $8,000.

Parts, Garments and Accessories. Polaris produces or supplies a variety of replacement parts and accessories
for its ORVs, snowmobiles, motorcycles, LEVs and personal watercraft. ORVaccessories include winches, bumper/
brushguards, plows, racks, mowers, tires, pull-behinds, cabs, cargo box accessories, tracks and oil. Snowmobile
accessories include products such as covers, traction products, reverse kits, electric starters, tracks, bags, wind-
shields, oil and lubricants. Motorcycle accessories include saddle bags, handlebars, backrests, exhaust, windshields,
seats, oil and various chrome accessories. Polaris also markets a full line of recreational apparel including helmets,
jackets, bibs and pants, leathers and hats for its snowmobile, ORV, and motorcycle lines. The apparel is designed to
Polaris’ specifications, purchased from independent vendors and sold by Polaris through its dealers and distributors,
and online through its e-commerce subsidiary under the Polaris brand name.

Discontinued Operations — Marine Products. Polaris entered the personal watercraft (“PWC”) market in
1992. On September 2, 2004, the Company announced that it had decided to cease manufacturing marine products
effective immediately. As technology and the distribution channel evolved, the marine division’s lack of com-
monality with other Polaris product lines created challenges for Polaris and its dealer base. The marine division
continued to experience escalating costs and increasing competitive pressures and was never profitable for Polaris.
See Note 10 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for a discussion of the discontinuation of marine
products.

Manufacturing and Distribution Operations

Polaris’ products are assembled at its original manufacturing facility in Roseau, Minnesota and at its facilities
in Spirit Lake, Iowa and Osceola, Wisconsin. Since snowmobiles, ORVs and motorcycles incorporate similar
technology, substantially the same equipment and personnel are employed in their production. Polaris is vertically
integrated in several key components of its manufacturing process, including plastic injection molding, stamping,
welding, clutch assembly and balancing, painting, cutting and sewing, and manufacture of foam seats. Fuel tanks,
tracks, tires and instruments, and certain other component parts are purchased from third party vendors. Raw
materials or standard parts are readily available from multiple sources for the components manufactured by Polaris.
Polaris’ work force is familiar with the use, operation and maintenance of the products, since many employees own
snowmobiles, ORVs, and motorcycles. In 1991, Polaris acquired a manufacturing facility in Osceola, Wisconsin to
manufacture component parts previously produced by third party suppliers. In 1994, Polaris acquired a manu-
facturing facility in Spirit Lake, Iowa in order to expand its assembly capacity. Certain operations, including engine
assembly and the bending of frame tubes, seat manufacturing, drivetrain and exhaust assembly and stamping are
conducted at the Osceola, Wisconsin facility. In 1998, Victory motorcycle production began at Polaris’ Spirit Lake,
Iowa facility. The production process in Spirit Lake includes welding, finish painting, and final assembly. In early
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2002, Polaris completed the expansion and renovation of its Roseau manufacturing facility, which resulted in
increased capacity and enhanced production flexibility.

Pursuant to informal agreements between Polaris and Fuji Heavy Industries Ltd. (“Fuji”), Fuji was the sole
manufacturer of Polaris’ two-cycle snowmobile engines from 1968 to 1995. Fuji has manufactured engines for
Polaris’ ATV products since their introduction in the spring of 1985 and is still a major supplier of engines to
Polaris. Fuji develops such engines to the specific requirements of Polaris. Polaris believes its relationship with Fuji
to be good. Although Polaris has alternative sources for its engines and does not currently have knowledge that Fuji
intends to terminate supplying engines to Polaris, a termination of the supply relationship with Fuji would
materially adversely affect Polaris production until substitute supply arrangements for the quantity of engines
required by Polaris has been established.

In addition, Polaris entered into an agreement with Fuji to form Robin Manufacturing, U.S.A. (“Robin”) in
1995. Under the agreement, Polaris made an investment for a 40% ownership position in Robin, which builds
engines in the United States for recreational and industrial products. See Note 7 of Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements for a discussion of the Robin agreement.

Polaris has been designing and producing its own engines for select models of snowmobiles since 1995 and for
all Victory motorcycles since 1998, and for select ORV models since 2001.

In 2000, Polaris entered into an agreement with a Taiwan manufacturer to co-design, develop and produce
youth ATVs. Polaris expanded the agreement with the Taiwan manufacturer in 2004 to include the design,
development and production of value-priced smaller adult ATV models and in 2008 to include a youth side-by-side
vehicle, the RANGER RZR 170. In 2002, Polaris entered into an agreement with a German manufacturer to co-
design, develop and produce four-stroke engines for snowmobiles. In 2006, Polaris entered into a long term supply
agreement with KTM Power Sports AG (“KTM”) whereby KTM supplies four-stroke engines for use in certain
Polaris ATVs.

Polaris anticipates no significant difficulties in obtaining substitute supply arrangements for other raw
materials or components that it generally obtains from limited sources.

Contract carriers ship Polaris’ products from its manufacturing and distribution facilities to its customers.

Polaris maintains sales and administration facilities in; Passy, France; Askim, Norway; Ostersund, Sweden;
Birmingham, United Kingdom; Griesheim, Germany; Barcelona, Spain and Ballarat, Victoria, Australia. Polaris
maintains distribution facilities in Vermillion, South Dakota; Passy, France and Ballarat, Victoria, Australia to
distribute PG&A products to our North American dealers and international dealers and distributors.

Production Scheduling

Polaris produces and delivers it products throughout the year based on dealer and distributor orders. Beginning
in 2008, Polaris began testing a new dealer ordering process called Maximum Velocity Program (MVP) with select
dealers in North America, where ORVorders are placed in approximately two week intervals driven by retail sales
trends at the individual dealership. Currently, the MVP process is being utilized by North American dealers
representing approximately 50 percent of the ORV volume in 2009. For non-MVP dealers, most ORV orders are
taken twice a year, in the summer and late winter. Distributor ORVorders are taken throughout the year. Orders for
each year’s production of snowmobiles are placed by the dealers and distributors in the spring. Non-refundable
deposits made by consumers to dealers in the spring for pre-ordered snowmobiles assist in production planning.
Orders for Victory motorcycles are placed by the dealers in the summer after meetings with dealers. For non-MVP
dealers and products, units are built to order each year subject to fluctuations in market conditions and supplier lead
times. The anticipated volume of units to be produced is substantially committed to by non-MVP dealers and
distributors prior to production. For MVP dealers, ORV retail sales activity at the dealer level drives orders which
are incorporated into each product’s production scheduling.

Manufacture of snowmobiles commences in late winter of the previous season and continues through late
autumn or early winter of the current season. Polaris manufactures ORVs year round. Victory motorcycle
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manufacturing began in 1998. Polaris has the ability to mix production of the various products on the existing
manufacturing lines as demand dictates.

Sales and Marketing

Polaris products are sold through a network of approximately 1,500 independent dealers in North America, and
through nine subsidiaries and 43 distributors in approximately 130 countries outside of North America.

Polaris sells its snowmobiles directly to dealers in the snowbelt regions of the United States and Canada. Many
dealers and distributors of Polaris snowmobiles also distribute Polaris’ ORVs. At the end of 2008, approximately
700 Polaris dealers were located in areas of the United States where snowmobiles are not regularly sold. Unlike its
primary competitors, which market their ORV products principally through their affiliated motorcycle dealers,
Polaris also sells its ORVs through lawn and garden and farm implement dealers.

With the exception of France, the United Kingdom, Sweden, Norway, Australia, New Zealand, Germany and
Spain, sales of Polaris’ products in Europe and other offshore markets are handled through independent distributors.
In 1999, Polaris acquired certain assets of its distributor in Australia and New Zealand and now distributes its
products to its dealer network in those countries through a wholly-owned subsidiary. During 2000, Polaris acquired
its distributor in France and now distributes its products to its dealer network in France through a wholly-owned
subsidiary. In 2002, Polaris acquired certain assets of its distributors in the United Kingdom, Sweden and Norway
and now distributes its products to its dealer networks in the United Kingdom, Sweden and Norway through wholly-
owned subsidiaries. During 2007, Polaris established a wholly-owned subsidiary in Germany and now distributes its
products directly to its dealer network in Germany. In 2008, Polaris established a wholly-owned subsidiary in Spain
and now distributes its products directly to its dealer network in Spain. See Notes 1 and 11 of Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements for a discussion of international operations.

Victory motorcycles are distributed directly through authorized Victory dealers. Polaris has a high quality
dealer network for its other product lines from which many of the approximately 300 current North American
Victory dealers were selected. In 2008 Polaris expanded into Australia with one company owned retail store and
expects to further expand its Victory dealer network over the next few years in North America and internationally.
The Polaris BreezeTM electric vehicles are distributed through authorized LEV and golf vehicle dealers. At
December 31, 2009, the Company had ten dealers authorized to sell its BreezeTM product.

Dealers and distributors sell Polaris’ products under contractual arrangements pursuant to which the dealer or
distributor is authorized to market specified products and is required to carry certain replacement parts and perform
certain warranty and other services. Changes in dealers and distributors take place from time to time. Polaris
believes a sufficient number of qualified dealers and distributors exist in all geographic areas to permit an orderly
transition whenever necessary. In addition, Polaris sells military and other Polaris vehicles directly to military and
government agencies and other national accounts.

In 1996, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Polaris entered into a partnership agreement with a subsidiary of
Transamerica Distribution Finance (“TDF”) to form Polaris Acceptance. Polaris Acceptance provides floor plan
financing to Polaris’ dealers in the United States. Under the partnership agreement, Polaris has a 50% equity interest
in Polaris Acceptance. Polaris does not guarantee the outstanding indebtedness of Polaris Acceptance. In 2004,
TDF was merged with a subsidiary of General Electric Company and, as a result of that merger, TDF’s name was
changed to GE Commercial Distribution Finance Corporation (“GECDF”). No significant change in the Polaris
Acceptance relationship resulted from the change of ownership from TDF. In November 2006, Polaris Acceptance
sold a majority of its receivable portfolio to a securitization facility arranged by General Electric Capital
Corporation, a GECDF affiliate (“Securitization Facility”), and the partnership agreement was amended to provide
that Polaris Acceptance would continue to sell portions of its receivable portfolio to the Securitization Facility from
time to time on an ongoing basis. See Notes 3 and 6 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for a discussion
of the financial services arrangement.

Polaris has arrangements with Polaris Acceptance (United States) and GE affiliates (Australia, Canada,
France, Germany, the United Kingdom, Ireland, New Zealand, Norway and Sweden) to provide floor plan financing
for its dealers. Substantially all of Polaris’ United States sales of snowmobiles, ORVs, motorcycles and related
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PG&A are financed under arrangements whereby Polaris is paid within a few days of shipment of its product.
Polaris participates in the cost of dealer financing and has agreed to repurchase products from the finance
companies under certain circumstances and subject to certain limitations. Polaris has not historically been required
to repurchase a significant number of units. However, there can be no assurance that this will continue to be the case.
If necessary, Polaris will adjust its sales return allowance at the time of sale should management anticipate material
repurchases of units financed through the finance companies. See Note 6 of Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements for a discussion of this financial services arrangement.

In August 2005, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Polaris entered into a multi-year contract with HSBC Bank
Nevada, National Association (“HSBC”), formerly known as Household Bank (SB), N.A. under which HSBC
manages the Polaris private label credit card program under the StarCard label, which until July 2007 included
providing retail credit for non-Polaris products. The 2005 agreement provides for income to be paid to Polaris based
on a percentage of the volume of retail credit business generated. HSBC ceased financing non-Polaris products
under its arrangement with Polaris effective July 1, 2007. During the first quarter of 2008, HSBC notified the
Company that the profitability to HSBC of the contractual arrangement was unacceptable and, absent some
modification of that arrangement, HSBC might significantly tighten its underwriting standards for Polaris
customers, reducing the number of qualified retail credit customers who would be able to obtain credit from
HSBC. In order to avoid the potential reduction of revolving retail credit available to Polaris consumers, Polaris
agreed to forgo the receipt of a volume based fee provided for under its agreement with HSBC effective March 1,
2008. Management anticipates that the elimination of the volume based fee will continue and that HSBC will
continue to provide revolving retail credit to qualified customers through the end of the contract term on October 31,
2010. See Note 6 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for a discussion of this financial services
arrangement.

In April 2006, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Polaris entered into a multi-year contract with GE Money Bank
(“GE Bank”) under which GE Bank makes available closed-end installment consumer and commercial credit to
customers of Polaris dealers for both Polaris and non-Polaris products. In January 2009, a wholly-owned subsidiary
of Polaris entered into a multi-year contract with Sheffield Financial (“Sheffield”) pursuant to which Sheffield
agreed to make available closed-end installment consumer and commercial credit to customers of Polaris dealers
for Polaris products. See Note 6 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for a discussion of these financial
services arrangements.

Polaris promotes the Polaris brand among the riding and non-riding public and provides a wide range of
products for enthusiasts by licensing the name Polaris. The Company currently licenses the production and sale of a
range of items, including die cast toys, ride on toys, video games, and numerous other products.

During 2000, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Polaris established an e-commerce site, purepolaris.com, to sell
clothing and accessories over the Internet directly to consumers.

Polaris’ marketing activities are designed primarily to promote and communicate directly with consumers and
secondarily to assist the selling and marketing efforts of its dealers and distributors. Polaris makes available and
advertises discount or rebate programs, retail financing or other incentives for its dealers and distributors to remain
price competitive in order to accelerate retail sales to consumers and gain market share. Polaris advertises its
products directly using print advertising in the industry press and in user group publications, billboards, television
and radio. Polaris also provides media advertising and partially underwrites dealer and distributor media advertising
to a degree and on terms which vary by product and from year to year. From time to time, Polaris produces
promotional films for its products, which are available to dealers for use in the showroom or at special promotions.
Polaris also provides product brochures, leaflets, posters, dealer signs, and miscellaneous other promotional items
for use by dealers.

Polaris expended approximately $111.1 million, $137.0 million and $123.9 million for sales and marketing in
2009, 2008 and 2007, respectively.
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Engineering, Research and Development, and New Product Introduction

Polaris employs approximately 370 persons primarily in its Roseau and Wyoming, Minnesota facilities, who
are engaged in the development and testing of existing products and research and development of new products and
improved production techniques. Management believes Polaris and its predecessors were the first to develop, for
wide commercial use, independent front suspensions for snowmobiles, long travel rear suspensions for snowmo-
biles, liquid cooled snowmobile brakes, hydraulic brakes for snowmobiles, the three cylinder engine in snowmo-
biles, the adaptation of the MacPherson strut front suspension, “on demand” four-wheel drive systems and the
Concentric Drive System for use in ORVs, the application of a forced air cooled variable power transmission system
to ORVs and the use of electronic fuel injection for ORVs.

Polaris utilizes internal combustion engine testing facilities to design and optimize engine configurations for
its products. Polaris utilizes specialized facilities for matching engine, exhaust system and clutch performance
parameters in its products to achieve desired fuel consumption, power output, noise level and other objectives.
Polaris’ engineering department is equipped to make small quantities of new product prototypes for testing by
Polaris’ testing teams and for the planning of manufacturing procedures. In addition, Polaris maintains numerous
test facilities where each of the products is extensively tested under actual use conditions. In 2005, Polaris
completed construction of its 127,000 square-foot research and development facility in Wyoming, Minnesota for
engineering, design and development personnel for Polaris’ line of engines and powertrains, ORVs and Victory
motorcycles. Total cost of the facility was approximately $35 million.

Polaris expended for research and development approximately $63.0 million, $77.5 million and $73.6 million
in 2009, 2008 and 2007, respectively.

Investment in KTM Power Sports AG

In 2005 Polaris purchased a 25 percent interest in Austrian motorcycle manufacturer KTM and began several
important strategic projects with KTM intended to strengthen the competitive position of both companies and
provide tangible benefits to their respective customers, dealers, suppliers and shareholders. Additionally, Polaris
and KTM’s largest shareholder, Cross Industries AG (“Cross”), entered into an option agreement, which provided
that under certain conditions in 2007, either Cross could purchase Polaris’ interest in KTM or, alternatively, Polaris
could purchase Cross’ interest in KTM. In December 2006, Polaris and Cross cancelled the option agreement and
entered into a share purchase agreement for the sale by the Company of approximately 1.38 million shares of KTM,
or approximately 80 percent of its investment in KTM, to a subsidiary of Cross. The agreement provided for
completion of the sale of the KTM shares in two stages. In the first half of 2007, the Company completed both stages
of its sale of KTM shares generating proceeds of $77.1 million. Polaris now holds ownership of approximately
0.34 million shares, representing slightly less than 5 percent of KTM’s outstanding shares. During the first quarter
2009, the Company determined that the decline in the market value of the KTM shares owned by the Company was
other than temporary; therefore, Polaris recorded the decrease in the fair value of the investment as a charge to the
income statement in the first quarter of 2009 totaling $9.0 million, pretax, or $0.18 per diluted share.

Competition

The ORV, snowmobile, motorcycle and LEV vehicle markets in the United States and Canada are highly
competitive. Competition in such markets is based upon a number of factors, including price, quality, reliability,
styling, product features and warranties. At the dealer level, competition is based on a number of factors including
sales and marketing support programs (such as financing and cooperative advertising). Certain Polaris competitors
are more diversified and have financial and marketing resources which are substantially greater than those of
Polaris.

Management believes Polaris’ products are competitively priced and Polaris’ sales and marketing support
programs for dealers are comparable to those provided by its competitors. Polaris’ products compete with many
other recreational products for the discretionary spending of consumers, and, to a lesser extent, with other vehicles
designed for utility applications.
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Product Safety and Regulation

Safety regulation. The federal government and individual states have promulgated or are considering
promulgating laws and regulations relating to the use and safety of Polaris products. The federal government
is the primary regulator of product safety. The Consumer Product Safety Commission (“CPSC”) has federal
oversight over product safety issues related to ATVs, snowmobiles and off-road side-by-side vehicles. The National
Highway Transportation Safety Administration (“NHTSA”) has federal oversight over product safety issues related
to on-road motorcycles.

In 1988, Polaris, five competitors and the CPSC entered into a ten-year consent decree settling litigation
involving CPSC’s attempt to force an industry-wide recall of all three-wheel ATVs and four-wheel ATVs sold that
could be used by children under 16 years of age. The settlement required, among other things, that ATV purchasers
receive “hands on” training. In April 1998, this consent decree expired and Polaris entered into a voluntary action
plan under which Polaris agreed to continue various activities previously required under the consent decree,
including age recommendations, warning labels, point of purchase materials, hands on training and an information
and education effort. Polaris also agreed to continue dealer monitoring to ascertain dealer compliance with safety
obligations including age recommendations and training requirements.

Polaris does not believe that its voluntary action plan has had or will have a material adverse effect on Polaris or
negatively affect its business to any greater degree than those of its competitors who have undertaken similar action
plans with the CPSC. Nevertheless, there can be no assurance that future recommendations or regulatory actions by
the federal government or individual states would not have an adverse effect on the Company. Polaris will continue
to attempt to assure that its dealers are in compliance with their safety obligations. Polaris has notified its dealers
that it may terminate or not renew any dealer it determines has violated such safety obligations. Polaris believes that
its ATVs have always complied with safety standards relevant to ATVs.

In August 2006, the CPSC issued a Notice of Proposed Rulemaking to establish mandatory standards for ATVs
and to ban three-wheeled ATVs. The CPSC did not complete this rulemaking process or issue a final rule.

In August 2008, the Consumer Product Safety Improvement Act (“Act”) was passed. The Act includes a
provision that requires all manufacturers and distributors who import into or distribute ATVs in the United States to
comply with the ANSI/SVIA ATV safety standards which were previously voluntary. The Act also requires the
same manufacturers and distributors to have ATV action plans filed with the CPSC that are substantially similar to
the voluntary action plans that were previously in effect through the voluntary agreement with the CPSC. Polaris
products comply with the ANSI/SVIA standard and Polaris has had an action plan filed with the CPSC since 1998
when the Consent Decree expired. The Company does not believe the new law will negatively affect its business to
any greater degree than those of its competitors who are now subject to the same mandatory standards.

The Act also includes a provision that requires the CPSC to complete the ATV rulemaking process it started in
August, 2006 and issue a final rule regarding ATV safety. The Act requires the CPSC to evaluate certain matters in
the final rule including the safety of the categories of youth ATVs as well as the need for safety standards or
increased safety standards for suspension, brakes, speed governors, warning labels, marketing and dynamic
stability.

The Act also includes provisions which limit the amount of lead paint and lead content that can in exist in the
accessible components of ATVs, off-road side-by-side and snowmobiles Polaris sells in the United States for
children twelve years of age and younger. Under the law, products that have lead content in excess of these limits
may not be sold in the United States starting February 10, 2009. Polaris, along with others in the recreational
products industry, has also filed a petition for exclusion with the CPSC which, if approved, will exempt certain
metal alloys and battery terminals from the requirements of the law.

The CPSC did not approve this request but instead issued a Stay of Enforcement (“Stay”) until May 2011. The
Stay provides that the CPSC will not seek to enforce the Act against manufacturers who sell children’s recreational
vehicle products provided the metal alloys in these products meet certain lead limits and information regarding the
lead content of the relevant products is submitted to the CPSC. To meet the requirements of the law and the Stay,
Polaris has installed lead-compliant parts on its vehicles where possible and in some cases has designed features and
kits to be installed on its vehicles to make lead-containing parts inaccessible. Polaris products meet the terms of the
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CPSC Stay and the Company is currently selling its children’s products. However, if the Stay expires in 2011 and is
not extended, the Company will again be restricted from selling its children’s products that do not comply with the
lead limits in the Act. Furthermore, the legal protection provided under the Stay is limited because it only limits the
enforcement actions of the CPSC. The Stay does not prevent third parties from bringing legal action under the law or
state Attorneys General from bringing an action to enforce the law.

Polaris does not believe any of its children’s products present a harmful risk of lead exposure because children
are not exposed to vehicle parts containing lead during normal operation and use. It is for this reason that Polaris,
along with others in the recreational product industry, are seeking an amendment to the Act that would exclude its
products from the scope of the law. However, until the Act is changed or a permanent petition for exclusion is
approved by the CPSC exempting the youth products from the law, there is uncertainty about whether Polaris and its
dealers will be restricted from selling some of its Company’s children’s product in the United States at some time in
the future. Polaris does not believe that these restrictions have had or will have a material adverse effect on Polaris or
negatively impact its business to any greater degree than those of its competitors who sell children’s products in the
United States.

Polaris is a member of the Recreational Off-Highway Vehicle Association (“ROHVA”) which was established
to promote the safe and responsible use of side-by-side vehicles also known as Recreational Off-Highway Vehicles
(“ROVs”). Since early 2008, ROHVA has been engaged in a comprehensive process for developing a voluntary
standard for equipment, configuration and performance requirements of ROVs through the American National
Standards Institute (“ANSI”). Comments on the draft standard have been actively solicited from the CPSC and other
stakeholders as part of the ANSI process. In addition, members of ROHVA have met on numerous occasions with
the CPSC to discuss the draft standard. The draft standard addresses stability, occupant protection and retention as
well as other safety performance criteria. The ANSI standard is scheduled to be published in early 2010 and upon
publication will be immediately opened for maintenance and revision in accordance with the ANSI process to
evaluate additional safety provisions.

On October 28, 2009, the Consumer Product Safety Commission published an advance notice of proposed
rulemaking regarding ROVs. Polaris RANGER and RZR side-by-side vehicles are included in the ROV category. In
its notice, the CPSC stated that it was reviewing the risk of injury associated with ROVs and beginning a rule-
making procedure under the Consumer Product Safety Act. The CPSC also noted the draft ANSI standard
developed by ROHVA and expressed concerns with the draft standard in the areas of vehicle stability, vehicle
handling, and occupant retention and protection. Polaris is a member of ROHVA, which is preparing written
comments and a technical response to the CPSC notice. This response and all other public comments are due to the
CPSC by March 15, 2010. Polaris is unable to predict the outcome of the CPSC rule-making procedure and the
ultimate impact of the procedure or any resulting rules on its business and operating results.

Polaris is a member of the International Snowmobile Manufacturers Association (“ISMA”), a trade association
formed to promote safety in the manufacture and use of snowmobiles, among other things. ISMA members include
all of the major snowmobile manufacturers. The ISMA members are also members of the Snowmobile Safety and
Certification Committee, which promulgated voluntary sound and safety standards for snowmobiles that have been
adopted as regulations in some U.S. states and in Canada. These standards require testing and evaluation by an
independent testing laboratory. Polaris believes that its snowmobiles have always complied with safety standards
relevant to snowmobiles.

Victory motorcycles are subject to federal vehicle safety standards administered by NHTSA. Victory
motorcycles are also subject to various state vehicle safety standards. Polaris believes that its motorcycles have
always complied with safety standards relevant to motorcycles.

Polaris products are also subject to international standards related to safety in places where it sells its products
outside the United States. Polaris believes that its Victory motorcycles, ATVs, off-road side-by-side vehicles and
snowmobiles have always complied with applicable safety standards in the United States and internationally.

Emissions. The federal Environmental Protection Agency (“EPA”) and the California Air Resources Board
(“CARB”) have adopted emissions regulations applicable to Polaris products.
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CARB has emission regulations for ATVs and off-road side-by-side vehicles which the Company already
meets. In October 2002, the EPA established new corporate average emission standards effective for model years
2006 through 2012 for non-road recreational vehicles including ATVs, off-road side-by-side vehicles and snow-
mobiles. The Company has developed engine and emission technologies along with its existing technology base to
meet current and future requirements. In 2002, Polaris entered into an agreement with a German manufacturer to
supply four-stroke engines that meet emission requirements for certain snowmobile models. In 2008, the EPA
modified the snowmobile emission standards for model year 2012 and the Company has developed engine and
emission technologies to meet these requirements nationwide by 2012. The EPA announced its intention to issue a
future rulemaking on snowmobiles in or around 2010 and any new emission standards under this rule are expected
to become effective after 2012.

Victory motorcycles are also subject to EPA and CARB emission standards. Polaris believes that its
motorcycles have always complied with these standards. The CARB regulations required additional motorcycle
emission reductions in model year 2008 which the Company meets. The EPA adopted the CARB emission limits in
a January 2004 rulemaking that allows an additional two model years to meet these new CARB emission
requirements on a nationwide basis. The Company has developed engine and emission technologies to meet
these requirements nationwide by 2010.

Polaris products are also subject to international laws and regulations related to emissions in places where it
sells its products outside the United States. Europe currently regulates emissions from certain of the Company’s
ATV-based products and motorcycles and the Company meets these requirements. Canada’s emission regulations
for motorcycles are similar to those in the U.S. In December 2006 Canada proposed a new regulation that would
essentially adopt the U.S. emission standards for ATVs, off-road side-by-side vehicles, and snowmobiles. These
regulations have not yet been finalized, but they are not expected to have a material effect on Polaris’ business.

Polaris believes that its Victory motorcycles, ATVs, off-road side-by-side vehicles and snowmobiles have
always complied with applicable emission standards and related regulations in the United States and internationally.
Polaris is unable to predict the ultimate impact of the adopted or proposed regulations on Polaris and its business.
Polaris is currently developing and obtaining engine and emission technologies to meet the requirements of the
future emission standards.

Use regulation. State and federal laws and regulations have been promulgated or are under consideration
relating to the use or manner of use of Polaris’ products. Some states and localities have adopted, or are considering
the adoption of, legislation and local ordinances which restrict the use of ATVs, snowmobiles and off-road
side-by-side vehicles to specified hours and locations. The federal government also has restricted the use of ATVs,
snowmobiles and side-by-side vehicles in some national parks and federal lands. In several instances this restriction
has been a ban on the recreational use of these vehicles.

Polaris is unable to predict the outcome of such actions or the possible effect on its business. Polaris believes
that its core business would be no more adversely affected than those of its competitors by the adoption of any
pending laws or regulations. Polaris continues to monitor these activities in conjunction with industry associations
and supports balanced and appropriate programs that educate the product user on safe use of its products and how to
protect the environment.

Employees

Due to the seasonality of the Polaris business and certain changes in production cycles, total employment
levels vary throughout the year. Despite such variations in employment levels, employee turnover has not been high.
During 2009, Polaris employed an average of approximately 3,000 persons, a decrease of 300 persons, from 2008.
The decrease was due to the need to adjust the production capacity and workforce due to the extremely difficult
business environment in 2009. Approximately 1,200 of Polaris employees are salaried. Polaris considers its
relations with its employees to be excellent. Polaris’ employees have not been represented by a union since July
1982.
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Available Information

Polaris’ Internet website is http://www.polarisindustries.com. Polaris makes available free of charge, on or
through its website, its annual, quarterly and current reports, and any amendments to those reports, as soon as
reasonably practicable after electronically filing such reports with the Securities and Exchange Commission.
Polaris also makes available through its website its corporate governance materials, including its Corporate
Governance Guidelines, the charters of the Audit Committee, Compensation Committee, Corporate Governance
and Nominating Committee and Technology Committee of its Board of Directors and its Code of Business Conduct
and Ethics. Any shareholder or other interested party wishing to receive a copy of these corporate governance
materials should write to Polaris Industries Inc., 2100 Highway 55, Medina, Minnesota 55340, Attention: Investor
Relations. Information contained on Polaris’ website is not part of this report.

Forward-Looking Statements

This 2009 Annual Report contains not only historical information, but also “forward-looking statements”
intended to qualify for the safe harbor provisions of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. These
“forward-looking statements” can generally be identified as such because the context of the statement will include
words such as the Company or management “believes,” “anticipates,” “expects,” “estimates” or words of similar
import. Similarly, statements that describe the Company’s future plans, objectives or goals are also forward-
looking. Forward-looking statements may also be made from time to time in oral presentations, including telephone
conferences and/or webcasts open to the public. Shareholders, potential investors and others are cautioned that all
forward-looking statements involve risks and uncertainties that could cause results in future periods to differ
materially from those anticipated by some of the statements made in this report, including the risks and uncertainties
described below under the heading entitled “Item 1A — Risk Factors” and elsewhere in this report. The risks and
uncertainties discussed in this report are not exclusive and other factors that the Company may consider immaterial
or do not anticipate may emerge as significant risks and uncertainties.

Any forward-looking statements made in this report or otherwise speak only as of the date of such statement,
and Polaris undertakes no obligation to update such statements to reflect actual results or changes in factors or
assumptions affecting such forward-looking statements. Polaris advises you, however, to consult any further
disclosures made on related subjects in future quarterly reports on Form 10-Q and current reports on Form 8-K that
are filed with or furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission.
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Executive Officers of the Registrant

Set forth below are the names of the executive officers of the Company as of February 16, 2010, their ages,
titles, the year first appointed as an executive officer of the Company, and employment for the past five years:

Name Age Title

Scott W. Wine . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 42 Chief Executive Officer

Bennett J. Morgan . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 46 President and Chief Operating Officer

Todd-Michael Balan . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 40 Vice President — Corporate Development

Wesley W. Barker . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 47 Vice President — Operations

Mark E. Blackwell . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 56 Vice President — Motorcycles

Stacy L. Bogart . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 46 Vice President — General Counsel, Compliance Officer
and Secretary

John B. Corness . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 55 Vice President — Human Resources

Michael D. Dougherty . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 42 Vice President — Global New Market Development

William C. Fisher. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 55 Vice President and Chief Information Officer

Matthew J. Homan . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 38 Vice President — Off-Road Vehicles

Michael P. Jonikas . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 49 Vice President — On-Road Vehicles, Sales and Marketing

David C. Longren . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 51 Vice President and Chief Technical Officer

Michael W. Malone . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 51 Vice President — Finance and Chief Financial Officer

Scott A. Swenson . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 46 Vice President — Snowmobiles and PG&A

Executive officers of the Company are elected at the discretion of the Board of Directors with no fixed terms.
Each of Messrs. Wine and Morgan has an employment agreement with no expiration date. There are no family
relationships between or among any of the executive officers or directors of the Company.

Mr. Wine joined Polaris Industries Inc. as Chief Executive Officer on September 1, 2008. Prior to joining
Polaris, Mr. Wine was President of Fire Safety Americas, a division of United Technologies from 2007 to August
2008. Prior to that, Mr. Wine held senior leadership positions at Danaher Corp. in the United States and Europe from
2003 to 2007, including President of its Jacob Vehicle Systems and Veeder-Roots subsidiaries, and Vice President
and General Manger, Manufacturing Programs in Europe. From 1996 to 2003, Mr. Wine held a number of
operations and executive posts, both international and domestic with Allied Signal Corporations’ Aerospace
Division.

Mr. Morgan has been President and Chief Operating Officer of the Company since April 2005; prior to that he was
Vice President and General Manager of the ATV Division of Polaris. Prior to managing the ATV Division, Mr. Morgan
was General Manager of the PG&A Division for Polaris from 1997 to 2001. He joined Polaris in 1987 and spent his early
career in various product development, marketing and operations management positions of increasing responsibility.

Mr. Balan joined Polaris in July 2009 as Vice President — Corporate Development. Prior to joining Polaris,
Mr. Balan was Director of Marketing and Strategy for United Technologies Fire & Security Business from 2007 to
June 2009. Prior to that, Mr. Balan held various marketing, general management, business development, and
strategy roles within Danaher Corp. from 2001 to 2007. Mr. Balan’s work history also includes various strategy,
marketing, and sales management roles with Emerson Electric and Colfax Corporation.

Mr. Barker joined Polaris in April 2009 as Vice President of Operations. Mr. Barker brings 20 years of
experience driving Lean operations and building efficient business cultures in Europe, Asia and North America.
Prior to joining Polaris, Mr. Barker was vice president of Global Operations for Hubbell Lighting Division from
August 2006 to March 2009 where he managed all aspects of operations, including managing plants, manufacturers
abroad, distribution centers, product engineering and technical applications. Before joining Hubbell, Mr. Barker
worked at Ingersoll-Rand Inc. for 12 years in a number of senior positions.

Mr. Blackwell has been Vice President — Motorcycles since May 2009, was Vice President — Victory
Motorcycles from October 2005 to May 2009 and was also Vice President — International Operations from
October 2005 to December 2008. Mr. Blackwell joined Polaris in September 2000 as General Manager for Victory
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Motorcycles. Mr. Blackwell has over 30 years of progressive experience in the powersports industry, beginning in
retail and working through a variety of assignments at the distributor and manufacturer levels for Japanese,
European and American companies.

Ms. Bogart has been Vice President -General Counsel and Compliance Officer of Polaris since November 2009
and Corporate Secretary since January 2010. From February 2009 to November 2009, Ms. Bogart was General
Counsel of Liberty Diversified International. From October 1999 until February 2009, Ms. Bogart held several
positions at The Toro Company, including Assistant General Counsel and Assistant Secretary. Before joining The
Toro Company, Ms. Bogart was a Senior Attorney for Honeywell Inc.

Mr. Corness has been Vice President — Human Resources of the Company since January 1999. Prior to
joining Polaris, Mr. Corness was employed by General Electric Company in various human resource positions for
nine years. Before that time, Mr. Corness held various human resource positions with Maple Leaf Foods and
Transalta Utilities.

Mr. Dougherty has been Vice President — Global New Market Development since December 2008. Prior to
this, Mr. Dougherty was Vice President and General Manager of the ATV Division since November 2007, and was
General Manager of the ATV Division since April 2005. In 2002, Mr. Dougherty accepted the position of General
Manager, International Operations. In 1998, Mr. Dougherty joined Polaris as the International Sales Manager for
Europe, Mid East and Africa. Prior to Polaris, he was employed at Trident Medical International, a trading company.

Mr. Fisher has been Vice President and Chief Information Officer since November 2007, and has been Chief
Information Officer since July 1999. He has also served as General Manager of Service overseeing all technical,
dealer, and consumer service operations since 2005. Prior to joining Polaris, Mr. Fisher was employed by MTS
Systems for 15 years in various positions in information services, software engineering, control product devel-
opment, and general management. Before that time, Mr. Fisher worked as a civil engineer for Anderson-Nichols and
he later joined Autocon Industries, where he developed process control software.

Mr. Homan has been Vice President — Off-Road Vehicles since December 2008. Prior to this, Mr. Homan was
Vice President and General Manager of the Side-by-Side Division since August 2008, General Manager of the
Side-by-Side Division since December 2005, and was Director of Marketing for the All-Terrain Vehicle Division
since joining Polaris in 2002. Prior to working at Polaris, Mr. Homan spent nearly seven years at General Mills
working in various marketing and brand management positions.

Mr. Jonikas has been Vice President — On-Road Vehicles, Sales and Marketing since May 2009, and was Vice
President — Sales and Marketing since November 2007. Mr. Jonikas joined Polaris in 2000, and during the past ten
years has held several key roles including Director of Product and Marketing Management for the ATV Division
and General Manager of the Polaris Side-by-Side Division. Prior to joining Polaris, Mr. Jonikas spent 12 years at
General Mills in numerous general management positions.

Mr. Longren has been Vice President and Chief Technical Officer since November 2007, and has been the
Chief Technical Officer since May 2006. Mr. Longren joined Polaris in January 2003 as the Director of Engineering
for the ATV Division. Prior to joining Polaris, Mr. Longren was a Vice President in the Weapons Systems Division
of Alliant Tech System and Vice President, Engineering and Marketing at Blount Spotting Equipment Group.

Mr. Malone has been Vice President — Finance and Chief Financial Officer of the Company since January
1997. From January 1997 to January 2010 Mr. Malone also served as Corporate Secretary. Mr. Malone was Vice
President and Treasurer of the Company from December 1994 to January 1997 and was Chief Financial Officer and
Treasurer of a predecessor company of Polaris from January 1993 to December 1994. Prior thereto and since 1986,
he was Assistant Treasurer of a predecessor company of Polaris. Mr. Malone joined Polaris in 1984 after four years
with Arthur Andersen LLP.

Mr. Swenson has been Vice President — Snowmobiles and PG&A since November 2007. Prior to his current
position, Mr. Swenson was General Manager of the Snowmobile Division since April 2006 and General Manager of
the PG&A Division beginning in May 2001. In 1998 Mr. Swenson joined Polaris as Assistant Treasurer. Prior to
joining Polaris, Mr. Swenson was employed in various finance positions at General Electric and Shell Oil Company.
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Item 1A. Risk Factors

The following are significant factors known to Polaris that could materially adversely affect the Company’s
business, financial condition, or operating results, as well as adversely affect the value of an investment in Polaris
common stock.

Polaris’ products are subject to extensive U.S. federal and state and international safety, environmental
and other government regulation that may require the Company to incur expenses or modify product
offerings in order to maintain compliance with the actions of regulators.

Polaris products are subject to extensive laws and regulations relating to safety, environmental and other
regulations promulgated by the U.S. federal government and individual states as well as international regulatory
authorities. Although Polaris believes that its snowmobiles, ORVs, motorcycles and LEVs have always complied
with applicable vehicle safety and emissions standards and related regulations, there can be no assurance that future
regulations will not require additional safety standards or emission reductions that would require additional
expenses and/or modification of product offerings in order to maintain such compliance. Although Polaris is unable
to predict the ultimate impact of adopted or proposed regulations on its business and operating results, Polaris
believes that its business would be no more adversely affected than those of its competitors by the adoption of any
pending laws or regulations. Polaris products are also subject to laws and regulations that restrict the use or manner
of use during certain hours and locations. Polaris continues to monitor these activities in conjunction with industry
associations and supports balanced and appropriate programs that educate the product user on safe use of its
products and how to protect the environment.

A significant adverse determination in any material product liability claim against Polaris could adversely
affect the operating results or financial condition.

The manufacture, sale and usage of our products expose us to significant risks associated with product liability
claims. Because of the high cost of product liability insurance premiums, and the historically insignificant amount
of product liability claims paid by Polaris, Polaris was self-insured from 1985 to 1996. In 1996, Polaris purchased
excess insurance coverage for catastrophic product liability claims for incidents occurring subsequent to the policy
date that exceeded its self-insured retention levels. Since September 2002, due to insurance market conditions
resulting in significantly higher proposed premium costs, Polaris has elected not to purchase insurance for product
liability losses. The estimated costs resulting from any losses are charged to expense when it is probable a loss has
been incurred and the amount of the loss is reasonably determinable.

Polaris had a product liability reserve accrual on its balance sheet of $11.4 million at December 31, 2009 for
the possible payment of pending claims related to continuing operations and $1.9 million for discontinued
operations for product liability, regulatory and other legal costs related to marine products. Polaris believes such
accruals are adequate. Polaris does not believe the outcome of any pending product liability litigation will have a
material adverse effect on the operations of Polaris. However, no assurance can be given that its historical claims
record, which did not include ATVs prior to 1985 or motorcycles and side-by-side vehicles prior to 1998, will not
change or that material product liability claims against Polaris will not be made in the future. Adverse determination
of material product liability claims made against Polaris would have a material adverse effect on Polaris’ financial
condition. See Note 8 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

Significant product repair and/or replacement due to product warranty claims or product recalls could
have a material adverse impact on the results of operations.

Polaris provides a limited warranty for ORVs for a period of six months and for a period of one year for its
snowmobiles and motorcycles. Polaris may provide longer warranties related to certain promotional programs, as
well as longer warranties in certain geographical markets as determined by local regulations and market conditions.
Polaris also provides a limited emission warranty for certain emission-related parts in its ORVs, snowmobiles, and
motorcycles as required by the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency and the California Air Resources Board.
Although Polaris employs quality control procedures, sometimes a product is distributed which needs repair or
replacement. Polaris’ standard warranties require the Company or its dealers to repair or replace defective products
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during such warranty periods at no cost to the consumer. Historically, product recalls have been administered
through Polaris’ dealers and distributors and have not had a material effect on Polaris’ business. See Note 1 of Notes
to Consolidated Financial Statements.

Changing weather conditions may reduce demand and negatively impact net sales of certain Polaris
products.

Lack of snowfall in any year in any particular geographic region may adversely affect snowmobile retail sales
and related PG&A sales in that region. Polaris seeks to minimize this potential effect by stressing pre-season sales
(see “Business — Production Scheduling” for additional discussion) and facilitate the transfer of dealer inventories
from one location to another and by balancing production to retail sales and industry conditions. However, there is
no assurance that weather conditions would not have a material effect on Polaris’ sales of ORVs, snowmobiles,
motorcycles, or PG&A.

Polaris faces intense competition in all product lines, including from some competitors that have greater
financial and marketing resources. Failure to compete effectively against competitors would negatively
impact Polaris’ business and operating results.

The snowmobile, ORV, motorcycle and LEV markets are highly competitive. Competition in such markets is
based upon a number of factors, including price, quality, reliability, styling, product features and warranties. At the
dealer level, competition is based on a number of factors including sales and marketing support programs (such as
financing and cooperative advertising). Certain Polaris competitors are more diversified and have financial and
marketing resources which are substantially greater than those of Polaris. In addition, Polaris’ products compete
with many other recreational products for the discretionary spending of consumers, and, to a lesser extent, with
other vehicles designed for utility applications. Although Polaris has been able to effectively compete with its
numerous competitors, failure to do so could have a material adverse effect on future business performance.

Termination or interruption of informal supply arrangements could have a material adverse effect on the
Company’s business or results of operations.

Pursuant to informal agreements between Polaris and Fuji in Japan, Fuji was the sole manufacturer of Polaris
two-cycle snowmobile engines from 1968 to 1995. Fuji has manufactured engines for Polaris’ ATV products since
their introduction in the spring of 1985 and is still a major supplier of engines to Polaris. Such engines are developed
by Fuji to the specific requirements of Polaris. Although Polaris has alternative sources for its engines and does not
currently have knowledge that Fuji intends to terminate supplying engines to Polaris, a termination of the supply
relationship with Fuji would materially adversely affect Polaris production until substitute supply arrangements for
the quantity of engines required by Polaris could be established. Polaris continues to develop additional sources for
engines to reduce the risk of dependence on a single supplier and to minimize the effect of fluctuations in the
Japanese yen. Polaris anticipates no significant difficulties in obtaining substitute supply arrangements for other
raw materials or components for which it relies upon limited sources of supply. There can be no assurance that
alternate supply arrangements will be made on satisfactory terms.

Fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates could result in declines in Polaris’ reported sales and
net earnings.

The changing relationships of primarily the U.S. dollar to the Canadian dollar, the Euro, the Japanese yen and
certain other foreign currencies, have from time to time had a negative impact on results of operations. While
Polaris actively manages the exposure to fluctuating foreign currency exchange rates by entering into foreign
exchange hedging contracts from time to time, these contracts hedge foreign currency denominated transactions
and any change in the fair value of the contracts would be offset by changes in the underlying value of the
transactions being hedged.
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Polaris’ business may be sensitive to economic conditions that impact consumer spending.

Polaris’ results of operations may be sensitive to changes in overall economic conditions that impact consumer
spending, including discretionary spending. Weakening of economic conditions affecting disposable consumer
income such as employment levels, business conditions, changes in housing market conditions, capital markets, tax
rates, savings rates, interest rates, fuel and energy costs, the impacts of natural disasters and acts of terrorism and
other matters including the availability of consumer credit could reduce consumer spending or reduce consumer
spending on powersports products. A general reduction in consumer spending or a reduction in consumer spending
on powersports products could adversely affect Polaris’ sales growth and profitability.

Polaris depends on dealers, suppliers, financing sources and other strategic partners who may be sensitive
to economic conditions that could affect their businesses in a manner that adversely affects the
relationship with Polaris.

The Company distributes its products through numerous dealers and distributors, sources component parts and
raw materials through numerous suppliers and has relationships with a limited number of sources of product
financing for its dealers and consumers. The Company’s sales growth and profitability could be adversely affected if
a further deterioration of economic or business conditions results in a weakening of the financial condition of a
material number of the Company’s dealers and distributors, suppliers or financing sources or if uncertainty about
the economy or the demand for the Company’s products causes these business partners to voluntarily or
involuntarily reduce or terminate their relationship with the Company.

Retail credit market deterioration and volatility may restrict the ability of Polaris’ retail customers to
finance the purchase of Polaris products and adversely affect Polaris’ income from financial services.

The Company has arrangements with each of HSBC, Sheffield and GE Bank to make retail financing available
to consumers who purchase Polaris products in the United States. During 2009 consumers financed approximately
32 percent of the Polaris vehicles sold in the United States through the HSBC revolving retail credit, and Sheffield
and GE Bank installment retail credit programs. There can be no assurance that retail financing will continue to be
available in the same amounts and under the same terms that had previously been available to Polaris customers.
HSBC ceased financing non-Polaris products under its arrangement with Polaris effective July 1, 2007 resulting in a
significant decline in the income from financial services reported by Polaris in the second half of 2007. During the
first quarter of 2008, HSBC notified the Company that the profitability to HSBC of the 2005 contractual
arrangement was unacceptable and, absent some modification of that arrangement, HSBC might significantly
tighten its underwriting standards for Polaris customers, reducing the number of qualified retail credit customers
who would be able to obtain credit from HSBC. In order to avoid the potential reduction of revolving retail credit
available to Polaris consumers, Polaris agreed to forgo the receipt of a volume based fee provided for under its
agreement with HSBC effective March 1, 2008. Management anticipates that the elimination of the volume based
fee will continue and that HSBC will continue to provide revolving retail credit to qualified customers through the
end of the contract term on October 31, 2010.

We intend to grow our business through potential acquisitions, alliances and new joint ventures and
partnerships, which could be risky and could harm our business.

One of Polaris’ growth strategies is to drive growth in our businesses and accelerate opportunities to expand
our global presence through targeted acquisitions, alliances, and new joint ventures and partnerships that add value
while considering the Company’s existing brands and product portfolio. The benefits of an acquisition or new joint
venture or partnership may take more time than expected to develop or integrate into our operations, and the
Company cannot guarantee that acquisitions, alliances, joint ventures, or partnerships will in fact produce any
benefits. In addition, acquisitions, alliances, joint ventures, and partnerships involve a number of risks, including:

• diversion of management’s attention;

• difficulties in integrating and assimilating the operations and products of an acquired business or in realizing
projected efficiencies, cost savings, and synergies;
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• potential loss of key employees or customers of the acquired businesses or adverse effects on existing
business relationships with suppliers and customers;

• adverse impact on overall profitability if acquired businesses do not achieve the financial results projected in
our valuation models;

• reallocation of amounts of capital from other operating initiatives and/or an increase in our leverage and debt
service requirements to pay the acquisition purchase prices, which could in turn restrict our ability to access
additional capital when needed or to pursue other important elements of our business strategy;

• inaccurate assessment of undisclosed, contingent or other liabilities or problems, unanticipated costs
associated with an acquisition, and an inability to recover or manage such liabilities and costs; and

• incorrect estimates made in the accounting for acquisitions, incurrence of non-recurring charges, and write-
off of significant amounts of goodwill or other assets that could adversely affect our operating results.

Polaris’ ability to grow through acquisitions will depend, in part, on the availability of suitable acquisition
targets at acceptable prices, terms, and conditions, its ability to compete effectively for these acquisition candidates,
and the availability of capital and personnel to complete such acquisitions and run the acquired business effectively.
These risks could be heightened if the Company completes a large acquisition or multiple acquisitions within a
relatively short period of time. Any potential acquisition could impair the Company’s operating results, and any
large acquisition could impair its financial condition, among other things.

The following additional factors that could have a negative effect on the future financial performance of
Polaris and its common stock are discussed in the section entitled “Item 7 Management’s Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” of this report:

• Higher dealer and factory inventories/lower shipments

• Higher commodity and transportation costs, particularly energy-related costs resulting from natural disasters

• Higher promotional incentives and floor plan financing costs

• Increases in the cost and availability of certain raw materials, including aluminum, steel and plastic resins

• Effects from the relationship with KTM related to the engine supply agreement and the impairment of the
carrying value of the KTM investment

Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments

Not Applicable.

17



Item 2. Properties

The following sets forth the Company’s material facilities as of December 31, 2009.

Location Facility Type/Use
Owned or

Leased
Square
Footage

Spirit Lake, Iowa . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Whole Goods Manufacturing Owned 258,000

Spirit Lake, Iowa . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Warehouse Leased 90,000

Milford, Iowa . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Distribution Facility Leased 87,000

Medina, Minnesota . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Headquarters Owned 130,000

Roseau, Minnesota . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Whole Goods Manufacturing and R&D Owned 635,000

Roseau, Minnesota . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Injection Molding manufacturing Owned 76,800

Roseau, Minnesota . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Warehouse (various locations) Leased 33,600

Vermillion, South Dakota . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Distribution Center Owned 385,000

Osceola, Wisconsin . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Component Parts Manufacturing Owned 188,800

Osceola, Wisconsin . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Engine Manufacturing Owned 97,000
Ballarat, Victoria, Australia . . . . . . . . . . . . Office and Distribution facility Leased 9,200

Winnipeg, Manitoba, Canada . . . . . . . . . . . Office facility Leased 12,000

Passy, France . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Office and Distribution facility Leased 10,000

Askim, Norway . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Office facility Leased 10,800

Ostersund, Sweden. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Office and Distribution facility Leased 14,300

Birmingham, United Kingdom . . . . . . . . . . Office facility Leased 6,500

Griesheim, Germany . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Office facility Leased 3,200

Wyoming, Minnesota . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Research and Development facility Owned 127,000

Eagan, Minnesota . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Wholegoods Distribution Leased 35,000

Brooklyn Park, Minnesota . . . . . . . . . . . . . Wholegoods Distribution Leased 25,000

E. Syracuse, New York . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Wholegoods Distribution Leased 40,000

Ontario, California . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Wholegoods Distribution Leased 112,000

Nashville, Tennessee . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Wholegoods Distribution Leased 37,500

Irving, Texas . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Wholegoods Distribution Leased 46,300

Spencer, Iowa . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Wholegoods Distribution Leased 45,000

Tacoma, Washington . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Wholegoods Distribution Leased 15,000

Melbourne Australia . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Retail store Leased 9,600

Barcelona, Spain . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Office facility Leased 4,300

Shanghai, China. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Sales and Purchasing Office Leased 1,500

Polaris owns substantially all tooling and machinery (including heavy presses, conventional and computer-
controlled welding facilities for steel and aluminum, assembly lines, paint lines, and sewing lines) used in the
manufacture of its products. Polaris makes ongoing capital investments in its facilities. These investments have
increased production capacity for ORVs, snowmobiles and motorcycles. The Company believes Polaris’ manu-
facturing and distribution facilities are adequate in size and suitable for its present manufacturing and distribution
needs.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

On November 13, 2009, Erik Braswell and Josh Alexander (“Plaintiffs”) sued Polaris in Colorado State
District Court in Garfield County, Colorado. In their original Complaint, Plaintiffs alleged that they and others
similarly situated had incurred repeated engine failures with Polaris model year 2006 through 2009 800cc and
900cc snowmobiles and sought certification of a class of all purchasers in the state of Colorado who had
experienced major engine failure. In an Amended Complaint served on December 1, 2009, Plaintiffs assert breach
of warranty, consumer fraud, unlawful trade practice, and false advertising claims and seek certification of a class

18



consisting of all persons in the United States who purchased or currently own a model year 2006 through 2009
Polaris snowmobile sold with a Polaris Liberty 800cc or 900cc engine. Plaintiffs are seeking consequential and
incidental damages, a refund of their purchase price, attorneys’ fees, and other legal and equitable relief. Polaris
moved the case to the United States District Court for the District of Colorado on December 11, 2009 based on the
allegations in Plaintiffs Amended Complaint and filed its Answer on December 17, 2009 denying the claims and the
class allegations. On January 7, 2010, Plaintiffs filed a motion to remand the case to state court, which is currently
pending before the federal court. On February 22, 2010, the court issued a scheduling order setting forth deadlines
for various events, including an August 2, 2010 deadline for Plaintiffs to file a motion to certify the proposed class.
The court has not set a date for trial. Management believes the claim to be without merit and intends to continue to
defend vigorously against this action but there can be no assurance that the ultimate outcome of the lawsuit will be
favorable to the Company or that the defense of the suit or its outcome will not have a material adverse effect on the
Company’s business or financial results of operation.

Item 4. (Removed and Reserved)
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PART II

Item 5. Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of
Equity Securities

The information under the caption “Other Investor Information” appearing on the inside back cover of the
Company’s 2009 Annual Report is incorporated herein by reference.

STOCK PERFORMANCE GRAPH

The graph below compares the five-year cumulative total return to shareholders (stock price appreciation plus
reinvested dividends) for the Company’s common stock with the comparable cumulative return of two indexes:
Russell 2000 Index and Morningstar’s Recreational Vehicles Industry Group Index. The graph assumes the
investment of $100 at the close on December 31, 2004 in common stock of the Company and in each of the indexes,
and the reinvestment of all dividends. Points on the graph represent the performance as of the last business day of
each of the years indicated.

Comparison of 5-Year Cumulative Total Return Among
Polaris Industries Inc., Russell 2000 Index and Recreational Vehicles Index
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2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009

Polaris Industries Inc. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $100.00 $ 75.31 $ 72.21 $ 75.73 $47.12 $ 75.38

Russell 2000 Index. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 100.00 104.55 123.76 121.82 80.66 102.58

Recreational Vehicles Industry Group
Index . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 100.00 85.32 106.75 77.03 30.05 53.15

Assumes $100 Invested at the close on December 31, 2004
Assumes Dividend Reinvestment

Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2009

Source: Morningstar, Inc.
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The table below sets forth the information with respect to purchases made by or on behalf of Polaris during the
fourth quarter of the fiscal year ended December 31, 2009.

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

Period
Total Number of
Shares Purchased

Average Price Paid
per Share

Total Number of
Shares Purchased as

Part of Publicly
Announced Program

Maximum Number
of Shares That May

Yet Be Purchased
Under the

Program(1)

October 1 - 31, 2009. . . . . . . . . 5,000 $48.74 5,000 3,809,000

November 1 - 30, 2009 . . . . . . . 0 — — 3,809,000
December 1 - 31, 2009 . . . . . . . 90,000 43.60 90,000 3,719,000

Total . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 95,000 $43.86 95,000 3,719,000

(1) The Board of Directors previously authorized a share repurchase program to repurchase up to an aggregate of
37.5 million shares of the Company’s common stock (the “Program”) as of December 31, 2009. Of that total,
approximately 33.8 million shares have been repurchased cumulatively from 1996 through December 31, 2009.
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Item 6. Selected Financial Data

The following table presents our selected financial data. The table should be read in conjunction with Item 7,
Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations, and Item 8, Financial
Statements and Supplementary Data, of this Annual Report on Form 10-K. All periods presented reflect the
classification of the marine products division’s financial results, including the loss from discontinued operations
and the loss on disposal of the division, as discontinued operations.

11-Year Selected Financial Data

(In millions, except per-share data) 2009 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
For the Years Ended December 31,

Statement of Operations Data
Sales Data:

Total sales . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $1,565.9 $1,948.3 $1,780.0 $1,656.5 $1,869.8 $1,773.2

Percent change from prior year . . . . . . . . . . . �20% 9% 7% �11% 5% 14%

Sales mix by product:

Off-Road vehicles . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 65% 67% 67% 67% 66% 66%

Snowmobiles. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 12% 10% 10% 10% 14% 16%

On-Road vehicles . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3% 5% 6% 7% 5% 4%

Parts, garments and accessories . . . . . . . . . . . 20% 18% 17% 16% 15% 14%

Gross Profit Data:
Total gross profit. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 393.2 $ 445.7 $ 393.0 $ 359.4 $ 411.0 $ 416.6

Percent of sales . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 25.1% 22.9% 22.1% 21.7% 22.0% 23.5%

Operating Expense Data:
Total operating expenses . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 245.3 $ 284.1 $ 262.3 $ 238.4 $ 244.7 $ 242.7

Percent of sales . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 15.7% 14.6% 14.7% 14.4% 13.1% 13.7%

Net Income Data:
Net income from continuing operations . . . . . . . $ 101.0 $ 117.4 $ 112.6 $ 112.8 $ 137.7 $ 132.3

Percent of sales. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 6.5% 6.0% 6.3% 6.8% 7.4% 7.5%

Diluted net income per share from continuing
operations . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 3.05 $ 3.50 $ 3.10 $ 2.72 $ 3.15 $ 2.97

Net income . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 101.0 $ 117.4 $ 111.7 $ 107.0 $ 136.7 $ 99.9

Diluted net income per share . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 3.05 $ 3.50 $ 3.07 $ 2.58 $ 3.12 $ 2.25

Cash Flow Data:
Cash flow provided by continuing operations . . . . . $ 193.2 $ 176.2 $ 213.2 $ 152.8 $ 162.5 $ 237.1

Purchase of property and equipment for continuing
operations . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 43.9 76.6 63.7 52.6 89.8 88.8

Repurchase and retirement of common stock . . . . . 4.6 107.2 103.1 307.6 132.3 66.8

Cash dividends to shareholders. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 50.2 49.6 47.7 50.2 47.0 38.9

Cash dividends per share . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 1.56 $ 1.52 $ 1.36 $ 1.24 $ 1.12 $ 0.92

Balance Sheet Data (at end of year):
Cash and cash equivalents . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 140.2 $ 27.2 $ 63.3 $ 19.6 $ 19.7 $ 138.5

Current assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 491.5 443.6 447.6 393.0 374.0 465.7

Total assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 763.7 751.1 769.9 778.8 770.6 792.9

Current liabilities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 343.1 404.8 388.2 361.4 375.6 405.2

Borrowings under credit agreements . . . . . . . . . . . 200.0 200.0 200.0 250.0 18.0 18.0

Shareholders’ equity . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 204.5 137.0 173.0 167.4 377.0 368.1
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2003 2002 2001 2000 1999
For the Years Ended December 31,

Statement of Operations Data
Sales Data:

Total sales . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $1,552.4 $1,468.2 $1,427.4 $1,327.0 $1,244.8

Percent change from prior year . . . . . . . . . . . 6% 3% 8% 7% 13%

Sales mix by product:

Off-Road vehicles . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 67% 64% 58% 62% 59%

Snowmobiles . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 15% 20% 26% 23% 25%

On-Road vehicles . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 4% 2% 1% 1% 3%

Parts, garments and accessories . . . . . . . . . . . 14% 14% 15% 14% 13%

Gross Profit Data:
Total gross profit . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 356.0 $ 324.6 $ 299.2 $ 281.3 $ 250.5

Percent of sales . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 22.9% 22.1% 21.0% 21.2% 20.1%

Operating Expense Data:
Total operating expenses . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 206.0 $ 181.8 $ 164.5 $ 153.2 $ 127.1

Percent of sales . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 13.3% 12.4% 11.5% 11.5% 10.2%

Net Income Data:
Net income from continuing operations . . . . . . . $ 115.2 $ 107.1 $ 93.8 $ 85.7 $ 81.8

Percent of sales . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 7.4% 7.3% 6.6% 6.5% 6.6%

Diluted net income per share from continuing
operations . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 2.58 $ 2.28 $ 1.99 $ 1.81 $ 1.64

Net income . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 106.3 $ 99.4 $ 87.5 $ 79.1 $ 73.5

Diluted net income per share . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 2.38 $ 2.12 $ 1.86 $ 1.67 $ 1.48

Cash Flow Data:
Cash flow provided by continuing operations . . . . . $ 162.5 $ 195.8 $ 192.0 $ 105.1 $ 134.5

Purchase of property and equipment for continuing
operations . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 59.2 52.3 52.9 61.6 60.7

Repurchase and retirement of common stock . . . . . 73.1 76.4 49.2 39.6 52.4

Cash dividends to shareholders . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 26.7 25.3 22.8 20.6 19.7

Cash dividends per share . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 0.62 $ 0.56 $ 0.50 $ 0.44 $ 0.40

Balance Sheet Data (at end of year):
Cash and cash equivalents . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 82.8 $ 81.2 $ 40.5 $ 2.4 $ 6.2

Current assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 387.7 343.7 305.3 240.9 214.7

Total assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 674.2 614.4 568.0 492.2 443.7

Current liabilities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 330.5 313.5 308.3 238.4 233.8

Borrowings under credit agreements . . . . . . . . . . . 18.0 18.0 18.0 47.1 40.0

Shareholders’ equity . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 325.7 282.8 241.6 206.7 169.9
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The following table is a reconciliation of Cash Flow Provided to Net Cash Provided by Continuing
Operations per Regulation G. The graph of Cash Flow Provided can be found in the “At a Glance” section of
Polaris’ Annual Report. (dollars in millions)

Year
Cash Flow
Provided

Deferred
Income
Taxes

Changes in
Current

Operating
Items

Net Cash
Provided by
Continuing
Operations

2000 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $129.7 $ 1.3 $(25.9) $105.1

2001 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 150.8 (10.6) 51.8 192.0

2002 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 176.9 4.3 14.6 195.8

2003 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 179.1 (8.7) (7.9) 162.5

2004 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 202.3 (1.5) 36.3 237.1

2005 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 211.4 1.6 (50.5) 162.5

2006 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 177.8 1.3 (26.3) 152.8

2007 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 189.2 (10.3) 34.3 213.2

2008 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 197.6 (1.0) (20.4) 176.2

2009 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 181.1 22.1 (10.0) 193.2

Polaris management believes that in order to properly understand Polaris’ short-term and long-term financial
trends, investors may wish to consider the change of Cash Flow Provided, adjusted for deferred income taxes and
changes in current operating items, in determining the Company’s ability to meet its current and future cash
obligations. Investors should consider these non-GAAP measures in addition to, and not as a substitute for, financial
performance measures prepared in accordance with GAAP.

Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

The following discussion pertains to the results of operations and financial position of the Company for each of
the three years in the period ended December 31, 2009, and should be read in conjunction with the Consolidated
Financial Statements and the Notes thereto included elsewhere in this report. On September 2, 2004, the Company
announced its decision to discontinue the manufacture of marine products effective immediately. The marine
products division’s financial results are reported separately as discontinued operations for all periods presented.

Executive-Level Overview

2009 was a challenging year for Polaris. Net income and diluted earnings per share decreased 14 percent and
13 percent, respectively, on a 20 percent decline in sales for the full year 2009. The unprecedented weakness in the
overall economic environment was a driving factor in our lower sales and earnings for the year. The decline in sales
impacted Polaris’ business in every region of the world where we do business. However, strong gross margin
expansion enabled Polaris to minimize the decline in earnings relative to the decrease in sales for the year. The
Company worked diligently and strategically to take significant cost out of the business in 2009. These savings were
important as we also had to overcome a $9.0 million pre-tax, or $0.18 per diluted share non-cash impairment charge
on the Company’s investment in KTM in the first quarter of 2009. While sales and earnings declined in 2009, Polaris
maintained its commitment to investing in the business to position itself favorably for the long-term.

During 2009, we combined our side-by-side and ATV business unit into an Off-Road Vehicle division, to better
leverage the resources in both of these product lines and become the true leader in market share. We provided a
necessary boost in resources and support for our Victory business by creating an On-Road division that includes our
new BreezeTM electric vehicle. On the international front, we added resources and capabilities with a Vice President
of Global New Market Development, and also assigned two General Managers to drive growth in Europe, the
Middle East and Africa, and to lead our growing presence in China. We also added resources and capabilities to our
business development efforts with a new and experienced Vice President of Business Development. We continued
to invest in our military business with new products and new customers. And investments were made in our strategic
alliances, like Bobcat, which we expect will begin contributing to the bottom line in 2010. Lastly, while most
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competitors retreated from investments in new product innovation, we launched 34 new products in 2009, that
helped us capture additional market share that will benefit the Company well into the future.

For the full year ended December 31, 2009, Polaris reported net income of $101.0 million, or $3.05 per diluted
share, compared to $117.4 million, or $3.50 per diluted share for the year ended December 31, 2008, representing a
13 percent decrease on a per diluted share basis. Sales for the full year 2009 totaled $1,565.9 million, a decrease of
20 percent compared to sales of $1,948.3 million for the full year 2008.

The Company’s product lines consist of ORVs, snowmobiles, motorcycles, LEVs and their related parts,
garments and accessories (PG&A). ORVs is the largest product line representing 65 percent of Polaris’ sales in
2009, snowmobiles accounted for 12 percent of 2009 total sales, On-Road division represented three percent and
PG&A represented 20 percent of 2009 total Company sales. The Company sells its products through a network of
1,500 dealers in North America and seven subsidiaries and 43 distributors in approximately 130 countries outside of
North America.

On January 21, 2010, the Company announced that its Board of Directors approved a three percent increase in
the regular quarterly cash dividend to $0.40 per share per quarter, representing the 15th consecutive year of
increased dividends.

Results of Operations

Sales:

Sales were $1,565.9 million for total year 2009, a 20 percent decrease from $1,948.3 million in sales for the
same period in 2008.

The following table is an analysis of the percentage change in total Company sales for 2009 compared to 2008
and 2008 compared to 2007:

2009 vs. 2008 2008 vs. 2007

Percent Change in Total
Company Sales for the Years

Ended December 31

Volume. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . �29% �2%
Product mix and price . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 10% 11%

Currency . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . �1% 0%

�20% 9%

Volume for the full year 2009 decreased 29 percent compared to the same period last year. The decrease is due
to the Company shipping fewer off-road and on-road vehicles, snowmobiles and related PG&A items to dealers
given the continued overall weak economic environment and more dealers operating under the new Max Velocity
Program (“MVP”), which inherently requires lower dealer inventory levels. Product mix and price increased for
2009 compared to 2008 primarily due to shipments of side-by-side vehicles to dealers declining less than shipments
of core ATVs during the full year 2009 compared to 2008. Side-by-side vehicles typically have a higher selling price
than core ATVs. Additionally the Company realized select selling price increases on several of the new model year
products.

Volume for the full year 2008 decreased two percent compared to the same period in 2007 as the Company
shipped fewer core ATVs and Victory motorcycles to dealers given the continued weak core ATV industry and
heavy weight cruiser and touring segment of the motorcycle industry. The lower shipments of core ATVs and
Victory motorcycles during 2008 were partially offset by higher shipments of RANGERTM side-by-side vehicles,
snowmobiles and increased PG&A sales. Product mix and price increased for 2008 compared to 2007 primarily due
to the positive benefit of a greater number of side-by-side vehicles sold to dealers, which typically have a higher
selling price than core ATVs, and select selling price increases on several of the new model year 2009 products.
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Total Company sales by product line are as follows:

($ in millions) 2009

Percent
of Total

Sales 2008

Percent
of Total

Sales

Percent
Change
2009 vs.

2008 2007

Percent
of Total

Sales

Percent
Change
2008 vs.

2007

For the Year Ended December 31,

Off-road Vehicles . . . . . . . . . . . $1,021.1 65% $1,305.8 67% �22% $1,194.6 67% 9%

Snowmobile . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 179.3 12% 205.3 10% �13% 179.2 10% 15%
On-Road Vehicles . . . . . . . . . . . 52.8 3% 93.6 5% �44% 113.1 6% �17%

PG&A. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 312.7 20% 343.6 18% �9% 293.1 17% 17%

Total Sales. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $1,565.9 100% $1,948.3 100% �20% $1,780.0 100% 9%

ORV (off-road vehicles) sales of $1,021.1 million in 2009, which includes both core ATV (all-terrain vehicles)
and RANGERTM side-by-side vehicles, decreased 22 percent from 2008. This decrease reflects the ongoing
weakness in the consumer retail environment, more dealers operating under the new Max Velocity Program
(“MVP”), which inherently requires lower dealer inventory levels, and Polaris’ continued commitment to helping
dealers reduce their core ATV inventory. North American dealer inventories of core ATVs were down significantly
at year end 2009, declining 35 percent when compared to 2008 levels. North American retail sales for ORVs
decreased in the mid-teens percentage range for the full year 2009 compared to 2008. The decrease is directly
related to the overall weak economic environment. However, Polaris again gained market share during 2009
compared to 2008, an indication of the acceptance in the marketplace of the Company’s new product introductions
in recent years.

For 2008, ORV sales of $1,305.8 million increased nine percent from 2007. The increase in 2008 sales was due
to the Company’s growing side-by-side business with the RANGER RZRTM side-by-side recreation vehicles
continuing to sell well along with the RANGER CrewTM six passenger side-by-side utility vehicles and the new
RANGER RZR STM. Additionally, the Company’s newly redesigned RANGERTM utility vehicle for model year 2009
was well received in 2008. The overall growth in side-by-side vehicles was partially offset by fewer shipments of
Polaris core ATVs to North American dealers as they continued to reduce their core ATV inventory levels in a tough
economic environment. Although the core ATV market continued to be weak, the Company remained active in new
product development with the introduction of an all new Sportsman XP for model year 2009, in both 550cc and
850cc engine displacement sizes in 2008. Polaris gained market share during 2008 compared to 2007.

Snowmobile sales decreased 13 percent to $179.3 million for 2009 compared to 2008. The decrease reflects the
continued weakness in the consumer retail environment both in North America and overseas markets. Snowmobile
sales increased 15 percent to $205.3 million for 2008 compared to 2007. The increase in 2008 reflects the lower
beginning snowmobile dealer inventory levels in 2008 compared to the prior year, good snowfall during the 2008
riding season and a benefit of product mix as more higher priced snowmobiles were shipped in 2008 compared to
2007.

Sales of the On-Road division, which primarily consists of Victory motorcycles, decreased 44 percent during
2009 compared to 2008 to $52.8 million. The decrease reflects the continued weak heavyweight cruiser and touring
motorcycle industry and the Company’s continued planned reduction in shipments of Victory motorcycles to
dealers in North America to assist their efforts to further reduce inventory levels. North American dealer inventory
of Victory motorcycles is 32 percent lower at year end 2009 compared to 2008 levels. During the second half of
2009, Polaris began shipping its new electric powered low emission vehicle, the Polaris BreezeTM, to its new
neighborhood vehicle dealer channel in master planned communities in the Sunbelt region of the United States. For
2008, sales of On-Road vehicles decreased 17 percent compared to 2007 to $93.6 million. The decrease is the result
of weak North American motorcycle industry retail sales for heavyweight cruiser and touring motorcycles in 2008,
which negatively impacted Polaris’ retail and wholesale sales during the year.

Parts, Garments, and Accessories (“PG&A”) sales decreased nine percent during 2009 compared to 2008 to
$312.7 million primarily due to the lower retail sales of Polaris vehicles during 2009; however, the decline in sales
was less than the overall Company sales decline as the large installed base of Polaris owners remain loyal to the
Polaris brand and continue to purchase PG&A for their products. During 2009, the Company continued to innovate
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with over 200 accessories introduced for model year 2010 vehicles. For 2008, sales increased 17 percent to
$343.6 million. The increase in 2008 reflects PG&A related sales growth from all product lines and geographic
regions. During 2008, the Company introduced over 260 new accessory items for 2009 model year ATV,
side-by-side and Victory motorcycle wholegood products.

Sales by geographic region for the 2009, 2008 and 2007 year end periods were as follows:

($ in millions) 2009

Percent
of Total

Sales 2008

Percent
of Total

Sales

Percent
Change
2009 vs.

2008 2007

Percent
of Total

Sales

Percent
Change
2008 vs.

2007

For the Year Ended December 31,

United States . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $1,074.2 69% $1,371.1 70% �22% $1,291.5 73% 6%

Canada . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 239.3 15% 273.0 14% �12% 231.0 13% 18%

Other foreign countries . . . . . . . 252.4 16% 304.2 16% �17% 257.5 14% 18%

Total Sales. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $1,565.9 100% $1,948.3 100% �20% $1,780.0 100% 9%

Significant regional trends were as follows:

United States:

Sales in the United States for 2009 decreased 22 percent compared to 2008. Lower shipments in all product
lines due to the overall weak economic environment was the primary reason for the decline in sales. The United
States represented 69 percent, 70 percent and 73 percent of total Company sales in 2009, 2008 and 2007,
respectively. The decrease in the percentage of total sales in the United States for the 2009 year is primarily the
result of lower shipments due to the overall weak economic environment and the Company’s strategic goal of
becoming more global. Sales in the United States for 2008 increased six percent when compared to 2007. Lower
shipments of core ATVs in the United States for 2008 were more than offset by increased shipments of RANGERTM

side-by-side vehicles.

Canada:

Canadian sales decreased 12 percent in 2009 compared to 2008. Fluctuations in the Canadian currency rate
compared to the U.S. dollar accounted for a five percent reduction in sales for 2009 compared to 2008. Decreased
volume was the primary contributor for the remainder of the decrease in 2009 due to a slowdown in the Canadian
economy. Canadian sales increased 18 percent for 2008 compared to 2007. Fluctuations in the Canadian currency
rate compared to the U.S. dollar accounted for a one percent reduction in sales for 2008 compared to 2007.
Increased volume was the primary contributor for the remainder of the increase in 2008 as the strong Canadian
economy contributed to increased ATV, RANGERTM side-by-side and snowmobile sales.

Other Foreign Countries:

Sales in other foreign countries, primarily in Europe, decreased 17 percent for 2009 compared to 2008.
Unfavorable currency rates accounted for six percent of the change for the 2009 year compared to 2008. The
remainder of the decrease was primarily driven by lower volume due to the global weak economic environment.
Sales for 2008 increased 18 percent compared to 2007. Favorable currency rates accounted for three percent of the
change for 2008 compared to 2007. The remainder of the increase was primarily driven by volume gains as the
Company increased market share, increased distribution points and increased shipments of RANGER RZRTM

side-by-side vehicles in markets outside of North America in 2008.
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Gross Profit:

The following table reflects the Company’s gross profit in dollars and as a percentage of sales for the 2009,
2008 and 2007 year end periods:

($ in millions) 2009 2008
Change

2009 vs. 2008 2007
Change

2008 vs. 2007

For the Year Ended December 31,

Gross profit dollars . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $393.2 $445.7 �12% $393.0 13%

Percentage of sales . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 25.1% 22.9% +220 basis points 22.1% +80 basis points

For the full year 2009 gross profit dollars decreased 12 percent to $393.2 million compared to 2008. Gross
profit, as a percentage of sales, improved 220 basis points to 25.1 percent compared to 22.9 percent for the full year
2008. The increase in gross profit margin percentage in 2009 resulted primarily from continued product cost
reduction efforts, lower commodity costs, product mix benefit and higher selling prices offset partially by
unfavorable currency movements. For the full year 2008 gross profit dollars increased 13 percent to $445.7 million
compared to 2007. Gross profit, as a percentage of sales, improved 80 basis points to 22.9 percent compared to
22.1 percent for the full year 2007. The increase in the gross profit margin percentage for the full year 2008 was the
result of favorable product mix from higher sales of side-by-side vehicles, PG&A and international sales and higher
selling prices, offset somewhat by higher commodity and transportation costs during 2008 compared to 2007.

Operating expenses:

The following table reflects the Company’s operating expenses in dollars and as a percentage of sales for the
2009, 2008 and 2007 periods:

($ in millions) 2009 2008
Change

2009 vs. 2008 2007
Change

2008 vs. 2007

For the Year Ended December 31,

Selling and marketing . . . . . . . . . . . . . $111.1 $137.0 �19% $123.9 11%

Research and development . . . . . . . . . . 63.0 77.5 �19% 73.6 5%

General and administrative. . . . . . . . . . 71.2 69.6 2% 64.8 7%

Total operating expenses . . . . . . . . . $245.3 $284.1 �14% $262.3 8%

Percentage of sales . . . . . . . . . . . . 15.7% 14.6% +110 basis points 14.7% �10 basis points

Operating expenses for 2009 decreased 14 percent to $245.3 million compared to $284.1 million for 2008.
Operating expenses in absolute dollars for 2009 decreased $38.8 million primarily due to continued operating cost
control measures and the reduction in performance-based incentive compensation plan expenses resulting from the
Company’s lower profitability in 2009. Operating expenses as a percentage of sales were 15.7 percent for 2009, an
increase from 14.6 percent in 2008, due primarily to lower sales volume during the 2009 year, partially offset by the
implementation of operating expense control measures. Operating expenses for 2008 increased eight percent to
$284.1 million or 14.6 percent of sales compared to $262.3 million or 14.7 percent of sales for 2007. The increase in
operating expenses was primarily due to higher advertising, product launch costs and research and development
expenses for several key new product introductions in 2008. Additionally, general and administrative expenses
increased in 2008 due to increased performance-based incentive compensation expenses as the Company’s financial
performance improved in 2008.
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Income from financial services:

The following table reflects the Company’s income from financial services for the 2009, 2008 and 2007 year
end periods:

($ in millions) 2009 2008
Change

2009 vs. 2008 2007
Change

2008 vs. 2007

For the Year Ended December 31,

Equity in earnings of Polaris Acceptance . . . . . . . . . . . $ 4.0 $ 4.6 �13% $ 5.3 �13%

Income from Securitization Facility . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 9.6 8.6 12% 8.7 �1%

Income from HSBC, Sheffield and GE Bank retail
credit agreements . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1.1 5.7 �81% 28.2 �80%

Income from other financial services activities. . . . . . . 2.4 2.3 4% 3.1 �26%

Total income from financial services . . . . . . . . . . . . $17.1 $21.2 �19% $45.3 �53%

Income from financial services decreased 19 percent to $17.1 million compared to $21.2 million in 2008.
Income from financial services for the full year 2008 decreased 53 percent to $21.2 million compared to
$45.3 million in 2007. The decrease in 2009 compared to 2008 was due to the Company’s revolving retail credit
provider, HSBC eliminating the volume-based fee income payment to Polaris as of March 1, 2008 partially offset by
higher interest rates paid to Polaris Acceptance by both Polaris and its dealers during the 2009 fourth quarter. The
decrease in 2008 compared to 2007 was due to HSBC eliminating the volume-based fee income payment in the
2008 first quarter.

Interest expense

Interest expense decreased to $4.1 million in 2009 compared to $9.6 million in 2008. The decrease in interest
expense is due to lower interest rates on the Company’s bank borrowings and lower average debt outstanding during
the 2009 period. Interest expense decreased to $9.6 million for 2008 compared to $15.1 million in 2007 due to lower
interest rates in 2008 versus 2007.

Non-cash Impairment charge on securities held for sale

The non-cash impairment charge on securities held for sale recorded in the first quarter 2009 was $9.0 million,
pretax, or $0.18 per diluted share. During the first quarter 2009, the Company determined that the decline in the
market value of the KTM shares owned by the Company was other than temporary and that the market value at that
time reflected the fair value of the investment and therefore recorded the decrease in the fair value of the investment
as a charge to the income statement as of March 31, 2009.

Gain on sale of manufacturing affiliate shares

The Gain on sale of manufacturing affiliate shares was $6.2 million for 2007. In the first and second quarters of
2007, Polaris sold shares of its KTM investment and recorded a gain on the sale of the investment.

Other expense (income), net

Non-operating other expense (income) was $0.7 million of expense, $3.9 million of income, and $3.2 million
of income for 2009, 2008, and 2007, respectively. The changes primarily relate to fluctuations of the U.S. dollar and
the resulting effects on currency hedging activities and foreign currency transactions related to the foreign
subsidiaries.

Provision for Income taxes

The Income tax provision was similar for 2009, 2008, and 2007 and reflected an effective rate of 33.2, 33.7,
and 33.9 percent of pretax income, respectively.
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Discontinued Operations

The Company ceased manufacturing marine products on September 2, 2004. As a result, the marine products
division’s financial results have been reported separately as discontinued operations for all periods presented. In
2007 the Company substantially completed the exit of the marine products division, therefore for 2008 and 2009,
there were no additional material charges incurred related to this discontinued operations event and the Company
does not expect any additional material charges in the future. For the year ended December 31, 2007, the loss from
discontinued operations was $0.9 million, after tax, or $0.03 per diluted share.

Reported Net Income

The following table reflects the Company’s reported net income for the 2009, 2008 and 2007 periods:

($ in millions) 2009 2008
Change

2009 vs. 2008 2007
Change

2008 vs. 2007

For the Year Ended December 31,

Net Income . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $101.0 $117.4 �14% $111.7 5%

Diluted net income per share . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 3.05 $ 3.50 �13% $ 3.07 14%

Weighted Average Shares Outstanding

The weighted average diluted shares outstanding for 2009, 2008 and 2007 were 33.1 million shares,
33.6 million shares and 36.3 million shares, respectively. The decrease in the average diluted shares outstanding
for each of the three years is due principally to the share repurchase activity of the Company.

Critical Accounting Policies

The significant accounting policies that management believes are the most critical to aid in fully understanding
and evaluating the Company’s reported financial results include the following: revenue recognition, sales
promotions and incentives, share-based employee compensation, dealer holdback programs, product warranties
and product liability.

Revenue recognition: Revenues are recognized at the time of shipment to the dealer, distributor or other
customers. Historically, product returns, whether in the normal course of business or resulting from repurchases
made under the floorplan financing program have not been material. However, Polaris has agreed to repurchase
products repossessed by the finance companies up to certain limits. Polaris’ financial exposure is limited to the
difference between the amount paid to the finance companies and the amount received on the resale of the
repossessed product. No material losses have been incurred under these agreements. Polaris has not historically
recorded any significant sales return allowances because it has not been required to repurchase a significant number
of units. However, an adverse change in retail sales could cause this situation to change.

Sales promotions and incentives: Polaris generally provides for estimated sales promotion and incentive
expenses, which are recognized as a reduction to sales, at the time of sale to the dealer or distributor. Examples of
sales promotion and incentive programs include dealer and consumer rebates, volume incentives, retail financing
programs and sales associate incentives. Sales promotion and incentive expenses are estimated based on current
programs and historical rates for each product line. Polaris records these amounts as a liability in the consolidated
balance sheet until they are ultimately paid. At December 31, 2009 and 2008, accrued sales promotions and
incentives were $67.1 million and $75.2 million, respectively, reflecting a reduction in units in dealer inventory and
a decrease in the core ATVand snowmobile sales promotions and incentives cost environment during 2009. Actual
results may differ from these estimates if market conditions dictate the need to enhance or reduce sales promotion
and incentive programs or if the customer usage rate varies from historical trends. Adjustments to sales promotions
and incentives accruals are made from time to time as actual usage becomes known in order to properly estimate the
amounts necessary to generate consumer demand based on market conditions as of the balance sheet date.
Historically, sales promotion and incentive expenses have been within the Company’s expectations and differences
have not been material.
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Share-Based Employee Compensation: The Company recognizes in the financial statements the grant-date
fair value of stock options and other equity-based compensation issued to employees. Determining the appropriate
fair-value model and calculating the fair value of share-based awards at the date of grant requires judgment. The
Company utilizes the Black-Scholes option pricing model to estimate the fair value of employee stock options.
Option pricing models, including the Black-Scholes model, also require the use of input assumptions, including
expected volatility, expected life, expected dividend rate, and expected risk-free rate of return. The Company
utilizes historical volatility as it believes this is reflective of market conditions. The expected life of the awards is
based on historical exercise patterns. The risk-free interest rate assumption is based on observed interest rates
appropriate for the terms of awards. The dividend yield assumption is based on the Company’s history of dividend
payouts. The Company develops an estimate of the number of share-based awards which will be forfeited due to
employee turnover. Changes in the estimated forfeiture rate can have a significant effect on reported share-based
compensation, as the effect of adjusting the rate for all expense amortization is recognized in the period the
forfeiture estimate is changed. If the actual forfeiture rate is higher or lower than the estimated forfeiture rate, then
an adjustment is made to increase or decrease the estimated forfeiture rate, which will result in a decrease or
increase to the expense recognized in the financial statements. If forfeiture adjustments are made, they would affect
the Company’s gross margin and operating expenses.

Dealer holdback programs: Polaris provides dealer incentive programs whereby at the time of shipment
Polaris withholds an amount from the dealer until ultimate retail sale of the product. Polaris records these amounts
as a liability on the consolidated balance sheet until they are ultimately paid. Payments are generally made to dealers
twice each year, in the first quarter and the third quarter, subject to previously established criteria. Polaris recorded
accrued liabilities of $72.2 million and $80.9 million for dealer holdback programs in the consolidated balance
sheets as of December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively.

Product warranties: Polaris provides a limited warranty for ORVs for a period of six months and for a period
of one year for its snowmobiles and motorcycles. Polaris may provide longer warranties related to certain
promotional programs, as well as longer warranties in certain geographical markets as determined by local
regulations and market conditions. Polaris’ standard warranties require the Company or its dealers to repair or
replace defective products during such warranty periods at no cost to the consumer. The warranty reserve is
established at the time of sale to the dealer or distributor based on management’s best estimate using historical rates
and trends. Polaris records these amounts as a liability in the consolidated balance sheet until they are ultimately
paid. At December 31, 2009 and 2008, the warranty reserve was $25.5 million and $28.6 million, respectively.
Adjustments to the warranty reserve are made from time to time based on actual claims experience in order to
properly estimate the amounts necessary to settle future and existing claims on products sold as of the balance sheet
date. While management believes that the warranty reserve is adequate and that the judgment applied is appropriate,
such amounts estimated to be due and payable could differ materially from what will actually transpire in the future.

Product liability: Polaris is subject to product liability claims in the normal course of business. Polaris self
insures its product liability claims. The estimated costs resulting from any losses are charged to operating expenses
when it is probable a loss has been incurred and the amount of the loss is reasonably determinable. The Company
utilizes historical trends and actuarial analysis tools to assist in determining the appropriate loss reserve levels. At
December 31, 2009 and 2008 the Company had accruals of $11.4 million and $11.1 million, respectively, for the
possible payment of pending claims related to continuing operations. These accruals are included in other accrued
expenses in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets. In addition, the Company had an accrual of $1.9 million
at December 31, 2009 and at December 31, 2008, for the possible payment of pending claims related to
discontinued operations. While management believes the product liability reserves are adequate, adverse deter-
mination of material product liability claims made against the Company could have a material adverse effect on
Polaris’ financial condition.

New Accounting Pronouncements

Accounting Standards CodificationTM: The Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) accounting
standards codification (“ASC”) and hierarchy of generally accepted accounting principles has become the source of
authoritative U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) recognized by the FASB to be applied by
nongovernmental entities. Rules and interpretive releases of the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”)
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under authority of federal securities laws are also sources of authoritative GAAP for SEC registrants. On the
effective date, the Codification superseded all then-existing non-SEC accounting and reporting standards. All other
non-grandfathered, non-SEC accounting literature not included in the Codification became nonauthoritative. This
Codification is effective for financial statements issued for interim and annual periods ending after September 15,
2009. The Company adopted this new standard effective September 30, 2009.

Disclosures about Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities: On January 1, 2009, Polaris adopted ASC
Topic 815 (originally issued as Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 161, “Disclosures about
Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities” as amended). ASC 815 changes the disclosure requirements for
derivative instruments and hedging activities. Entities are required to provide enhanced disclosures about 1) how
and why an entity uses derivative instruments, 2) how derivative instruments and related hedged items are
accounted for and 3) how derivative instruments and related hedged items affect an entity’s financial position,
financial performance, and cash flows. This guidance is effective for financial statements issued for fiscal years and
interim periods beginning after November 15, 2008. The required disclosures are included in Note 9, “Derivative
Instruments and Hedging Activities”.

Fair Value Measurements: In September 2006, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued
ASC Topic 820, (originally issued as Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 157, “Fair Value
Measurements”). Topic 820 defines fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value in generally
accepted accounting principles and expands disclosures about fair value measurements. Topic 820 applies
whenever other standards require (or permit) assets or liabilities to be measured at fair value but does not expand
the use of fair value in any new circumstances. The FASB deferred the implementation of Topic 820 for non-
financial assets and liabilities until fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2008. The remaining provisions of
Topic 820 were required for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007. The adoption of Topic 820 did not
have a material impact on the consolidated financial statements.

Fair Value Option for Assets and Liabilities: In February 2007, the FASB issued ASC Topic 825 (originally
issued as SFAS No. 159, “The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities”). Topic 825 permits
companies, at their election, to measure specified financial instruments and warranty and insurance contracts at fair
value on a contract-by-contract basis, with changes in fair value recognized in earnings each reporting period. The
election, called the “fair value option,” will enable some companies to reduce the volatility in reported earnings
caused by measuring related assets and liabilities differently. ASC 825 was effective for fiscal years beginning after
November 15, 2007. The Company did not elect to apply the provisions of Topic 825 to any financial assets or
liabilities.

Subsequent Events: In 2009, the Company adopted the provisions of ASC 855, originally issued as SFAS
165, “Subsequent Events”, which was effective for interim and annual periods after June 15, 2009 and amended on
February 24, 2010. This Statement incorporates guidance into accounting literature that was previously addressed
only in auditing standards. The statement refers to subsequent events that provide additional evidence about
conditions that existed at the balance-sheet date as “recognized subsequent events”. Subsequent events which
provide evidence about conditions that arose after an issuer’s most recent balance-sheet date but prior to the
issuance of its most recent financial statements are referred to as “non-recognized subsequent events”. It also
requires companies to evaluate subsequent events through the date the financial statements were issued. See Note
12, “Subsequent Events”.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Polaris’ primary sources of funds have been cash provided by operating activities and borrowings under its
credit arrangements. Polaris’ primary uses of funds have been for repayments under the credit agreement,
repurchase and retirement of common stock, capital investments, cash dividends to shareholders and new product
development.

32



The following chart summarizes the cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities for the
twelve months ended December 31, 2009 and 2008 ($ in millions):

2009 2008 Change

For the Twelve Months Ended
December 31

Total cash provided by (used for):

Operating activities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $193.2 $ 175.7 $ 17.5

Investment activities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ (29.7) $ (69.7) $ 40.0

Financing activities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ (50.4) $(142.2) $ 91.8

Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $113.1 $ (36.2) $149.3

For the year ended December 31, 2009, Polaris generated net cash from operating activities of $193.2 million
compared to net cash from operating activities of $175.7 million in the same period of 2008, an increase of
10 percent. The $17.5 million increase in net cash provided by operating activities from continuing operations for
the year ended 2009 compared to the same period in 2008 is primarily due to a $16.4 million decrease in net income
offset by the following changes in operating activities:

• Inventories provided cash in 2009 of $43.0 million compared to a use of cash totaling $4.0 million in 2008.
The increase in the net cash provided of $47.0 million was due to lower factory inventory levels as
production was reduced to meet the lower demand for sales in 2009 and improved supply chain and
manufacturing flexibility compared to 2008.

• Accrued expenses were a use of cash in 2009 totaling $24.8 million compared to a use of cash totaling
$7.5 million in 2008. The increase in the net cash used of $17.3 million resulted from lower provisioning
primarily for sales promotions and incentives and incentive compensation plans due to lower sales and
profits in 2009.

• Income taxes payable/receivable and deferred income taxes provided cash in 2009 totaling $29.8 million
compared to a use of cash totaling $10.5 million in 2008. The increase in the net cash provided of
$40.3 million was primarily due to lower taxable income and lower income tax payments in 2009 compared
to 2008.

• Accounts payable was a use of cash totaling $40.3 million in 2009 compared to cash provided of
$25.9 million in 2008. The increase in the net cash used of $66.2 million was from the timing of payments
made for accounts payable for 2009 compared to 2008 and the lower factory production and inventory levels
in 2009.

• Trade receivables provided cash totaling $8.2 million in 2009 compared to cash used of $15.7 million in
2008. The increase in the net cash provided of $23.9 million was due to the lower sales and timing of
collections of the trade receivables in 2009 compared to 2008.

Investing activities:

Net cash used for investing activities was $29.7 million for 2009 compared to cash used totaling $69.7 million
for 2008. The primary use of cash in 2009 and 2008 was the investment in property and equipment of $43.9 million
and $76.6 million respectively.

Financing activities:

Net cash used for financing activities was $50.4 million for 2009 compared to $142.2 million in 2008. In 2009,
the Company used cash for financing activities to pay cash dividends of $50.2 million and repurchase shares of
common stock for $4.6 million. In 2008, the Company used cash for financing activities to pay cash dividends of
$49.6 million and repurchase shares of common stock for $107.2 million.

The seasonality of production and shipments causes working capital requirements to fluctuate during the year.
Polaris is party to an unsecured variable interest rate bank lending agreement that matures on December 2, 2011,
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comprised of a $250 million revolving loan facility for working capital needs and a $200 million term loan. The
$200 million term loan was utilized in its entirety in December 2006 principally to fund an accelerated share
repurchase transaction. Borrowings under the agreement bear interest based on LIBOR or “prime” rates plus a
margin, as defined (effective rate was 0.79 percent at December 31, 2009). At December 31, 2009 and 2008, Polaris
had total outstanding borrowings under the agreement of $200.0 million. The Company’s debt to total capital ratio
was 49 percent at December 31, 2009 and 59 percent at December 31, 2008.

As of December 31, 2009, Polaris has entered into the following interest rate swap agreements to manage
exposures to fluctuations in interest rates by fixing the LIBOR interest rate as follows:

Year Swap
Entered into

Fixed Rate
(LIBOR)

Notional
Amount

Expiration
Date

2008 2.69% $25,000,000 October 2010

2009 1.34% $25,000,000 April 2011

2009 0.64% $25,000,000 October 2010

2009 0.98% $25,000,000 April 2011

Each of these interest rate swaps were designated as and met the criteria of cash flow hedges. The fair value of
the interest rate swap agreements on December 31, 2009 was a liability of $699,000.

The following table summarizes the Company’s significant future contractual obligations at December 31,
2009 (in millions):

Total G1 Year 1-3 Years H3 Years

Borrowings under credit agreement:

Revolving loan facility . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 0.0 — — —

Term loan . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 200.0 — $200.0 —

Interest expense under term loan and swap agreements. . . . . . . . . . 4.2 $2.6 1.6 —

Engine purchase commitments. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 4.4 4.4 — —

Operating leases . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 6.4 2.5 2.7 1.2

Total . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $215.0 $9.5 $204.3 $1.2

Additionally, at December 31, 2009, Polaris had letters of credit outstanding of $12.0 million related to
purchase obligations for raw materials. Not included in the above table is unrecognized tax benefits of $5.0 million.

The Polaris Board of Directors authorized the cumulative repurchase of up to 37.5 million shares of the
Company’s common stock through December 31, 2009. Of that total, approximately 33.8 million shares were
repurchased cumulatively from 1996 through December 31, 2009. Polaris paid $4.6 million to repurchase and retire
approximately 0.1 million shares during 2009. The share repurchase activity during 2009 had no impact on earnings
per share for the year ended December 31, 2009. The Company has authorization from its Board of Directors to
repurchase up to an additional 3.7 million shares of Polaris stock at December 31, 2009, which represents
approximately 11 percent of the total shares currently outstanding.

Polaris has arrangements with certain finance companies (including Polaris Acceptance) to provide secured
floor plan financing for its dealers. These arrangements provide liquidity by financing dealer purchases of Polaris
products without the use of Polaris’ working capital. During 2006 Polaris modified its agreement with GE
Commercial Distribution Finance Corporation (“GECDF”) to finance Polaris’ Canadian dealers’ purchases of
PG&A in addition to financing the Canadian dealers’ wholegood purchases. A majority of the worldwide sales of
snowmobiles, ORVs, motorcycles and related PG&A are financed under these arrangements whereby Polaris
receives payment within a few days of shipment of the product. The amount financed by worldwide dealers under
these arrangements at December 31, 2009 and 2008, was approximately $714.8 million and $829.1 million,
respectively. Polaris participates in the cost of dealer financing up to certain limits. Polaris has agreed to repurchase
products repossessed by the finance companies up to an annual maximum of no more than 15 percent of the average
month-end balances outstanding during the prior calendar year. Polaris’ financial exposure under these agreements
is limited to the difference between the amounts unpaid by the dealer with respect to the repossessed product plus

34



costs of repossession and the amount received on the resale of the repossessed product. No material losses have been
incurred under these agreements. However, an adverse change in retail sales could cause this situation to change and
thereby require Polaris to repurchase repossessed units subject to the annual limitation referred to above.

In 1996, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Polaris entered into a partnership agreement with a subsidiary of TDF to
form Polaris Acceptance. In 2004, TDF was merged with a subsidiary of General Electric Company and, as a result
of that merger, TDF’s name was changed to GECDF. Polaris Acceptance provides floor plan financing to Polaris’
dealers in the United States. Polaris’ subsidiary has a 50 percent equity interest in Polaris Acceptance. In November
2006, Polaris Acceptance sold a majority of its receivable portfolio to a securitization facility arranged by General
Electric Capital Corporation, a GECDF affiliate (“Securitization Facility”), and the partnership agreement was
amended to provide that Polaris Acceptance would continue to sell portions of its receivable portfolio to the
Securitization Facility from time to time on an ongoing basis. At December 31, 2009 and 2008, the outstanding
balance of receivables sold by Polaris Acceptance to the Securitization Facility (the “Securitized Receivables”)
amounted to approximately $385.8 million and $509.0 million, respectively. The sale of receivables from Polaris
Acceptance to the Securitization Facility is accounted for in Polaris Acceptance’s financial statements as a “true-
sale” under ASC Topic 860, (originally issued as SFAS No. 140: “Accounting for Transfers and Servicing of
Financial Assets and Extinguishments of Liabilities”). Polaris Acceptance is not responsible for any continuing
servicing costs or obligations with respect to the Securitized Receivables. The remaining portion of the receivable
portfolio is recorded on Polaris Acceptance’s books, and is funded to the extent of 85 percent through a loan from an
affiliate of GECDF (which at December 31, 2009 and 2008 was approximately $83.9 million and $78.0 million,
respectively). Polaris has not guaranteed the outstanding indebtedness of Polaris Acceptance or the Securitized
Receivables. In addition, the two partners of Polaris Acceptance share equally an equity cash investment equal to
15 percent of the sum of the portfolio balance in Polaris Acceptance plus the Securitized Receivables. Polaris’ total
investment in Polaris Acceptance at December 31, 2009 and 2008, was $41.3 million and $51.6 million,
respectively. The Polaris Acceptance partnership agreement provides for periodic options for renewal, purchase,
or termination by either party. Substantially all of Polaris’ U.S. sales are financed through Polaris Acceptance and
the Securitization Facility whereby Polaris receives payment within a few days of shipment of the product. The
partnership agreement provides that all income and losses of the Polaris Acceptance portfolio and income and
losses realized by GECDF’s affiliates with respect to the Securitized Receivables are shared 50 percent by Polaris’
wholly-owned subsidiary and 50 percent by GECDF. Polaris’ exposure to losses associated with respect to the
Polaris Acceptance Portfolio and the Securitized Receivables is limited to its equity in its wholly -owned subsidiary
that is a partner in Polaris Acceptance.

Polaris’ investment in Polaris Acceptance is accounted for under the equity method, and is recorded as
Investments in finance affiliate in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets. Polaris’ allocable share of the
income of Polaris Acceptance and the Securitized Receivables has been included as a component of Income from
financial services in the accompanying consolidated statements of income. At December 31, 2009, Polaris
Acceptance’s wholesale portfolio receivables from dealers in the United States (excluding the Securitized
Receivables) was $167.5 million, a 16 percent decrease from $199.0 million at December 31, 2008. Including
the Securitized Receivables, the wholesale receivables from dealers in the United States at December 31, 2009 was
$555.0 million, a 22 percent decrease from $709.7 million at December 31, 2008. Credit losses in the Polaris
Acceptance portfolio have been modest, averaging less than one percent of the portfolio over the life of the
partnership.

In August 2005, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Polaris entered into a multi-year contract with HSBC, formerly
known as Household Bank (SB), N.A., under which HSBC manages the Polaris private label credit card program
under the StarCard label, which until July 2007 included providing retail credit for non-Polaris products. The
agreement provides for income to be paid to Polaris based on a percentage of the volume of revolving retail credit
business generated. HSBC ceased financing non-Polaris products under its arrangement with Polaris effective
July 1, 2007 resulting in a significant decline in the income from financial services reported by Polaris in the second
half of 2007. During the first quarter of 2008, HSBC notified the Company that the profitability to HSBC of the
contractual arrangement was unacceptable and, absent some modification of that arrangement, HSBC might
significantly tighten its underwriting standards for Polaris customers, reducing the number of qualified retail credit
customers who would be able to obtain credit from HSBC. In order to avoid the potential reduction of revolving
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retail credit available to Polaris consumers, Polaris began to forgo the receipt of a volume based fee provided for
under its agreement with HSBC effective March 1, 2008. Management currently anticipates that the elimination of
the volume based fee will continue and that HSBC will continue to provide revolving retail credit to qualified
customers through the end of the contract term on October 31, 2010.

In April 2006, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Polaris entered into a multi-year contract with GE Money Bank
(“GE Bank”) under which GE Bank makes available closed-end installment consumer and commercial credit to
customers of Polaris dealers for Polaris products. Polaris’ income generated from the GE Bank agreement has been
included as a component of Income from financial services in the accompanying consolidated statements of
income.

In January 2009, a wholly owned subsidiary of Polaris entered into a multi-year contract with Sheffield
Financial (“Sheffield”) pursuant to which Sheffield agreed to make available closed-end installment consumer
credit to customers of Polaris dealers for Polaris products in the United States. Polaris’ income generated from the
Sheffield agreement has been included as a component of Income from financial services in the accompanying
consolidated statements of income.

During 2009 consumers financed approximately 32 percent of Polaris vehicles sold in the United States
through the combined HSBC revolving retail credit and GE Bank and Sheffield installment retail credit arrange-
ments, while the volume of revolving and installment credit contracts written in calendar year 2009 was
$425.6 million, a 33 percent decrease from 2008. The income generated from the HSBC, GE Bank and Sheffield
retail credit agreements in 2010 is expected to be similar to the 2009 income generated.

In 2005 Polaris invested in Austrian motorcycle manufacturer KTM by purchasing a 25 percent interest in that
company from a third party for $85.4 million including transaction costs. Additionally, Polaris and KTM’s largest
shareholder, Cross Industries AG (“Cross”), entered into an option agreement which provided that under certain
conditions in 2007, either Cross could purchase Polaris’ interest in KTM or, alternatively, Polaris could purchase
Cross’ interest in KTM. In December 2006, Polaris and Cross cancelled the option agreement and entered into a
share purchase agreement for the sale by the Company of approximately 1.38 million shares of KTM, or
approximately 80 percent of its investment in KTM, to a subsidiary of Cross. The agreement provided for
completion of the sale of the KTM shares in two stages during the first half of 2007. On June 15, 2007, Polaris
completed the second and final closing of its sale of KTM shares to Cross under the terms of the December 2006
agreement as supplemented on February 20, 2007, generating combined proceeds of $77.1 million including a total
gain of $6.2 million. Polaris now holds ownership of approximately 0.34 million shares, representing slightly less
than 5 percent of KTM’s outstanding shares.

Improvements in manufacturing capacity and product development during 2009 included $21.2 million of
tooling expenditures for new product development across all product lines. Polaris anticipates that capital
expenditures for 2010, including tooling and research and development equipment, will range from $50.0 million
to $55.0 million.

Management believes that existing cash balances, cash flows to be generated from operating activities and
available borrowing capacity under the line of credit arrangement will be sufficient to fund operations, regular
dividends, share repurchases, and capital expenditure requirements for 2010. At this time, management is not aware
of any factors that would have a material adverse impact on cash flow beyond 2010.

Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk

Inflation, Foreign Exchange Rates, Equity Prices and Interest Rates

Commodity inflation has had an impact on the Company’s results of operations in 2009. The changing
relationships of the U.S. dollar to the Canadian dollar, Euro and Japanese yen have also had a material impact from
time-to-time.

During 2009, purchases totaling seven percent of Polaris’ cost of sales were from Japanese yen denominated
suppliers. The impact of the Japanese yen exchange rate fluctuation on Polaris’ raw material purchase prices and
cost of sales in 2009 had a negative financial impact when compared to the prior year. At December 31, 2009 Polaris
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had Japanese yen foreign exchange hedging contracts in place for approximately 25 percent of its exposure through
the first half of 2010 with notional amounts totaling $6.1 million at an average exchange rate of 91 Japanese Yen to
the U.S. dollar. Polaris anticipates that the yen-dollar exchange rate fluctuation will again have a negative impact on
cost of sales during 2010 when compared to 2009.

Polaris operates in Canada through a wholly-owned subsidiary. Sales of the Canadian subsidiary comprised
15 percent of total Polaris sales in 2009. From time to time, Polaris utilizes foreign exchange hedging contracts to
manage its exposure to the Canadian dollar. The U.S. dollar strengthened in relation to the Canadian dollar in 2009
which resulted in a net negative financial impact on Polaris sales and gross margins for the full year 2009 when
compared to 2008. At December 31, 2009 Polaris had open Canadian dollar foreign exchange hedging contracts in
place for approximately 50 percent of its exposure through the first half of 2010 with notional amounts totaling
$24.7 million with an average exchange rate of approximately 0.93 U.S. dollar to Canadian dollar. In view of the
current exchange rates and the foreign exchange hedging contracts currently in place, Polaris anticipates that the
Canadian dollar exchange rate fluctuation will have a positive impact on sales and gross margins during 2010 when
compared to 2009.

Polaris operates in various countries, principally in Europe, through wholly owned subsidiaries and also sells
to certain distributors in other countries and purchases components from certain suppliers directly from its
U.S. operations in transactions denominated in Euros and other foreign currencies. The fluctuation of the U.S. dollar
in relation to the Euro and other currencies has resulted in an unfavorable impact on gross margins for 2009 when
compared to 2008. At December 31, 2009 Polaris had open Norwegian Krone and Swedish Krona foreign exchange
contracts in place through the first half of 2010, and Australian Dollar foreign exchange hedging contracts in place
through the full year 2010. The open Norwegian Krone contracts had notional amounts totaling $2.1 million with an
average exchange rate of approximately .17 U.S. dollar to Norwegian Krone; the open Swedish Krona contracts had
notional amounts totaling $4.1 million with an average exchange rate of approximately .15 U.S. dollar to the
Swedish Krona; and the open Australian Dollar contracts had notional amounts totaling $5.4 million with an
average exchange rate of approximately .86 U.S. dollar to the Australian Dollar. In view of the current exchange
rates and the foreign exchange hedging contracts currently in place, Polaris anticipates that the exchange rates for
other foreign currencies including the Norwegian Krone, Swedish Krona and Australian Dollar, will have a slightly
positive impact on sales and gross margins for 2010 when compared to 2009.

The assets and liabilities in all Polaris foreign entities are translated at the foreign exchange rate in effect at the
balance sheet date. Translation gains and losses are reflected as a component of Accumulated other comprehensive
income (loss), net in the Shareholders’ Equity section of the accompanying consolidated balance sheets. Revenues
and expenses in all Polaris foreign entities are translated at the average foreign exchange rate in effect for each
month of the quarter.

Polaris is subject to market risk from fluctuating market prices of certain purchased commodities and raw
materials including steel, aluminum, fuel, natural gas, and petroleum-based resins. In addition, the Company is a
purchaser of components and parts containing various commodities, including steel, aluminum, rubber and others
which are integrated into the Company’s end products. While such materials are typically available from numerous
suppliers, commodity raw materials are subject to price fluctuations. The Company generally buys these com-
modities and components based upon market prices that are established with the vendor as part of the purchase
process.

The Company generally attempts to obtain firm pricing from most of its suppliers for volumes consistent with
planned production. To the extent that commodity prices increase and the Company does not have firm pricing from
its suppliers, or its suppliers are not able to honor such prices, the Company may experience gross margin declines
to the extent it is not able to increase selling prices of its products. At December 31, 2009, Polaris has diesel fuel
hedging contracts in place to hedge approximately 40 percent of the Company’s expected exposure for 2010. These
diesel fuel contracts did not meet the criteria for hedge accounting and the resulting unrealized gain as of
December 31, 2009 was $0.2 million pretax, which was included in the consolidated statements of income as a
component of cost of sales. Polaris also has aluminum hedging contracts in place to hedge approximately 50 percent
of the Company’s expected exposure for 2010. These aluminum contracts did not meet the criteria for hedge
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accounting and the resulting unrealized gain as of December 31, 2009 was $3.3 million pretax, which was included
in the consolidated statements of income as a component of cost of sales.

Polaris is a party to a credit agreement with various lenders consisting of a $250 million revolving loan facility
and a $200 million term loan. Interest accrues on both the revolving loan and the term loan at variable rates based on
LIBOR or “prime” plus the applicable add-on percentage as defined. Additionally, as of December 31, 2009, Polaris
is a party to four interest rate swap agreements that lock in a fixed Libor interest rate on a total of $100.0 million of
borrowings. The Company is exposed to interest rate changes on any borrowings during the year in excess of
$100.0 million. Based upon the average outstanding line of credit borrowings of $268.1 million during 2009, the
0.79 percent interest rate charged to Polaris at December 31, 2009 and the interest rate swap agreements, a one-
percent increase in interest rates would have had an approximately $1.7 million impact on interest expense in 2009
and a 0.79 percent decrease in interest rates would have had an approximately $1.3 million impact on interest
expense in 2009.

Polaris has been manufacturing its own engines for selected models of snowmobiles since 1995, motorcycles
since 1998 and ORVs since 2001 at its Osceola, Wisconsin facility. Also, in 1995, Polaris entered into an agreement
with Fuji to form Robin. Under the terms of the agreement, Polaris has a 40 percent ownership interest in Robin,
which builds engines in the United States for recreational and industrial products. Potential advantages to Polaris of
having these additional sources of engines include reduced foreign exchange risk, lower shipping costs and less
dependence in the future on a single supplier for engines.

Polaris holds approximately 0.34 million KTM shares which have been classified as available for sale
securities under ASC Topic 320, (originally issued as FASB Statement 115, Accounting for Certain Investments in
Debt and Equity Securities). The shares have a fair value equal to the trading price of KTM shares on the Vienna
stock exchange, (16.50 Euros as of December 31, 2009). The total fair value of these securities as of December 31,
2009 is $8.2 million and unrealized holding losses of $0.4 million (net of tax of $0.2 million) relating to these
securities are included as a component of Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) in the December 31,
2009 consolidated balance sheet. In accordance with Topic 320, the Company assessed the situation where the fair
value of the KTM shares has dropped below the cost basis of the shares. During the 2009 first quarter the Company
determined that the decline in the market value of the KTM shares was other than temporary and that the market
value at the end of the 2009 first quarter reflected the fair value of the investment at that time and therefore recorded
a $9.0 million, pretax, or $0.18 per diluted share non-cash impairment charge on securities held for sale. Based upon
the expected limited duration of the KTM share price decline since the first quarter 2009 and the Company’s ability
and intent to retain this investment, the Company has classified the current impairment of this investment as
temporary and has recorded the unrealized holding loss as a component of Accumulated other comprehensive
income (loss) rather than in the income statement.
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Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

Management’s Report on Company’s Internal Control over Financial Reporting

Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining an adequate system of internal control over
financial reporting of the Company. This system is designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
United States generally accepted accounting principles.

The Company’s internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (i) pertain
to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the Company; (ii) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as
necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting prin-
ciples, and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of
management and directors of the Company; and (iii) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely
detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company’s assets that could have a material effect
on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting can only provide reasonable
assurance and may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to
future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that
the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Management conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness of the system of internal control over financial
reporting as of December 31, 2009. In making this evaluation, management used the criteria set forth by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO) in Internal Control — Integrated
Framework. Based on management’s evaluation and those criteria, management concluded that the Company’s
system of internal control over financial reporting was effective as of December 31, 2009.

Management’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2009 has been audited by Ernst &
Young LLP, an independent registered public accounting firm, as stated in their report in which they expressed an
unqualified opinion, which report appears on the following page.

Scott W. Wine
Chief Executive Officer

Michael W. Malone
Vice President of Finance,

Chief Financial Officer

March 1, 2010

Further discussion of the Company’s internal controls and procedures is included in Item 9A of this report,
under the caption “Controls and Procedures.”
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Report Of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
on Company’s Internal Control over Financial Reporting

The Board of Directors and Shareholders
Polaris Industries Inc.

We have audited Polaris Industries Inc.’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2009,
based on criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission (the COSO criteria). Polaris Industries Inc.’s management is respon-
sible for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of
internal control over financial reporting included in the accompanying Management’s Report on Company’s
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the company’s internal
control over financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audit
included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material
weakness exists, testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the
assessed risk, and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe
that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control over financial reporting
includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made
only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect
misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that
controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions or that the degree of compliance with the policies
or procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, Polaris Industries Inc. maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over
financial reporting as of December 31, 2009, based on the COSO criteria.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States), the consolidated balance sheets of Polaris Industries Inc. and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2009
and 2008, and the related consolidated statements of income, shareholders’ equity and comprehensive income, and
cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2009, and our report dated March 1, 2010,
expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.

Minneapolis, Minnesota
March 1, 2010
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Report Of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
on Consolidated Financial Statements

The Board of Directors and Shareholders
Polaris Industries Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Polaris Industries Inc. and subsidiaries (the
Company) as of December 31, 2009 and 2008, and the related consolidated statements of income, shareholders’
equity and comprehensive income, and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31,
2009. Our audits also included the financial statement schedule listed in the index at Item 15. These financial
statements and the schedule are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express
an opinion on these financial statements and the schedule based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
consolidated financial position of Polaris Industries Inc. and subsidiaries at December 31, 2009 and 2008, and
the consolidated results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended
December 31, 2009, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. Also, in our opinion, the
related financial statement schedule, when considered in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole,
presents fairly in all material respects the information set forth therein.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States), Polaris Industries Inc.’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2009, based on
criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Orga-
nizations of the Treadway Commission, and our report dated March 1, 2010, expressed an unqualified opinion
thereon.

Minneapolis, Minnesota
March 1, 2010
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POLARIS INDUSTRIES INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

(In thousands, except per share data)

2009 2008
December 31,

ASSETS
Current Assets:

Cash and cash equivalents . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 140,240 $ 27,127
Trade receivables, net . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 90,405 98,598
Inventories, net . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 179,315 222,312
Prepaid expenses and other . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 20,638 14,924
Income taxes receivable . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — 4,521
Deferred tax assets. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 60,902 76,130

Total current assets. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 491,500 443,612
Property and Equipment:

Land, buildings and improvements . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 118,304 117,396
Equipment and tooling . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 454,023 478,793

572,327 596,189
Less accumulated depreciation . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (377,911) (380,552)

Property and equipment, net . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 194,416 215,637
Investments in finance affiliate . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 41,332 51,565
Investments in manufacturing affiliates . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 10,536 15,641
Goodwill, net . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 25,869 24,693

Total Assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 763,653 $ 751,148

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Current Liabilities:

Accounts payable. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 75,657 $ 115,986
Accrued expenses:

Compensation . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 55,313 56,567
Warranties . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 25,520 28,631
Sales promotions and incentives . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 67,055 75,211
Dealer holdback . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 72,229 80,941
Other . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 38,748 42,274

Income taxes payable . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 6,702 3,373
Current liabilities of discontinued operations. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1,850 1,850

Total current liabilities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 343,074 404,833
Long term income taxes payable . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 4,988 5,103
Deferred income taxes . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 11,050 4,185
Borrowings under credit agreement . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 200,000 200,000

Total liabilities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 559,112 614,121

Shareholders’ Equity:
Preferred stock $0.01 par value, 20,000 shares authorized, no shares issued and

outstanding . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — —
Common stock $0.01 par value, 80,000 shares authorized, 32,648 and

32,492 shares issued and outstanding . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 326 325
Additional paid-in capital . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 9,992 —
Retained earnings . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 191,399 140,559
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss), net . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2,824 (3,857)

Total shareholders’ equity. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 204,541 137,027

Total Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 763,653 $ 751,148

The accompanying footnotes are an integral part of these consolidated statements.
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POLARIS INDUSTRIES INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

(In thousands, except per share data)

2009 2008 2007
For the Years Ended December 31,

Sales . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $1,565,887 $1,948,254 $1,780,009

Cost of sales . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1,172,668 1,502,546 1,386,989

Gross profit . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 393,219 445,708 393,020

Operating expenses

Selling and marketing . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 111,137 137,035 123,897

Research and development . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 62,999 77,472 73,587

General and administrative . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 71,184 69,607 64,785

Total operating expenses . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 245,320 284,114 262,269

Income from financial services . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 17,071 21,205 45,285

Operating Income . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 164,970 182,799 176,036

Non-operating expense (Income):

Interest expense . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 4,111 9,618 15,101

Impairment charge on securities held for sale. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 8,952 — —

(Gain) on sale of manufacturing affiliate shares . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — — (6,222)

Other expense (income), net . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 733 (3,881) (3,179)

Income before income taxes . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 151,174 177,062 170,336

Provision for income taxes . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 50,157 59,667 57,738

Net Income from continuing operations . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 101,017 117,395 112,598

Loss from discontinued operations, net of tax . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — — (948)

Net Income . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 101,017 $ 117,395 $ 111,650

Basic Net Income per share

Continuing operations . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 3.12 $ 3.58 $ 3.20
Loss from discontinued operations . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — — (0.03)

Net Income . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 3.12 $ 3.58 $ 3.17

Diluted Net Income per share

Continuing operations . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 3.05 $ 3.50 $ 3.10

Loss from discontinued operations . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — — (0.03)

Net Income . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 3.05 $ 3.50 $ 3.07

Weighted average shares outstanding:

Basic . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 32,399 32,770 35,236

Diluted . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 33,074 33,564 36,324

All periods presented reflect the classification of the marine division financial results as discontinued operations
The accompanying footnotes are an integral part of these consolidated statements.
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POLARIS INDUSTRIES INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS’

EQUITY AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
(In thousands, except per share data)

Number
of Shares

Common
Stock

Additional
Paid-In Capital

Retained
Earnings

Accumulated Other
Comprehensive
Income (Loss) Total

Balance, December 31, 2006 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 35,455 $355 — $152,219 $ 14,797 $ 167,371
Employee stock compensation . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 210 2 19,757 19,759
Proceeds from stock issuances under employee

plans . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 450 4 11,725 11,729
Tax effect of exercise of stock options. . . . . . . . . 2,232 2,232
Cash dividends declared ($1.36 per share) . . . . . . (47,739) (47,739)
Repurchase and retirement of common shares . . . (1,903) (19) (33,714) (69,367) (103,100)
Comprehensive income:

Net Income . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 111,650
Foreign currency translation adjustments, net . . 6,818
Unrealized gain on equity securities, net . . . . . 6,238
Unrealized loss on derivative instruments, net . . (1,976)

Total comprehensive income . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 122,730
Balance, December 31, 2007 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 34,212 $342 — $146,763 $ 25,877 $ 172,982

Employee stock compensation . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 305 3 18,555 18,558
Proceeds from stock issuances under employee

plans . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 520 5 12,860 12,865
Tax effect of exercise of stock options. . . . . . . . . 1,730 1,730
Cash dividends declared ($1.52 per share) . . . . . . (49,602) (49,602)
Repurchase and retirement of common shares . . . (2,545) (25) (33,145) (73,997) (107,167)
Comprehensive income:

Net Income . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 117,395
Foreign currency translation adjustments, net . . (18,421)
Unrealized loss on equity securities, net . . . . . . (12,913)
Unrealized gain on derivative instruments, net . . 1,600

Total comprehensive income . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 87,661
Balance, December 31, 2008 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 32,492 $325 — $140,559 $ (3,857) $ 137,027

Employee stock compensation . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 31 0 10,226 10,226
Proceeds from stock issuances under employee

plans . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 236 2 4,731 4,733
Tax effect of exercise of stock options. . . . . . . . . (410) (410)
Cash dividends declared ($1.56 per share) . . . . . . (50,177) (50,177)
Repurchase and retirement of common shares . . . (111) (1) (4,555) (4,556)
Comprehensive income:

Net Income . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 101,017
Foreign currency translation adjustments, net of

tax of $69 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 115
Reclassification of unrealized loss on available for

sale securities to the income statement, net of
tax of $2,277 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 6,675
Unrealized loss on available for sale securities,

net of tax benefit of $230 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (382)
Unrealized gain on derivative instruments, net

of tax of $165. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 273
Total comprehensive income . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 107,698

Balance, December 31, 2009 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 32,648 $326 $ 9,992 $191,399 $ 2,824 $ 204,541

All periods presented reflect the classification of the marine division financial results as discontinued operations
The accompanying footnotes are an integral part of these consolidated statements.
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POLARIS INDUSTRIES INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(In thousands)

2009 2008 2007

For the Year Ended
December 31,

Operating Activities:
Net income . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 101,017 $ 117,395 $ 111,650

Net loss from discontinued operations . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — — 948
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating

activities:
Noncash impairment charge on securities held for sale . . . . . . . . . 8,952 — —
Depreciation and amortization . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 64,593 66,112 62,093
Noncash compensation . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 10,226 18,558 19,759
Noncash income from financial services . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (4,021) (4,604) (5,268)
Noncash expense (income) from manufacturing affiliates . . . . . . . 382 157 (46)
Deferred income taxes . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 13,573 (966) (10,276)
Changes in current operating items:

Trade receivables . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 8,192 (15,714) (19,069)
Inventories . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 42,997 (3,970) 12,191
Accounts payable . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (40,329) 25,941 (10,627)
Accrued expenses. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (24,759) (7,469) 38,648
Income taxes payable/receivable . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 7,735 (9,504) 9,519
Prepaid expenses and others, net . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 4,643 (9,730) 3,644

Net cash provided by continuing operations . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 193,201 176,206 213,166
Net cash flow used for discontinued operations . . . . . . . . . . . — (452) (3,008)

Net cash provided by operating activities. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 193,201 175,754 210,158
Investing Activities:

Purchase of property and equipment . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (43,932) (76,575) (63,747)
Investments in finance affiliate . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (3,007) (9,209) (11,527)
Distributions from finance affiliates . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 17,261 16,049 18,623
Proceeds from sale of shares of manufacturing affiliate . . . . . . . . . . . . — — 77,086

Net cash (used for) provided by investment activities . . . . . . . . (29,678) (69,735) 20,435
Financing Activities:

Borrowings under credit agreement . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 364,000 786,000 368,000
Repayments under credit agreement . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (364,000) (786,000) (418,000)
Repurchase and retirement of common shares . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (4,556) (107,167) (103,100)
Cash dividends to shareholders . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (50,177) (49,602) (47,739)
Tax effect of proceeds from stock based compensation exercises. . . . . . (410) 1,731 2,232
Proceeds from stock issuances under employee plans . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 4,733 12,865 11,729

Net cash used for financing activities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (50,410) (142,173) (186,878)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 113,113 (36,154) 43,715
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 27,127 63,281 19,566

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 140,240 $ 27,127 $ 63,281

Supplemental Cash Flow Information
Interest paid on debt borrowings . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 3,966 $ 9,614 $ 16,034

Income taxes paid . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 29,039 $ 70,205 $ 54,189

All periods presented reflect the classification of the marine division financial results as discontinued operations

The accompanying footnotes are an integral part of these consolidated statements.
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POLARIS INDUSTRIES INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1: Organization and Significant Accounting Policies

Polaris Industries Inc. (“Polaris” or the “Company”) a Minnesota corporation, and its subsidiaries, are engaged
in the design, engineering, manufacturing and marketing of innovative, high-quality, high-performance off-road
vehicles (“ORVs”), snowmobiles, and On Road vehicles (“On-road”), including motorcycles and low emission
vehicles. Polaris products, together with related parts, garments and accessories (“PG&A”) are sold worldwide
through a network of dealers, distributors and its subsidiaries located in the United States, Canada, France, the
United Kingdom, Australia, Norway, Sweden, Germany and Spain.

Basis of presentation: The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Polaris and
its wholly-owned subsidiaries. All inter-company transactions and balances have been eliminated in consolidation.
Income from financial services is reported as a component of operating income to better reflect income from
ongoing operations of which financial services has a significant impact.

On September 2, 2004, the Company announced its decision to discontinue the manufacture of marine
products effective immediately. The marine products division’s financial results are reported separately as
discontinued operations for all periods presented.

The Company evaluates consolidation of entities under ASC Topic 810, (originally issued as Financial
Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) Interpretation No. 46 “Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities”). This
Topic requires management to evaluate whether an entity or interest is a variable interest entity and whether the
company is the primary beneficiary. Polaris used the guidelines to analyze the Company’s relationships, including
the relationship with Polaris Acceptance, and concluded that there are no variable interest entities requiring
consolidation by the Company in 2009, 2008 and 2007.

Fair Value Measurements: ASC Topic 820 (originally issued as Statement of Financial Accounting Standards
(SFAS) No. 157 “Fair Value Measurements”) defines fair value as the exchange price that would be received for an
asset or paid to transfer a liability (an exit price) in the principal or most advantageous market for the asset or
liability in an orderly transaction between market participants on the measurement date. This topic also establishes a
fair value hierarchy which requires classification based on observable and unobservable inputs when measuring fair
value. There are three levels of inputs that may be used to measure fair value:

Level 1 — Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 — Observable inputs other than Level 1 prices such as quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities;
quoted prices in markets that are not active; or other inputs that are observable or can be corroborated by observable
market data for substantially the full term of the assets or liabilities.

Level 3 — Unobservable inputs that are supported by little or no market activity and that are significant to the
fair value of the assets or liabilities.

The Company utilizes the market approach to measure fair value for its investment in KTM Power Sports AG
(“KTM”) and non-qualified deferred compensation assets, and the income approach for the interest rate swap
agreements, foreign currency contracts and commodity contracts. The market approach uses prices and other
relevant information generated by market transactions involving identical or comparable assets or liabilities and for
the income approach the Company uses significant other observable inputs to value its derivative instruments used
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to hedge interest rate volatility, foreign currency and commodity transactions. Assets and liabilities measured at fair
value on a recurring basis are summarized below (in thousands):

Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Fair Value Measurements as of
December 31, 2009

Asset (Liability)

Investment in KTM. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 8,150 $ 8,150
Non-qualified deferred compensation assets . . . . . . . . . . . . 2,360 2,360

Interest rate swap agreements . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (699) $ (699)

Foreign exchange contracts, net . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (350) (350)

Commodity contracts . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3,485 3,485

Total . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $12,946 $10,510 $2,436 —

Investment in Manufacturing Affiliates: The investment in KTM was accounted for under the equity method at
December 31, 2006. Polaris sold approximately 80 percent of its investment in KTM shares in the first half of 2007,
and, therefore, the remaining KTM shares have been classified as available for sale under ASC Topic 320
(originally issued as SFAS No. 115 “Accounting for Certain Investments in Debt and Equity Securities”). The
remaining approximately 345,000 shares, which represents slightly less than five percent of KTM’s outstanding
shares, have a fair value equal to the trading price of KTM shares on the Vienna stock exchange. Changes in the
trading price of KTM shares and changes in the Euro foreign currency exchange rate generate unrealized gains or
losses which are recorded in Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (loss) in the Shareholders’ Equity section
in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets. The total fair value of these securities as of December 31, 2009 is
$8,150,000 and unrealized holding losses of $382,000 relating to these securities are included in the December 31,
2009 consolidated balance sheet.

Use of estimates: The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Ultimate results could
differ from those estimates.

Cash equivalents: Polaris considers all highly liquid investments purchased with an original maturity of
90 days or less to be cash equivalents. Cash equivalents are stated at cost, which approximates fair value. Such
investments consist principally of commercial paper and money market mutual funds.

Allowance for doubtful accounts: Polaris’ financial exposure to collection of accounts receivable is limited due
to its agreements with certain finance companies. For receivables not serviced through these finance companies, the
Company provides a reserve for doubtful accounts based on historical rates and trends. This reserve is adjusted
periodically as information about specific accounts becomes available.

Inventories: Inventories are stated at the lower of cost (first-in, first-out method) or market. The major
components of inventories are as follows (in thousands):

2009 2008
December 31,

Raw materials and purchased components . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 19,777 $ 18,211

Service parts, garments and accessories . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 58,556 72,896

Finished goods . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 116,575 148,421

Less: reserves . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (15,593) (17,216)

Inventories . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $179,315 $222,312
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Property and equipment: Property and equipment is stated at cost. Depreciation is provided using the straight-
line method over the estimated useful life of the respective assets, ranging from 10-40 years for buildings and
improvements and from 1-7 years for equipment and tooling. Fully depreciated tooling is eliminated from the
accounting records annually.

Goodwill and other assets: ASC Topic 350 prohibits the amortization of goodwill and intangible assets with
indefinite useful lives. Topic 350 requires that these assets be reviewed for impairment at least annually. An
impairment charge is recognized only when the estimated fair value of a reporting unit, including goodwill, is less
than its carrying amount. The Company performed analyses as of December 31, 2009 and December 31, 2008. The
results of the analyses indicated that no goodwill impairment existed. In accordance with Topic 350 the Company
will continue to complete an impairment analysis on an annual basis.

The changes in the carrying amount of goodwill for the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008 are as
follows (in thousands):

2009 2008

Balance as of beginning of year . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $24,693 $26,447

Currency translation effect on foreign goodwill balances . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1,176 (1,754)

Balance as of end of year . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $25,869 $24,693

Research and Development Expenses: Polaris records research and development expenses in the period in
which they are incurred as a component of operating expenses. In the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008, and
2007 Polaris incurred $62,999,000, $77,472,000, and $73,587,000, respectively.

Advertising Expenses: Polaris records advertising expenses as a component of selling and marketing expenses
in the period in which they are incurred. In the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008, and 2007 Polaris incurred
$37,433,000, $51,193,000, and $45,427,000, respectively.

Shipping and Handling Costs: Polaris records shipping and handling costs as a component of cost of sales at
the time the product is shipped.

Product warranties: Polaris provides a limited warranty for ORVs for a period of six months and for a period of
one year for its snowmobiles and motorcycles. Polaris may provide longer warranties related to certain promotional
programs, as well as longer warranties in certain geographical markets as determined by local regulations and
market conditions. Polaris’ standard warranties require the Company or its dealers to repair or replace defective
products during such warranty periods at no cost to the consumer. The warranty reserve is established at the time of
sale to the dealer or distributor based on management’s best estimate using historical rates and trends. Adjustments
to the warranty reserve are made from time to time as actual claims become known in order to properly estimate the
amounts necessary to settle future and existing claims on products sold as of the balance sheet date. Factors that
could have an impact on the warranty accrual in any given year include the following: improved manufacturing
quality, shifts in product mix, changes in warranty coverage periods, snowfall and its impact on snowmobile usage,
product recalls and any significant changes in sales volume.

The activity in the warranty reserve during the years presented is as follows (in thousands):

2009 2008 2007
For the Year Ended December 31,

Balance at beginning of year . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 28,631 $ 31,782 $ 27,303

Additions charged to expense . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 40,977 39,960 40,375

Warranty claims paid . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (44,088) (43,111) (35,896)

Balance at end of year . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 25,520 $ 28,631 $ 31,782
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Sales promotions and incentives: Polaris provides for estimated sales promotion and incentive expenses, which
are recognized as a reduction to sales, at the time of sale to the dealer or distributor. Examples of sales promotion
and incentive programs include dealer and consumer rebates, volume incentives, retail financing programs and sales
associate incentives. Sales promotion and incentive expenses are estimated based on current programs and
historical rates for each product line. Actual results may differ from these estimates if market conditions dictate
the need to enhance or reduce sales promotion and incentive programs or if the customer usage rate varies from
historical trends. Polaris recorded accrued liabilities of $67,055,000 and $75,211,000 related to various sales
promotions and incentive programs as of December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively. Historically, sales promotion
and incentive expenses have been within the Company’s expectations and differences have not been material.

Dealer holdback programs: Polaris provides dealer incentive programs whereby at the time of shipment
Polaris withholds an amount from the dealer until ultimate retail sale of the product. Polaris records these amounts
as a reduction of revenue and a liability on the consolidated balance sheet until they are ultimately paid. Payments
are generally made to dealers twice each year, in the first quarter and the third quarter, subject to previously
established criteria. Polaris recorded accrued liabilities of $72,229,000 and $80,941,000, for dealer holdback
programs in the consolidated balance sheets as of December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively.

Foreign currency translation: The functional currency for the Canada, Australia, France, the United Kingdom,
Sweden, Norway, Germany, Spain and Austria subsidiaries and the New Zealand branch is their respective local
currencies.

The assets and liabilities in all Polaris foreign entities are translated at the foreign exchange rate in effect at the
balance sheet date. Translation gains and losses are reflected as a component of Accumulated other comprehensive
income (loss) in the shareholders’ equity section of the accompanying consolidated balance sheets. Revenues and
expenses in all of Polaris’ foreign entities are translated at the average foreign exchange rate in effect for each month
of the quarter. The net Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) related to translation gains and losses was a
net gain of $3,861,000 and $3,746,000 at December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively.

Revenue recognition: Revenues are recognized at the time of shipment to the dealer or distributor or other
customers. Product returns, whether in the normal course of business or resulting from repossession under its
customer financing program (see Note 3), have not been material. Polaris withholds an amount from the dealer for
incentive programs and provides for estimated sales promotion expenses which are recognized as reductions to sales
when products are sold to the dealer or distributor customer.

Major supplier: During 2009, 2008, and 2007, purchases of engines and related components totaling five, five
and six percent, respectively, of Polaris’ cost of sales were from a single Japanese supplier. Polaris has agreed with
the supplier to share the impact of fluctuations in the exchange rate between the U.S. dollar and the Japanese yen.

Share-Based Compensation: For purposes of determining estimated fair value of share-based payment awards
on the date of grant under ASC Topic 718, (originally issued as SFAS No. 123(R)), Polaris uses the Black-Scholes
Model. The Black-Scholes Model requires the input of certain assumptions that require judgment. Because
employee stock options and restricted stock awards have characteristics significantly different from those of traded
options, and because changes in the input assumptions can materially affect the fair value estimate, the existing
models may not provide a reliable single measure of the fair value of the employee stock options or restricted stock
awards. Management will continue to assess the assumptions and methodologies used to calculate estimated fair
value of share-based compensation. Circumstances may change and additional data may become available over
time, which could result in changes to these assumptions and methodologies and thereby materially impact the fair
value determination. If factors change and the Company employs different assumptions in the application of Topic
718 in future periods, the compensation expense that was recorded under Topic 718 may differ significantly from
what was recorded in the current period. Refer to Note 2 for additional information regarding share-based
compensation.
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Accounting for derivative instruments and hedging activities: ASC Topic 815, (originally issued as
SFAS No. 133: “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities”), requires that changes in the
derivative’s fair value be recognized currently in earnings unless specific hedge criteria are met, and requires that a
company must formally document, designate and assess the effectiveness of transactions that receive hedge
accounting. The net unrealized gain of the derivative instruments of $2,436,000 at December 31, 2009 and the net
unrealized loss of $2,041,000 at December 31, 2008 were recorded in the accompanying balance sheet as other
current assets or other current liabilities. Polaris’ derivative instruments consist of the interest rate swap agreements
and foreign exchange and commodity contracts discussed below. The after tax unrealized losses of $655,000 and
$928,000 as of December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively, were recorded as components of Accumulated other
comprehensive income (loss). The Company’s diesel fuel contracts in 2009 and 2008, and aluminum contracts in
2009 did not meet the criteria for hedge accounting and therefore, the resulting unrealized gains from those
contracts are included in the consolidated statements of income in cost of goods sold. The unrealized gains for the
diesel fuel contracts for 2009 and 2008 totaled $212,000 and 554,000, respectively, pretax, and the unrealized gain
for the aluminum contracts was $3,273,000, pretax, for 2009,

Interest rate swap agreements: At December 31, 2009, Polaris had four interest rate swaps on a combined
$100,000,000 of borrowings, of which $50,000,000 expires in October 2010 and $50,000,000 expires in April 2011.
Polaris had one interest rate swap for $25,000,000 that expired in December 2009. All of these interest rate swaps
were designated as and met the criteria as cash flow hedges. The fair value of these swap agreements were
calculated by comparing the fixed rate on the agreement to the market rate of financial instruments similar in nature.
The fair values of the swaps on December 31, 2009 and 2008 were unrealized losses of $699,000 and $1,487,000,
respectively, which were recorded as a liability in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets. Gains and losses
resulting from these agreements are recorded in interest expense when realized.

Foreign exchange contracts: Polaris enters into foreign exchange contracts to manage currency exposures of
certain of its purchase commitments denominated in foreign currencies and transfers of funds from time to time
from its foreign subsidiaries. Polaris does not use any financial contracts for trading purposes. These contracts met
the criteria for cash flow hedges. Gains and losses on the Canadian dollar, Norwegian Krone, Swedish Krona, and
Australian dollar contracts at settlement are recorded in Nonoperating other expense (income). Gains and losses on
the Japanese yen contracts at settlement are recorded in cost of sales. Unrealized gains or losses, after tax, are
recorded as a component of Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) in Shareholders’ Equity. The fair
value of the foreign exchange contracts was a net liability of $350,000 as of December 31, 2009. At December 31,
2008, the Company had no foreign exchange contacts outstanding.

Commodity derivative contracts: Polaris is subject to market risk from fluctuating market prices of certain
purchased commodity raw materials including steel, aluminum, fuel, and petroleum-based resins. In addition, the
Company purchases components and parts containing various commodities, including steel, aluminum, rubber and
others which are integrated into the Company’s end products. While such materials are typically available from
numerous suppliers, commodity raw materials are subject to price fluctuations. The Company generally buys these
commodities and components based upon market prices that are established with the vendor as part of the purchase
process. From time to time, Polaris utilizes derivative contracts to hedge a portion of the exposure to commodity
risks. During 2009, the Company entered into derivative contracts to hedge a portion of the exposure for diesel fuel
and aluminum for 2010. These contracts did not meet the criteria for hedge accounting and the resulting unrealized
gains and losses are recorded in the consolidated statements of income as a component of cost of sales. The fair
value of the commodity derivative contracts was a net asset of $3,485,000 as of December 31, 2009 and a net
liability of $554,000 as of December 31, 2008.

Comprehensive income: Comprehensive income reflects the change in equity of a business enterprise during a
period from transactions and other events and circumstances from non-owner sources. For the Company, com-
prehensive income represents net income adjusted for foreign currency translation adjustments and the unrealized
gain or loss on derivative instruments and the unrealized gain or loss on securities held for sale. The Company has
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chosen to disclose comprehensive income in the accompanying consolidated statements of shareholders’ equity and
comprehensive income.

New accounting pronouncements: The Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) accounting standards
codification (“ASC”) and hierarchy of generally accepted accounting principles has become the source of
authoritative U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) recognized by the FASB to be applied by
nongovernmental entities. Rules and interpretive releases of the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”)
under authority of federal securities laws are also sources of authoritative GAAP for SEC registrants. On the
effective date, the Codification superseded all then-existing non-SEC accounting and reporting standards. All other
non-grandfathered, non-SEC accounting literature not included in the Codification became nonauthoritative. This
Codification is effective for financial statements issued for interim and annual periods ending after September 15,
2009. The Company adopted this new standard effective September 30, 2009.

In February 2007, the FASB issued ASC Topic 825, (originally issues as SFAS No. 159, “The Fair Value Option for
Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities”). Topic 825 permits companies, at their election, to measure specified
financial instruments and warranty and insurance contracts at fair value on a contract-by-contract basis, with changes in
fair value recognized in earnings each reporting period. The election, called the “fair value option,” will enable some
companies to reduce the volatility in reported earnings caused by measuring related assets and liabilities differently.
Topic 825 is effective for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007. The Company did not elect to apply the
provisions of Topic 825 to any financial assets or liabilities.

In March 2008, the FASB issued ASC Topic 815 (originally issued as SFAS No. 161, “Disclosures about Derivative
Instruments and Hedging Activities”). Topic 815 changes the disclosure requirements for derivative instruments and
hedging activities. Entities are required to provide enhanced disclosures about (a) how and why an entity uses derivative
instruments, (b) how derivative instruments and related hedged items are accounted for under Topic 815 and its related
interpretations, and (c) how derivative instruments and related hedged items affect an entity’s financial position, financial
performance, and cash flows. The guidance in Topic 815 was effective for the Company beginning in fiscal 2009. The
required disclosures are included in Note 9, “Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities”.

In 2009, the Company adopted the provisions of ASC 855, originally issued as SFAS 165, “Subsequent Events”,
which was effective for interim and annual periods after June 15, 2009 and amended on February 24, 2010. This
Statement incorporates guidance into accounting literature that was previously addressed only in auditing standards. The
statement refers to subsequent events that provide additional evidence about conditions that existed at the balance-sheet
date as “recognized subsequent events”. Subsequent events which provide evidence about conditions that arose after an
issuer’s most recent balance-sheet date but prior to the issuance of its most recent financial statements are referred to as
“non-recognized subsequent events”. It also requires companies to evaluate subsequent events through the date the
financial statements were issued. See Note 12, “Subsequent Events”.

In June 2009, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 167, Amendments to ASC
Topic 810 (“FAS 167”). FAS 167 amends ASC Topic 810 to require ongoing reassessments of whether an enterprise
is the primary beneficiary of a variable interest entity. Additionally, FAS 167 requires enhanced disclosures that will
provide users of financial statements with more transparent information about an enterprise’s involvement in
variable interest entities. FAS 167 is effective for the Company beginning with its quarter ending March 31, 2010.
The Company is currently evaluating the impact FAS 167 will have on its consolidated financial statements.

NOTE 2. Share-Based Employee Compensation

Share-Based Plans

Polaris maintains an Omnibus Incentive Plan (“Omnibus Plan”) under which the Company grants long-term
equity-based incentives and rewards for the benefit of its employees, directors and consultants, which were
previously provided under several separate incentive and compensatory plans. Upon approval by the shareholders of
the Omnibus Plan in April 2007, the Polaris Industries Inc. 1995 Stock Option Plan (“Option Plan”), the 1999 Broad
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Based Stock Option Plan (“Broad Based Plan”), the Restricted Stock Plan (“Restricted Plan”) and the 2003 Non-
Employee Director Stock Option Plan (“Director Stock Option Plan” and, collectively with the Option Plan,
Restricted Plan and Broad Based Plan, the “Prior Plans”) were frozen and no further grants or awards have since
been or will be made under such plans. A maximum of 2,750,000 shares of common stock are available for issuance
under the Omnibus Plan, together with additional shares cancelled or forfeited under the Prior Plans.

Stock option awards granted to date under the Omnibus Plan generally vest two to four years from the award date
and expire after ten years. In addition, the Company has granted a total of 36,000 deferred stock units to its non-employee
directors under the Omnibus Plan since 2007, which will be converted into common stock when the director’s board
service ends or upon a change in control. Restricted shares awarded under the Omnibus Plan to date generally contain
restrictions which lapse after a two to four year period if Polaris achieves certain performance measures.

Under the Option Plan incentive and nonqualified stock options for a maximum of 8,200,000 shares of
common stock could be issued to certain employees. Options granted to date generally vest three years from the
award date and expire after ten years.

Under the Broad Based Plan incentive stock options for a maximum of 700,000 shares of common stock could be
issued to substantially all Polaris employees. Options with respect to 675,400 shares of common stock were granted
under this plan during 1999 at an exercise price of $15.78 and of the options initially granted under the Broad Based Plan,
an aggregate of 518,400 vested in March 2002. This plan and any outstanding options expired in 2009.

Under the Restricted Plan, a maximum of 2,350,000 shares of common stock could be awarded as an incentive
to certain employees with no cash payments required from the recipient. The majority of the outstanding awards
contain restrictions which lapse after a two to four year period if Polaris achieves certain performance measures.

Under the Director Stock Option Plan, nonqualified stock options for a maximum of 200,000 shares of common
stock could be issued to non-employee directors. Each non-employee director as of the date of the annual shareholders
meetings through 2006 was granted an option to purchase 4,000 shares of common stock at a price per share equal to
the fair market value as of the date of grant. Options become exercisable as of the date of the next annual shareholders
meeting following the date of grant and must be exercised no later than 10 years from the date of grant.

Under the Polaris Industries Inc. Deferred Compensation Plan for Directors (“Director Plan”) members of the
Board of Directors who are not Polaris officers or employees receive annual grants of common stock equivalents
and may also elect to receive additional common stock equivalents in lieu of director’s fees, which will be converted
into common stock when board service ends. A maximum of 250,000 shares of common stock has been authorized
under this plan of which 130,405 equivalents have been earned and an additional 69,015 shares have been issued to
retired directors as of December 31, 2009. As of December 31, 2009 and 2008, Polaris’ liability under the plan
totaled $5,690,000 and $2,943,000, respectively.

Polaris maintains a long term incentive plan (“LTIP”) under which awards are issued to provide incentives for
certain employees to attain and maintain the highest standards of performance and to attract and retain employees of
outstanding competence and ability with no cash payments required from the recipient. The awards are paid in cash
and are based on certain Company performance measures that are measured over a period of three consecutive
calendar years. At the beginning of the plan cycle participants have the option to receive a cash value at the time of
awards or a cash value tied to Polaris stock price movement over the three year plan cycle. At December 31, 2009
and 2008, Polaris’ liability under the plan totaled $4,587,000 and $1,268,000, respectively.

Share-Based Compensation Expense

The amount of compensation cost for share-based awards to be recognized during a period is based on the
portion of the awards that are ultimately expected to vest. The Company estimates option forfeitures at the time of
grant and revises those estimates in subsequent periods if actual forfeitures differ from those estimates. The
Company analyzes historical data to estimate pre-vesting forfeitures and records share compensation expense for
those awards expected to vest.
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Total share-based compensation expenses are as follows (in thousands):

2009 2008 2007

For the Year Ended
December 31,

Option plan . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 4,653 $6,094 $ 6,628
Other share-based awards, net . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 12,354 3,810 8,990

Total share-based compensation before tax . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 17,007 9,904 15,618
Tax benefit . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 6,620 3,854 6,454

Total share-based compensation expense included in net income . . . . $10,387 $6,050 $ 9,164

These share-based compensation expenses are reflected in Cost of sales and Operating expenses in the accom-
panying consolidated statements of income. For purposes of determining the estimated fair value of share-based payment
awards on the date of grant under ASC Topic 718, Polaris has used the Black-Scholes option-pricing model.
Assumptions utilized in the model are evaluated and revised, as necessary, to reflect market conditions and experience.

At December 31, 2009 there was $9,982,000 of total unrecognized stock-based compensation expense related
to unvested share-based awards. Unrecognized share-based compensation expense is expected to be recognized
over a weighted-average period of 1.84 years. Included in unrecognized share-based compensation is approxi-
mately $7,001,000 related to stock options and $2,981,000 for restricted stock.

General Stock Option and Restricted Stock Information

The following summarizes share activity and the weighted average exercise price for the following plans for
the each of the three years ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007:

Outstanding
Shares

Weighted
Average

Exercise Price
Outstanding

Shares

Weighted
Average

Exercise Price
Outstanding

Shares

Weighted
Average

Exercise Price
Outstanding

Shares

Weighted
Average

Exercise Price

Option Plan Omnibus Plan Broad Based Plan Director Stock Option Plan

Balance as of December 31,
2006 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 4,243,621 $35.66 — — 58,200 $15.78 104,000 $45.93

Granted . . . . . . . . . . . . 357,000 46.66 14,000 $49.28 — — — —

Exercised . . . . . . . . . . . (403,514) 24.79 — — (11,200) 15.78 (12,000) 40.60

Forfeited . . . . . . . . . . . (56,810) 47.18 — — (600) 15.78 (4,000) 59.19

Balance as of December 31,
2007 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 4,140,297 $37.51 14,000 $49.28 46,400 $15.78 88,000 $46.06

Granted . . . . . . . . . . . . — — 764,100 41.24 — — — —

Exercised . . . . . . . . . . . (484,548) 24.17 — — (8,600) 15.78

Forfeited . . . . . . . . . . . (249,900) 64.79 (2,200) 38.04 (1,000) 15.78 — —

Balance as of December 31,
2008 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3,405,849 $37.41 775,900 $41.40 36,800 $15.78 88,000 $46.06

Granted . . . . . . . . . . . . — — 667,000 25.16 — — — —

Exercised . . . . . . . . . . . (165,826) 19.34 — — (33,999) 15.78 — —

Forfeited . . . . . . . . . . . (20,400) 44.78 (24,000) 40.18 (2,801) 15.78 — —

Balance as of December 31,
2009 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3,219,623 $38.29 1,418,900 $33.78 0 0 88,000 $46.06

Vested or expected to vest as
of December 31, 2009 . . . 3,219,286 $38.29 1,335,294 $33.79 0 0 88,000 $46.06

Options exercisable as of
December 31, 2009 . . . . . 3,063,023 $37.86 — — 0 0 88,000 $46.06
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The following table summarizes information about stock options outstanding at December 31, 2009:

Range of Exercise Prices

Number
Outstanding at

12/31/09

Weighted Average
Remaining

Contractual Life

Weighted
Average

Exercise Price

Number
Exercisable at

12/31/09

Weighted
Average

Exercise Price

Options Outstanding Options Exercisable

$14.72 to $21.73 . . . . . . . . . . 637,696 5.84 $20.44 270,696 $21.19

$21.74 to $28.49 . . . . . . . . . . 731,962 2.60 $25.52 686,962 $25.39

$28.50 to $29.33 . . . . . . . . . . 500,000 1.53 $29.33 500,000 $29.33

$29.34 to $38.04 . . . . . . . . . . 565,750 8.67 $34.71 10,800 $36.04

$38.05 to $43.80 . . . . . . . . . . 613,815 5.28 $43.43 423,565 $43.42

$43.81 to $46.66 . . . . . . . . . . 767,200 7.11 $45.84 361,500 $45.94

$46.67 to $49.97 . . . . . . . . . . 622,600 6.33 $48.25 619,000 $48.26

$49.98 to $75.21 . . . . . . . . . . 287,500 5.04 $60.47 278,500 $60.79

The weighted average remaining contractual life of outstanding options was 5.37 years as of December 31,
2009.

The following assumptions were used to estimate the weighted average fair value of options of $5.89, $9.09,
and $13.06, granted during the year ended December 31, 2009, 2008, and 2007, respectively:

2009 2008 2007

For the Year
Ended December 31,

Weighted-average volatility . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 42% 31% 32%

Expected dividend yield . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 6.6% 3.7% 2.9%

Expected term (in years) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 5.7 5.7 5.6

Weighted average risk free interest rate . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2.2% 2.7% 4.9%

The total intrinsic value of options exercised during the year ended December 31, 2009 was $2,691,000. The
total intrinsic value of options outstanding and exercisable at December 31, 2009, 2008, and 2007 was $25,962,000,
$6,405,000, and $51,527,000, respectively. The total intrinsic value at each of December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007 is
based on the Company’s closing stock price on the last trading day of the applicable year for in-the-money options.

The following table summarizes restricted stock activity for the year ended December 31, 2009:

Shares
Outstanding

Weighted
Average

Grant Price

Balance as of December 31, 2008. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 406,122 $45.35

Granted . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 36,000 35.67

Vested . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (314,605) 46.73

Canceled/Forfeited . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (2,550) 46.74

Balance as of December 31, 2009. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 124,967 $39.06

Expected to vest as of December 31, 2009 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 124,967 $39.06

The total intrinsic value of restricted stock expected to vest as of December 31, 2009 was $5,452,000. The total
intrinsic value at December 31, 2009 is based on the Company’s closing stock price on the last trading day of the
year. The weighted average fair values at the grant dates of grants awarded under the Restricted Stock Plan for the
years ended December 31, 2009, 2008, and 2007 were $35.67, $39.21, and $47.02, respectively.
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Employee Savings Plans

Polaris sponsors a qualified non-leveraged employee stock ownership plan (“ESOP”) under which a maximum
of 3,250,000 shares of common stock can be awarded. The shares are allocated to eligible participants accounts
based on total cash compensation earned during the calendar year. Shares vest immediately and require no cash
payments from the recipient. Participants my instruct Polaris to pay respective dividends directly to the participant
in cash or reinvest the dividends into the participants ESOP accounts. Substantially all employees are eligible to
participate in the ESOP, with the exception of Company officers. Total expense related to the ESOP was $0,
$6,706,000, and $7,567,000, in 2009, 2008 and 2007, respectively. For 2009, the Company suspended its annual
contribution of shares into the ESOP as a cost reduction measure. As of December 31, 2009 there were
2,834,000 shares vested in the plan.

Polaris sponsors a 401(k) retirement savings plan under which eligible U.S. employees may choose to
contribute up to 50 percent of eligible compensation on a pre-tax basis, subject to certain IRS limitations. The
Company matches 100 percent of employee contributions up to a maximum of five percent of eligible compen-
sation. Matching contributions were $6,827,000, $7,251,000, and $6,749,000, in 2009, 2008 and 2007, respectively.

Note 3: Financing

Bank financing: Polaris is a party to an unsecured bank agreement comprised of a $250,000,000 revolving
loan facility for working capital needs and a $200,000,000 term loan. The entire amount of the $200,000,000 term
loan was utilized in December 2006 to fund an accelerated share repurchase transaction. Interest is charged at rates
based on LIBOR or “prime.” The agreement contains various restrictive covenants which limit investments,
acquisitions and indebtedness. The agreement also requires Polaris to maintain certain financial ratios including
minimum interest coverage and a maximum leverage ratio. Polaris was in compliance with each of the covenants as
of December 31, 2009. The agreement expires on December 2, 2011 and the outstanding borrowings mature.

The following summarizes activity under Polaris’ credit arrangements (dollars in thousands):

2009 2008 2007

Total borrowings at December 31, . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $200,000 $200,000 $200,000

Average outstanding borrowings during year . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $268,100 $282,600 $257,175

Maximum outstanding borrowings during year . . . . . . . . . . . . . $345,000 $345,000 $358,000

Interest rate at December 31 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 0.79% 0.77% 5.60%

As of December 31, 2009, Polaris has entered into the following interest rate swap agreements to manage
exposures to fluctuations in interest rates by fixing the LIBOR interest rate as follows:

Year Swap
Entered into Fixed Rate (LIBOR) Notional Amount Expiration Date

2008 2.69% $25,000,000 October 2010

2009 1.34% $25,000,000 April 2011

2009 0.64% $25,000,000 October 2010

2009 0.98% $25,000,000 April 2011

Each of these interest rate swaps were designated as and met the criteria of cash flow hedges.

Letters of credit: At December 31, 2009, Polaris had open letters of credit totaling approximately
$12,040,000. The amounts outstanding are reduced as inventory purchases pertaining to the contracts are received.

Dealer financing programs: Certain finance companies, including Polaris Acceptance, an affiliate (see
Note 6), provide floor plan financing to dealers on the purchase of Polaris products. The amount financed by
worldwide dealers under these arrangements at December 31, 2009, was approximately $714,818,000. Polaris has
agreed to repurchase products repossessed by the finance companies up to an annual maximum of no more than
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15 percent of the average month-end balances outstanding during the prior calendar year. Polaris’ financial
exposure under these arrangements is limited to the difference between the amount paid to the finance companies
for repurchases and the amount received on the resale of the repossessed product. No material losses have been
incurred under these agreements during the periods presented. As a part of its marketing program, Polaris
contributes to the cost of dealer financing up to certain limits and subject to certain conditions. Such expenditures
are included as an offset to sales in the accompanying consolidated statements of income.

Note 4: Income Taxes

Polaris’ income before income taxes was generated from its U.S. and international operations as follows (in
thousands):

2009 2008 2007
For the Years Ended December 31,

U.S. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $143,483 $163,322 $144,598

International. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 7,691 13,740 25,738

Income before income taxes . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $151,174 $177,062 $170,336

Components of Polaris’ provision for income taxes for continuing operations are as follows (in thousands):

2009 2008 2007
For the Years Ended December 31,

Current:

Federal . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $27,104 $48,370 $ 51,127

State. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3,723 5,520 6,206

Foreign. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 5,757 6,744 10,681

Deferred. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 13,573 (967) (10,276)

Total . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $50,157 $59,667 $ 57,738

Reconciliation of the Federal statutory income tax rate to the effective tax rate is as follows:

2009 2008 2007

For the Years Ended
December 31,

Federal statutory rate . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 35.0% 35.0% 35.0%

State income taxes, net of federal benefit . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2.3 2.3 2.1

Domestic manufacturing deduction . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (1.1) (1.1) (1.4)

Research tax credit. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (1.2) (1.0) (1.2)

Settlement of tax audits . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 0.0 (0.1) 0.9

Valuation allowance for foreign subsidiaries net operating losses . . . . . . . . . . . — 0.5 —

Other permanent differences . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (1.8) (1.9) (1.5)

Effective income tax rate . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 33.2% 33.7% 33.9%

U.S. income taxes have not been provided on undistributed earnings of certain foreign subsidiaries as of
December 31, 2009. The Company has reinvested such earnings overseas in foreign operations indefinitely and
expects that future earnings will also be reinvested overseas indefinitely in these subsidiaries.

Polaris utilizes the liability method of accounting for income taxes whereby deferred taxes are determined
based on the estimated future tax effects of differences between the financial statement and tax bases of assets and
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liabilities given the provisions of enacted tax laws. The net deferred income taxes consist of the following (in
thousands):

2009 2008
December 31,

Current deferred income taxes:

Inventories . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 7,920 $ 6,997

Accrued expenses . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 52,588 68,574

Derivative instruments. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 394 559

Total current . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 60,902 76,130

Noncurrent net deferred income taxes:

Cost in excess of net assets of business acquired . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2,456 1,084

Property and equipment . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (24,801) (24,189)

Compensation payable in common stock . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 19,815 18,920

Net unrealized gains in other comprehensive income . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (8,520) —

Total noncurrent . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (11,050) (4,185)

Total . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 49,852 $ 71,945

The Company adopted the provisions of ASC Topic 740, (originally issued as FIN 48) in the first quarter 2007.
Polaris had liabilities recorded related to unrecognized tax benefits totaling $4,988,000 and $5,103,000 at
December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively. The liabilities were classified as Long term taxes payable in the
accompanying consolidated balance sheets in accordance with Topic 740. Polaris recognizes potential interest and
penalties related to income tax positions as a component of the provision for income taxes on the consolidated
statements of income. Polaris had reserves related to potential interest of $612,000 and $481,000 recorded as a
component of the liabilities at December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively. The entire balance of unrecognized tax
benefits at December 31, 2009, if recognized, would affect the Company’s effective tax rate. The Company does not
anticipate that total unrecognized tax benefits will materially change in the next twelve months. Tax years 2005
through 2008 remain open to examination by certain tax jurisdictions to which the Company is subject.

A reconciliation of the beginning and ending amount of unrecognized tax benefits is as follows (in thousands):

2009 2008

For the Years Ended
December 31,

Balance at January 1, . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $5,103 $ 8,653

Gross increases for tax positions of prior years . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 94 —

Gross decreases for tax positions of prior years . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (275) (788)

Gross increases for tax positions of current year . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 985 1,236

Decreases due to settlements . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (171) (549)

Decreases for lapse of statute of limitations . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (748) (3,449)

Balance at December 31, . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $4,988 $ 5,103

Note 5: Shareholders’ Equity

Stock repurchase program: The Polaris Board of Directors authorized the cumulative repurchase of up to
37,500,000 shares of the Company’s common stock. As of December 31, 2009, 3,719,000 shares remain available
for repurchases under the Board’s authorization. During 2009 Polaris paid $4,556,000 to repurchase and retire
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approximately 111,000 shares. During 2008 Polaris paid $107,167,000 to repurchase and retire approximately
2,545,000 shares and in 2007 Polaris paid $103,100,000 to repurchase and retire approximately 1,903,000 shares.

Shareholder rights plan: During 2000, the Polaris Board of Directors adopted a shareholder rights plan. Under
the plan, a dividend of preferred stock purchase rights will become exercisable if a person or group should acquire
15 percent or more of the Company’s stock. The dividend will consist of one purchase right for each outstanding
share of the Company’s common stock held by shareholders of record on June 1, 2000. Each right will entitle its
holder to purchase one-hundredth of a share of a new series of junior participating preferred stock at an exercise
price of $150, subject to adjustment. The rights expire in May 2010 and may be redeemed earlier by the Board of
Directors for $0.01 per right.

Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss): Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) consisted
of $3,861,000 and $3,746,000 of unrealized currency translation gains as of December 31, 2009 and 2008,
respectively, offset by $655,000 (after tax effect of $394,000) and $928,000 (after tax effect of $559,000) of
unrealized losses related to derivative instruments as of December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively, and $382,000 of
unrealized losses on shares held for sale as of December 31, 2009 and $6,675,000 of unrealized losses on shares held
for sale as of December, 31, 2008.

Changes in the Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) balances is as follows (in thousands):

Foreign Currency
Items

Unrealized Gains
(Losses) on
Securities

Net Gains (Losses)
on Cash Flow

Hedging Derivatives

Accumulated Other
Comprehensive

Income

Balance at December 31, 2008. . . $3,746 $(6,675) $ (928) $(3,857)

Reclassification to the income
statement . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — 6,675 (1,740) 4,935

Change in fair value . . . . . . . . . . 115 (382) 2,013 1,746

Balance at December 31, 2009. . . $3,861 $ (382) $ (655) $ 2,824

Net income per share: Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing net income available to common
shareholders by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding during each year, including shares
earned under the Director Plan, ESOP and deferred stock units under the Omnibus Plan. Diluted earnings per share
is computed under the treasury stock method and is calculated to compute the dilutive effect of outstanding stock
options and certain shares issued under the Restricted Plan and Omnibus Plan. A reconciliation of these amounts is
as follows (in thousands):

2009 2008 2007

Weighted average number of common shares outstanding . . . . . . . . . . . 32,245 32,456 34,976

Director Plan and Deferred stock units . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 154 112 86

ESOP . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 0 202 174

Common shares outstanding — basic . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 32,399 32,770 35,236

Dilutive effect of Restricted Plan and Omnibus Plan. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 265 178 70

Dilutive effect of Option Plan and Omnibus Plan . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 410 616 1,018

Common and potential common shares outstanding — diluted . . . . . . . 33,074 33,564 36,324

During 2009, 2008 and 2007, the number of options that could potentially dilute earnings per share on a fully
diluted basis that were not included in the computation of diluted earnings per share because to do so would have
been anti-dilutive was 1,672,000, 2,862,000, and 1,524,000, respectively.

Stock Purchase Plan: Polaris maintains an employee stock purchase plan (“Purchase Plan”). A total of
1,500,000 shares of common stock are reserved for this plan. The Purchase Plan permits eligible employees to
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purchase common stock at 95 percent of the average market price each month. As of December 31, 2009,
approximately 570,000 shares had been purchased under the Purchase Plan.

Note 6: Financial Services Arrangements

In 1996, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Polaris entered into a partnership agreement with a subsidiary of
Transamerica Distribution Finance (“TDF”) to form Polaris Acceptance. In 2004, TDF was merged with a
subsidiary of General Electric Company and, as a result of that merger, TDF’s name was changed to GE
Commercial Distribution Finance Corporation (“GECDF”). Polaris’ subsidiary has a 50 percent equity interest
in Polaris Acceptance. In November 2006, Polaris Acceptance sold a majority of its receivable portfolio to the
securitization facility arranged by General Electric Capital Corporation, a GECDF affiliate (“Securitization
Facility”), and the partnership agreement was amended to provide that Polaris Acceptance would continue to
sell portions of its receivable portfolio to a Securitization Facility from time to time on an ongoing basis. At
December 31, 2009 and 2008, the outstanding balance of receivables sold by Polaris Acceptance to the Secu-
ritization Facility (the “Securitized Receivables”) amounted to approximately $385,752,000 and $508,972,000,
respectively. The sale of receivables from Polaris Acceptance to the Securitization Facility is accounted for in
Polaris Acceptance’s financial statements as a “true-sale” under ASC Topic 860, (originally issued as SFAS No. 140
“Accounting for Transfers and Servicing of Financial Assets and Extinguishments of Liabilities”). Polaris
Acceptance is not responsible for any continuing servicing costs or obligations with respect to the Securitized
Receivables. Polaris’ subsidiary and GECDF have an income sharing arrangement related to income generated from
the Securitization Facility. The remaining portion of the receivable portfolio is recorded on Polaris Acceptance’s
books, and is funded to the extent of 85 percent through a loan from an affiliate of GECDF. Polaris has not
guaranteed the outstanding indebtedness of Polaris Acceptance or the Securitized Receivables. In addition, the two
partners of Polaris Acceptance share equally an equity cash investment equal to 15 percent of the sum of the
portfolio balance in Polaris Acceptance plus the Securitized Receivables. Polaris’ total investment in Polaris
Acceptance at December 31, 2009 and 2008, was $41,332,000 and $51,565,000, respectively. The Polaris
Acceptance partnership agreement provides for periodic options for renewal, purchase, or termination by either
party. Substantially all of Polaris’ U.S. sales are financed through Polaris Acceptance and the Securitization Facility
whereby Polaris receives payment within a few days of shipment of the product. The net amount financed for
dealers under this arrangement at December 31, 2009, including both the portfolio balance in Polaris Acceptance
and the Securitized Receivables, was $554,988,000. Polaris has agreed to repurchase products repossessed by
Polaris Acceptance up to an annual maximum of 15 percent of the average month-end balances outstanding during
the prior calendar year. For calendar year 2009, the potential 15 percent aggregate repurchase obligation was
approximately $89,252,000. Polaris’ financial exposure under this arrangement is limited to the difference between
the amounts unpaid by the dealer with respect to the repossessed product plus costs of repossession and the amount
received on the resale of the repossessed product. No material losses have been incurred under this agreement
during the periods presented. Polaris’ trade receivables from Polaris Acceptance were $1,837,000 and $21,377,000
at December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively. Polaris’ exposure to losses associated with respect to the Polaris
Acceptance Portfolio and the Securitized Receivables is limited to its equity in its wholly-owned subsidiary that is a
partner in Polaris Acceptance.

Polaris’ total investment in Polaris Acceptance at December 31, 2009 of $41,332,000 is accounted for under
the equity method, and is recorded as Investments in finance affiliate in the accompanying consolidated balance
sheets. The partnership agreement provides that all income and losses of the Polaris Acceptance and the Securitized
Receivables are shared 50 percent by Polaris’ wholly-owned subsidiary and 50 percent by GECDF. Polaris’
allocable share of the income of Polaris Acceptance and the Securitized Facility has been included as a component
of Income from financial services in the accompanying statements of income.
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Summarized financial information for Polaris Acceptance reflecting the effects of the Securitization Facility is
presented as follows (in thousands):

2009 2008 2007
For the Year Ended December 31,

Revenues. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $12,559 $12,484 $12,974

Interest and operating expenses . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 4,517 3,276 2,436

Net income . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 8,042 $ 9,208 $10,538

2009 2008
As of December 31,

Finance receivables, net . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $167,485 $198,985

Other assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 81 98

Total Assets. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $167,566 $199,083

Notes payable . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 83,899 $ 78,042

Other liabilities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1,766 21,175

Partners’ capital . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 81,901 99,866

Total Liabilities and Partners’ Capital . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $167,566 $199,083

In August 2005, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Polaris entered into a multi-year contract with HSBC Bank
Nevada, National Association (“HSBC”), formerly known as Household Bank (SB), N.A., under which HSBC is
continuing to manage the Polaris private label credit card program under the StarCard label, which until July 2007
included providing retail credit for non-Polaris products. The 2005 agreement provides for income to be paid to
Polaris based on a percentage of the volume of revolving retail credit business generated including non-Polaris
products. The previous agreement provided for equal sharing of all income and losses with respect to the retail credit
portfolio, subject to certain limitations. The 2005 contract removed all credit, interest rate and funding risk to
Polaris and also eliminated the need for Polaris to maintain a retail credit cash deposit with HSBC, which was
approximately $50,000,000 at August 1, 2005. HSBC ceased financing non-Polaris products under its arrangement
with Polaris effective July 1, 2007. During the first quarter of 2008, HSBC notified the Company that the
profitability to HSBC of the 2005 contractual arrangement was unacceptable and, absent some modification of that
arrangement, HSBC might significantly tighten its underwriting standards for Polaris customers, reducing the
number of qualified retail credit customers who would be able to obtain credit from HSBC. In order to avoid the
potential reduction of revolving retail credit available to Polaris consumers, Polaris began to forgo the receipt of a
volume based fee provided for under its agreement with HSBC effective March 1, 2008. Management currently
anticipates that the elimination of the volume based fee will continue and that HSBC will continue to provide
revolving retail credit to qualified customers through the end of the contract term on October 31, 2010.

In April 2006, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Polaris entered into a multi-year contract with GE Money Bank
(“GE Bank”) under which GE Bank makes available closed-end installment consumer and commercial credit to
customers of Polaris dealers for both Polaris and non-Polaris products. In January 2009, a wholly-owned subsidiary
of Polaris entered into a multi-year contract with Sheffield Financial (“Sheffield”) pursuant to which Sheffield
agreed to make available closed-end installment consumer and commercial credit to customers of Polaris dealers
for Polaris products. Polaris’ income generated from the GE Bank and Sheffield agreements has been included as a
component of Income from financial services in the accompanying consolidated statements of income.

Polaris also provides extended service contracts to consumers and certain insurance contracts to dealers and
consumers through various third-party suppliers. Polaris does not retain any warranty, insurance or financial risk in
any of these arrangements. Polaris’ service fee income generated from these arrangements has been included as a
component of Income from financial services in the accompanying consolidated statements of income.
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Income from financial services as included in the consolidated statements of income is comprised of the
following (in thousands):

2009 2008 2007
For the Year Ended December 31,

Equity in earnings of Polaris Acceptance . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 4,021 $ 4,604 $ 5,269

Income from Securitization Facility . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 9,559 8,620 8,655

Income from HSBC, GE Bank and Sheffield retail credit
agreements . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1,090 5,703 28,167

Income from other financial services activities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2,401 2,278 3,194

Total income from financial services . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $17,071 $21,205 $45,285

Note 7: Investment in Manufacturing Affiliates

The caption Investments in manufacturing affiliates in the consolidated balance sheets represents Polaris’
equity investment in Robin Manufacturing, U.S.A. (“Robin”), which builds engines in the United States for
recreational and industrial products, and the investment in the Austrian motorcycle company, KTM, which
manufactures off-road and on-road motorcycles. As of December 31, 2009 Polaris had a 40 percent ownership
interest in Robin and slightly less than five percent ownership interest in KTM. In December 2006 Polaris entered
into a share purchase agreement for the sale by the Company of approximately 1,379,000 KTM shares, or
approximately 80 percent of its investment in KTM, to a subsidiary of Cross. The agreement provided for the sale of
the KTM shares in two stages during the first half of 2007. On June 15, 2007, Polaris completed the second and final
closing of its sale of KTM shares to Cross under the terms of the December 2006 agreement, as supplemented on
February 20, 2007. The proceeds from the sale of the KTM shares totaled $77,086,000 million and generated a
$6,222,000 gain which was recognized in the first half of 2007. Polaris now holds ownership of approximately
345,000 shares, representing slightly less than 5 percent of KTM’s outstanding shares.

Polaris’ investments in manufacturing affiliates, including associated transaction costs, totaled $10,536,000 at
December 31, 2009 and $15,641,000 at December 31, 2008. The investment in Robin is accounted for under the
equity method. With the first closing of the sale of KTM shares in February 2007, the investment in KTM is no
longer accounted for under the equity method. The remaining KTM shares have been classified as available for sale
securities under ASC Topic 320, (originally issued as FASB Statement 115, Accounting for Certain Investments in
Debt and Equity Securities). The remaining approximately 345,000 KTM shares held by Polaris have a fair value
equal to the trading price of KTM shares on the Vienna stock exchange, (16.50 Euros as of December 31, 2009). In
the first quarter of 2009, the Company took a $9.0 million, pretax, or $0.18 per diluted share non-cash charge on its
KTM investment as it was determined that the decline in the market value of the KTM investment was other than
temporary. The total fair value of the KTM shares as of December 31, 2009 is $8,150,000 and unrealized holding
losses of $382,000 (net of tax of $230,000) relating to these securities are included as a component of Accumulated
other comprehensive income (loss) in the December 31, 2009 consolidated balance sheet. In accordance with Topic
320, the Company assessed the situation where the fair value of the KTM shares has dropped below the cost basis of
the shares. Based upon the expected limited duration of the KTM share price decline and the Company’s ability and
intent to retain this investment, the Company has classified the impairment of this investment as temporary and has
recorded the unrealized holding loss as a component of Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) rather than
in the income statement.

Note 8: Commitments and Contingencies

Product liability: Polaris is subject to product liability claims in the normal course of business. Polaris is
currently self insured for all product liability claims. The estimated costs resulting from any losses are charged to
operating expenses when it is probable a loss has been incurred and the amount of the loss is reasonably
determinable. The Company utilizes historical trends and actuarial analysis tools to assist in determining the
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appropriate loss reserve levels. At December 31, 2009 the Company had an accrual of $11,364,000 for the probable
payment of pending claims related to continuing operations. This accrual is included as a component of Other
Accrued expenses in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets. In addition, the Company had an accrual of
$1,850,000 for the probable payment of pending claims related to discontinued operations at December 31, 2009.

Litigation: Polaris is a defendant in lawsuits and subject to claims arising in the normal course of business. In
the opinion of management, it is unlikely that any legal proceedings pending against or involving Polaris will have a
material adverse effect on Polaris’ financial position or results of operations.

Leases: Polaris leases buildings and equipment under non-cancelable operating leases. Total rent expense
under all lease agreements was $4,999,000, $5,777,000, and $4,815,000 for 2009, 2008 and 2007, respectively.
Future minimum payments, exclusive of other costs required under non-cancelable operating leases, at Decem-
ber 31, 2009 total $6,410,000 cumulatively through 2017.

Note 9. Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities

The Company is exposed to certain risks relating to its ongoing business operations. The primary risks
managed by using derivative instruments are foreign currency risk, interest rate risk and commodity price
fluctuations. Forward exchange contracts on various currencies are entered into in order to manage foreign
currency exposures associated with certain product sourcing activities and intercompany sales. Interest rate swaps
are entered into in order to manage interest rate risk associated with the Company’s variable-rate borrowings.
Commodity hedging contracts are entered into in order to manage fluctuating market prices of certain purchased
commodities and raw materials that are integrated into the Company’s end products.

The Company’s foreign currency management objective is to mitigate the potential impact of currency
fluctuations on the value of its U.S. dollar cash flows and to reduce the variability of certain cash flows at the
subsidiary level. The Company actively manages certain forecasted foreign currency exposures and uses a
centralized currency management operation to take advantage of potential opportunities to naturally offset foreign
currency exposures against each other. The decision of whether and when to execute derivative instruments, along
with the duration of the instrument, can vary from period to period depending on market conditions, the relative
costs of the instruments and capacity to hedge. The duration is linked to the timing of the underlying exposure, with
the connection between the two being regularly monitored. Polaris does not use any financial contracts for trading
purposes. At December 31, 2009, Polaris had open Japanese Yen contracts with notional amounts totaling
U.S. $6,093,000 and an unrealized loss of $91,000, open Canadian Dollar contracts with notional amounts totaling
U.S. $24,702,000 and a net unrealized loss of $250,000, open Norwegian Krone contracts with notional amounts
totaling U.S. $2,068,000 and an unrealized loss of $64,000, open Swedish Krona contracts with notional amounts
totaling U.S. $4,098,000 and an unrealized gain of $157,000, and open Australian Dollar contracts with notional
amounts totaling $5,357,000 and a net unrealized loss of $102,000. These contracts have maturities through
December 2010. The Company had no open Euro foreign currency derivative contracts in place at December 31,
2009.

Polaris has entered into derivative contracts to hedge a portion of the exposure for gallons of diesel fuel for
2009 and 2010 and metric tons of aluminum for 2010. These diesel fuel and aluminum derivative contracts did not
meet the criteria for hedge accounting.
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The table below summarizes the carrying values of derivative instruments as of December 31, 2009 (in
thousands):

Fair Value —
Assets

Fair Value —
(Liabilities)

Derivative Net
Carrying Value

Derivatives Designated as Hedging Instruments
Interest rate contracts(1) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — $ (699) $ (699)

Foreign exchange contracts(2) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 323 (673) (350)

Total derivatives designated as hedging
instruments . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 323 $(1,372) $(1,049)

Commodity contracts(2) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $3,485 $ 0 $ 3,485

Total derivatives not designated as hedging
instruments . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $3,485 $ 0 $ 3,485

Total Derivatives . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $3,808 $(1,372) $ 2,436

(1) Included in “Other Current Liabilities” on the Company’s consolidated balance sheet.

(2) Assets are included in “Prepaid expenses and other” and liabilities are included in “Other Current Liabilities”
on the Company’s consolidated balance sheet.

For derivative instruments that are designated and qualify as a cash flow hedge, the effective portion of the gain
or loss on the derivative is reported as a component of Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) and
reclassified into the income statement in the same period or periods during which the hedged transaction affects the
income statement. Gains and losses on the derivative representing either hedge ineffectiveness or hedge compo-
nents excluded from the assessment of effectiveness are recognized in the current income statement. The table
below provides data about the amount of gains and losses, net of tax, related to derivative instruments designated as
cash flow hedges included in the other comprehensive income (loss) for the twelve month period ended Decem-
ber 31, 2009 (in thousands):

Derivatives in Cash Flow
Hedging Relationships _

Twelve Months Ended
December 31,

2009

Amount of Gain (Loss)
Recognized in OCI on

Derivative (Effective Portion)

Interest rate contracts . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 492

Foreign currency contracts . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (219)

Total . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 273
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The table below provides data about the amount of gains and losses, net of tax, reclassified from Accumulated
other comprehensive income into income on derivative instruments designated as hedging instruments for the
twelve month period ended December 31, 2009 (in thousands):

Derivatives in Cash Flow
HedgingRelationships

Location of Gain (Loss)
Reclassified from
Accumulated OCI

Into Income

Twelve Months Ended
December 31,

2009

Amount of Gain (Loss)
Reclassified from Accumulated OCI

into Income

Interest rate contracts . . . . . . . . Interest Expense $(1,683)

Foreign currency contracts . . . . Other income, net (1,668)

Foreign currency contracts . . . . Cost of Sales 27

Total . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $(3,324)

The net amount of the existing gains or losses at December 31, 2009 that is expected to be reclassified into the
income statement within the next 12 months is not expected to be material. The ineffective portion of foreign
currency contracts was not material for the twelve months ended December 31, 2009.

The Company recognized a gain of $4,039,000 in cost of sales on commodity contracts not designated as
hedging instruments for the twelve month period ended December 31, 2009.

Note 10: Discontinued Operations

On September 2, 2004, the Company announced its decision to discontinue the manufacture of marine
products effective immediately. In the third quarter 2004, the Company recorded a loss on disposal of discontinued
operations of $35,600,000 before tax, or $23,852,000 after tax. This loss included a total of $28,705,000 in expected
future cash payments for costs to assist the dealers in selling their remaining inventory, incentives and discounts to
encourage consumers to purchase remaining products, costs to cancel supplier arrangements, legal and regulatory
issues, and personnel termination costs. In addition, the loss included $6,895,000 in non-cash costs related primarily
to the disposition of tooling, other physical assets, and the Company’s remaining inventory. During 2006, the
Company recorded an additional loss on disposal of discontinued operations of $8,073,000 before tax, or
$5,401,000 after tax. This loss includes the estimated costs required to resolve past and potential future product
liability litigation claims and warranty expenses related to marine products. In 2007 the Company substantially
completed the exit of the marine products division, therefore, in the year ended December 31, 2008 and 2009, there
were no additional material charges incurred related to this discontinued operations event and the Company does
not expect any additional material charges in the future.
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Components of the accrued disposal costs are as follows (in thousands):

Balance
Prior To
Charge

Initial
Charge

Charges
Through

December 31,
2008

Utilization from
Closedown

Date Through
December 31,

2008

Balance
December 31,

2008
Utilization

During 2009

Balance
December 31,

2009

Incentive costs to sell remaining
inventory including product
warranty . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $3,960 $11,608 $ 550 $(16,118) — — —

Costs related to canceling supplier
arrangements. . . . . . . . . . . . . — 14,159 — (14,159) — — —

Legal, regulatory, personnel and
other costs . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 4,327 2,938 7,523 (12,938) $1,850 — $1,850

Disposition of tooling, inventory
and other fixed assets (non-
cash) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — 6,895 — (6,895) — — —

Total . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $8,287 $35,600 $8,073 $(50,110) $1,850 — $1,850

The financial results of the marine products division included in discontinued operations are as follows (in
thousands):

Discontinued Operations

2009 2008 2007

For the Years Ended
December 31,

Sales . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $— $— $ —

Loss on discontinued operations before income tax benefit . . . . . . . . . . . . . $— $— $(1,449)
Income tax (benefit) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — — (501)

Loss from discontinued operations, net of tax . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $— $— $ (948)

2009 2008
As of December 31,

Accrued expenses . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $1,850 $1,850

Current liabilities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $1,850 $1,850

Note 11: Segment Reporting

Polaris has reviewed ASC Topic 280 (originally issued as SFAS No. 131, “Disclosures about Segments of an
Enterprise and Related Information”), and determined that the Company meets the aggregation criteria outlined
since the Company’s segments have similar (1) economic characteristics, (2) product and services, (3) production
processes, (4) customers, (5) distribution channels, and (6) regulatory environments. Therefore, the Company
reports as a single business segment.
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The following data relates to Polaris’ foreign continuing operations (in thousands of U.S. dollars):

2009 2008 2007
For the Years Ended December 31,

Canadian subsidiary:

Sales . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $239,240 $273,006 $230,987

Identifiable assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 35,462 16,853 16,082

Other foreign countries:

Sales . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $252,419 $304,233 $257,531

Identifiable assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 97,771 93,206 92,080

Note 12: Subsequent Events

The Company has evaluated events subsequent to the balance sheet date through March 1, 2010. There were no
subsequent events which required recognition or disclosure in the consolidated financial statements.

Note 13: Quarterly Financial Data (unaudited)

Sales Gross Profit Net Income

Diluted
Net Income
per Share

(In thousands, except per share data)

2009
First Quarter . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 312,024 $ 76,4344 $ 8,458 $0.26

Second Quarter . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 345,896 83,2646 17,478 0.53

Third Quarter . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 436,197 104,9117 31,171 0.94

Fourth Quarter . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 471,770 128,6100 43,910 1.31

Totals . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $1,565,887 $393,2197 $101,017 $3.05

2008
First Quarter . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 388,684 $ 88,095 $ 19,083 $0.55

Second Quarter . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 455,686 108,043 24,380 0.72

Third Quarter . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 580,281 130,325 37,692 1.13

Fourth Quarter . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 523,603 119,245 36,240 1.11

Totals . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $1,948,254 $ 445,708 $117,395 $3.50
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Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

Not applicable.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures

The Company carried out an evaluation, under the supervision and with the participation of the Company’s
management, including the Company’s Chief Executive Officer and its Vice President-Finance and Chief Financial
Officer, of the effectiveness of the design and operation of the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Rule 13a-15(e) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended) as of the end of the period covered
by this report. Based upon that evaluation, the Company’s Chief Executive Officer along with the Company’s Vice
President-Finance and Chief Financial Officer concluded that, as of the end of the period covered by this Annual
Report on Form 10-K the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures were effective to ensure that information
required to be disclosed by the Company in reports that it files or submits under the Securities Exchange Act of
1934, as amended, is (1) recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in SEC
rules and forms, and (2) accumulated and communicated to the Company’s management including its Chief
Executive Officer and Vice President — Finance and Chief Financial Officer, in a manner that allows timely
decisions regarding required disclosure. No changes have occurred during the period covered by this report or since
the evaluation date that would have a material effect on the disclosure controls and procedures.

The Company’s internal control report is included in this report after Item 8, under the caption “Management’s
Report on Company’s Internal Control over Financial Reporting.”

Item 9B. Other Information

Not applicable.
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PART III

Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance

(a) Directors of the Registrant

The information required under this item concerning our directors will be set forth under the caption
Proposal 1— “Election of Directors — Information Concerning Nominees and Directors” in the Company’s
2010 Proxy Statement, to be filed within 120 days after the close of the Company’s fiscal year ended December 31,
2009, and is incorporated herein by reference.

(b) Executive Officers of the Registrant

Information concerning Executive Officers of the Company is included in this Report after Item 1, under the
caption “Executive Officers of the Registrant.”

(c) Identification of the Audit Committee; Audit Committee Financial Expert

The information required under this item concerning our Audit Committee and identification of our Audit
Committee Financial Expert will be set forth under the caption “Corporate Governance — Committees of the Board
and Meetings — Audit Committee” in the Company’s 2010 Proxy Statement, to be filed within 120 days after the
close of the Company’s fiscal year ended December 31, 2009, and is incorporated herein by reference.

(d) Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance

The information required under this item concerning compliance with Section 16(a) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 will be set forth under the caption “Corporate Governance — Section 16(a) Beneficial
Ownership Reporting Compliance” in the Company’s 2010 Proxy Statement, to be filed within 120 days after the
close of the Company’s fiscal year ended December 31, 2009, and is incorporated herein by reference.

(e) Code of Ethics.

We have adopted a Code of Business Conduct and Ethics that applies to our Principal Executive Officer,
Principal Financial Officer, Principal Accounting Officer and all other Polaris employees. This Code of Business
Conduct and Ethics is posted on our website at www.polarisindustries.com and may be found as follows:

• From our main web page, first click on “Our Company.”

• Next, highlight “Investor Relations.”

• Next, scroll down and click on “Corporate Governance.”

• Finally, click on “Business Code of Conduct and Ethics.”

A copy of our Code of Business Conduct and Ethics will be furnished to any shareholder or other interested
party who submits a written request for it. Such request should be sent to Polaris Industries Inc., 2100 Highway 55,
Medina, Minnesota 55340, Attention: Investor Relations.

We intend to satisfy the disclosure requirement under Item 5.05 of Form 8-K regarding an amendment to, or
waiver from a provision of this Code of Business Conduct and Ethics by posting such information on our website, at
the address and location specified above under the heading “waivers.”

Item 11. Executive Compensation

The information required by this item will be set forth under the captions “Corporate Governance —
Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation,” “Compensation Discussion and Analysis,” “Sum-
mary Compensation Table,” “Grants of Plan-Based Awards,” “Outstanding Equity Awards at Fiscal Year-End,”
“Option Exercises and Stock Vested,” “Nonqualified Deferred Compensation,” “Potential Payments Upon Ter-
mination or Change-in-Control,” “Director Compensation” and “Compensation Committee Report” in the
Company’s 2010 Proxy Statement, to be filed within 120 days after the close of the Company’s fiscal year ended
December 31, 2009, and is incorporated herein by reference.
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Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder
Matters

The information under the caption “Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management” in
the Company’s 2010 Proxy Statement is incorporated herein by reference.

Equity compensation plans

Equity Compensation Plans Approved by Shareholders

Our shareholders have approved the Polaris Industries Inc. 1995 Stock Option Plan, the Polaris Industries Inc.
Restricted Stock Plan, the Polaris Industries Inc. Employee Stock Purchase Plan, the Polaris Industries Inc.
Deferred Compensation Plan for Directors, the 2003 Non-Employee Director Stock Option Plan and the Polaris
Industries Inc. Omnibus Incentive Plan.

Equity Compensation Plans Not Approved by Shareholders

The Polaris Industries Inc. 1999 Broad-Based Stock Option Plan was approved by the Board of Directors, but
was not approved by the shareholders. Neither the NYSE rules nor federal law required shareholder approval at the
time the 1999 Broad-Based Stock Option Plan was adopted and accordingly, it was not submitted for shareholder
approval. This plan and any outstanding options expired in 2009.

Summary Table

The following table sets forth certain information as of December 31, 2009, with respect to compensation plans
under which shares of Polaris common stock may be issued.

Plan Category

Number of
Securities to be

Issued Upon
Exercise of

Outstanding
Options, Warrants

and Rights(1)(3)

Weighted-Average
Exercise Price of

Outstanding
Options, Warrants

and Rights
($)

Number of
Securities
Remaining
Available

for Future Issuance
Under Equity

Compensation Plans
(Excluding
Securities

Reflected in the
First Column)(2)

Equity compensation plans approved by security
holders . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 5,020,429 $37.47 1,627,831

The weighted average remaining contractual life of outstanding options was 5.4 years as of December 31,
2009.

(1) Unvested stock options and stock appreciation rights do not receive dividend equivalents.

(2) A total of 50,579 shares are available under the Deferred Compensation Plan for Directors and a total of
1,577,252 shares are available under the Omnibus Plan, of which 132,775 shares are available for grant as full
value shares.

(3) A total of 4,726,523 of the 5,020,429 securities to be issued upon exercise of outstanding options, warrants and
rights are stock options outstanding, and 293,906 are full value shares. The 293,906 full value shares include
124,967 shares of restricted stock issued under the Restricted Stock Plan and the Omnibus Plan, 38,534 of deferred
stock units and the accompanying dividend equivalent units issued under the Omnibus Plan to directors and
130,405 of common stock equivalents awarded to directors under the Deferred Compensation Plan for Directors.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence

The information required by this item will be set forth under the captions “Corporate Governance —
Corporate Governance Guidelines and Independence” and “— Certain Relationships and Related Transactions”
in the Company’s 2010 Proxy Statement to be filed within 120 days after the close of the Company’s fiscal year
ended December 31, 2009, and is incorporated herein by reference.
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Item 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Services

The information required by this item will be set forth under the caption “Independent Registered Public
Accounting Firm” in the Company’s 2010 Proxy Statement, to be filed within 120 days after the close of the
Company’s fiscal year ended December 31, 2009, and is incorporated herein by reference.

PART IV

Item 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules

(a) The following documents are filed as part of this report:

(1) Financial Statements

The financial statements listed in the Index to Financial Statements on page 39 are included in Part II of this
Form 10-K.

(2) Financial Statement Schedules

Schedule II — Valuation and Qualifying Accounts is included on page 73 of this report.

All other supplemental financial statement schedules have been omitted because they are not applicable or are
not required or the information required to be set forth therein is included in the Consolidated Financial Statements
or Notes thereto.

(3) Exhibits

The Exhibits to this report are listed in the Exhibit Index to Annual Report on Form 10-K on pages 74 to 76.

A copy of any of these Exhibits will be furnished at a reasonable cost to any person who was a shareholder of
the Company as of March 1, 2010, upon receipt from any such person of a written request for any such exhibit. Such
request should be sent to Polaris Industries Inc., 2100 Highway 55, Medina, Minnesota 55340, Attention: Investor
Relations.

(b) Exhibits

Included in Item 15(a)(3) above.

(c) Financial Statement Schedules

Included in Item 15(a)(2) above.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has
duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized, in the City of
Minneapolis, State of Minnesota on March 1, 2010.

POLARIS INDUSTRIES INC.

By: /s/ SCOTT W. WINE

Scott W. Wine
Chief Executive Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the
following persons on behalf of the registrant in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Signature Title Date

/s/ GREGORY R. PALEN

Gregory R. Palen
Chairman and Director March 1, 2010

/s/ SCOTT W. WINE

Scott W. Wine
Chief Executive Officer and Director

(Principal Executive Officer)
March 1, 2010

/s/ MICHAEL W. MALONE

Michael W. Malone
Vice President-Finance and Chief Financial

Officer (Principal Financial
and Accounting Officer)

March 1, 2010

*
Andris A. Baltins

Director March 1, 2010

*
Robert L. Caulk

Director March 1, 2010

*
Annette K. Clayton

Director March 1, 2010

*
Bernd F. Kessler

Director March 1, 2010

*
John R. Menard, Jr.

Director March 1, 2010

*
R. M. Schreck

Director March 1, 2010

*
William G. Van Dyke

Director March 1, 2010

*
John P. Wiehoff

Director March 1, 2010

*By: /s/ SCOTT W. WINE

(Scott W. Wine Attorney-in-Fact)
March 1, 2010

* Scott W. Wine, pursuant to Powers of Attorney executed by each of the officers and directors listed above whose
name is marked by an “*” and filed as an exhibit hereto, by signing his name hereto does hereby sign and execute
this Report of Polaris Industries Inc. on behalf of each of such officers and directors in the capacities in which the
names of each appear above.
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POLARIS INDUSTRIES INC.
SCHEDULE II — VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

Balance at
Beginning of

Period

Additions
Charged to
Costs and
Expenses

Other Changes
Add (Deduct)(1)

Balance at
End of Period

(In thousands)

2007: Deducted from asset accounts — Allowance
for doubtful accounts receivable . . . . . . . . . . . . . $3,564 $1,251 $(1,244) $3,571

2008: Deducted from asset accounts — Allowance
for doubtful accounts receivable . . . . . . . . . . . . . $3,571 $4,172 $(1,645) $6,098

2009: Deducted from asset accounts — Allowance
for doubtful accounts receivable . . . . . . . . . . . . . $6,098 $5,741 $(2,246) $9,593

(1) Uncollectible accounts receivable written off, net of recoveries.

Inventory Reserve

Balance at
Beginning of

Period

Additions
Charged to
Costs and
Expenses

Other Changes
Add (Deduct)(2)

Balance at
End of Period

2007: Deducted from asset accounts — Allowance
for obsolete inventory . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $12,087 $6,540 $(5,099) $13,528

2008: Deducted from asset accounts — Allowance
for obsolete inventory . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $13,528 $9,936 $(6,248) $17,216

2009: Deducted from asset accounts — Allowance
for obsolete inventory . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $17,216 $6,400 $(8,023) $15,593

(2) Inventory disposals, net of recoveries
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POLARIS INDUSTRIES INC.
EXHIBIT INDEX TO ANNUAL REPORT ON

FORM 10-K
For Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2009

Exhibit
Number Description

3.a Articles of Incorporation of Polaris Industries Inc. (the “Company”), as amended, incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 3(a) to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31,
2003.

.b Bylaws of the Company, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3(b) to the Company’s Registration
Statement on Form S-4, filed November 21, 1994 (No. 033-55769).

4.a Specimen Stock Certificate of the Company, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4 to the Company’s
Registration Statement on Form S-4, filed November 21, 1994 (No. 033-55769).

.b Rights Agreement, dated as of May 18, 2000 between the Company and Norwest Bank Minnesota, N.A.
(now Wells Fargo Bank Minnesota, N.A.), as Rights Agent, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the
Company’s Registration Statement on Form 8-A, filed May 25, 2000.

10.a Shareholder Agreement with Fuji Heavy Industries LTD., incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10(k) to
the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1994.

.b Polaris 401(k) Retirement Savings Plan, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.1 to the Company’s
Registration Statement on Form S-8, filed January 11, 2000 (No. 333-94451).

.c Polaris Industries Inc. Supplemental Retirement/Savings Plan, as amended and restated effective
December 31, 2008, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.a to the Company’s Current Report on
Form 8-K filed January 28, 2009.*

.d Polaris Industries Inc. Employee Stock Ownership Plan effective January 1, 1997 incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10(d) to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 1997.*

.e Polaris Industries Inc. 1999 Broad Based Stock Option Plan incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the
Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-8, filed May 5, 1999 (No. 333-77765).*

.f Polaris Industries Inc. 1995 Stock Option Plan, as amended and restated, incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 99.1 to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-8, filed October 31, 2005
(No. 333-129335).*

.g Form of Nonqualified Stock Option Agreement and Notice of Exercise Form for options granted under the
Polaris Industries Inc. 1995 Stock Option Plan, as amended and restated, incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 99.2 to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-8, filed October 31, 2005
(No. 333-129335).*

.h Form of Nonqualified Stock Option Agreement and Notice of Exercise Form for options granted to the
Chief Executive Officer under the Polaris Industries Inc. 1995 Stock Option Plan, as amended and
restated, incorporated by reference to Annex A to Exhibit 10(q) to the Company’s Current Report on
Form 8-K, filed February 2, 2005.*

.i Polaris Industries Inc. Deferred Compensation Plan for Directors, as amended and restated effective
January 1, 2008, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.d to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K
filed October 31, 2007.*

.j Polaris Industries Inc. Deferred Compensation Plan for Directors, as amended and restated, incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on May 12, 2009.*

.k Polaris Industries Inc. Restricted Stock Plan, as amended and restated, incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.n to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed April 26, 2005.*

.l Form of Performance Restricted Share Award Agreement for performance restricted shares awarded
under the Polaris Industries Inc. Restricted Stock Plan, as amended and restated, incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 4.2 to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-8, filed June 7, 1996
(No. 333-05463).*

.m Polaris Industries Inc. 2007 Omnibus Incentive Plan, as amended and restated, incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on May 12, 2009.*
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Exhibit
Number Description

.n Form of Performance Restricted Share Award Agreement for performance restricted shares awarded to
the Chief Executive Officer under the Polaris Industries Inc. Restricted Stock Plan, as amended and
restated, incorporated by reference to Annex B to Exhibit 10(q) to the Company’s Current Report on
Form 8-K, filed February 2, 2005.*

.o Amended and Restated Polaris Industries Inc. Employee Stock Purchase Plan, incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 10.n to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2006.
Form of Change of Control Agreement entered into with executive officers of Company incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10(q) to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 1996, as amended by Form of Amendment to Change in Control Agreement,
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.f to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed
October 31, 2007.*

.p Polaris Industries Inc. 2003 Non-Employee Director Stock Option Plan, incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 4.1 to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-8, filed November 17, 2003
(No. 333-110541).*

.q Polaris Industries Inc. Senior Executive Annual Incentive Compensation Plan, as amended and restated
effective December 31, 2008, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.b to the Company’s Current Report
on Form 8-K filed January 28, 2009.*

.r Polaris Industries Inc. Senior Executive Annual Incentive Compensation Plan, as amended and restated,
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on May 12,
2009.*

.s Polaris Industries Inc. Long Term Incentive Plan, as amended and restated effective December 31, 2008,
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.c to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed January 28,
2009.*

.t Polaris Industries Inc. Long Term Incentive Plan, as amended and restated, incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.4 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on May 12, 2009.*

.u Polaris Industries Inc. 2007 Omnibus Incentive Plan, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.dd to the
Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2007.*

.v Form of Performance Restricted Share Award Agreement for performance restricted shares awarded to
named executive officers in 2008 under the Polaris Industries Inc 2007 Omnibus Incentive Plan,
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.A to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, filed on
October 30. 2009

.w Form of Stock Option Agreement and Notice of Exercise Form for options (cliff vesting) granted to
executive officers under the Polaris Industries Inc. 2007 Omnibus Incentive Plan, incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.ff to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed February 4, 2008.*

.x Form of Stock Option Agreement and Notice of Exercise Form for options (installment vesting) granted to
executive officers under the Polaris Industries Inc. 2007 Omnibus Incentive Plan.*

.y Form of Deferred Stock Award Agreement for shares of deferred stock granted to non-employee directors
in 2007 under the Polaris Industries Inc. 2007 Omnibus Incentive Plan, incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.t to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2007.*

.z Letter dated April 4, 2005 by and between the Company and Bennett J. Morgan, incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 10.y to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed April 18, 2005.*

.aa Letter agreement dated November 20, 2008 by and between the Company and Jeffrey A. Bjorkman,
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.a to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed
November 25, 2008.*

.bb Employment Letter Agreement dated July 28, 2008 by and between the Company and Scott W. Wine,
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.a to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed August 4,
2008.*

.cc Form of Severance Agreement entered into with executive officers of the Company, incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.dd to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed January 17, 2008.*

.dd Form of Severance Agreement entered into with Scott W. Wine, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.b
to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed August 4, 2008.*
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Exhibit
Number Description

.ee Form of Severance Agreement entered into with Bennett J. Morgan, incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.ee to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed January 17, 2008.*

.ff Polaris Industries Inc. Early Retirement Perquisite Policy for the Chief Executive Officer, incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.y to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31,
2007.*

.gg Polaris Industries Inc. Retirement Perquisite Policy for the Chief Executive Officer, incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 10.z to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2007.*

.hh Polaris Industries Inc. Early Retirement Perquisite Policy for executive officers, incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 10.aa to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2007.*

.ii Polaris Industries Inc. Retirement Perquisite Policy for executive officers, incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.bb to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2007.*

.jj Joint Venture Agreement between the Company and GE Commercial Distribution Finance Corporation,
formerly known as Transamerica Commercial Finance Corporation (“GE Commercial Distribution
Finance”) dated February 7, 1996 incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10(i) to the Company’s
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1995.

.kk First Amendment to Joint Venture Agreement between the Company and GE Commercial Distribution
Finance dated June 30, 1999, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10(x) to the Company’s Annual Report
on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1999.

.ll Second Amendment to Joint Venture Agreement between the Company and GE Commercial Distribution
Finance dated February 24, 2000, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10(y) to the Company’s Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1999.

.mm Third Amendment to Joint Venture Agreement between the Company and GE Commercial Distribution
Finance dated February 28, 2003, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10(t) to the Company’s Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2004.

.nn Fourth Amendment to Joint Venture Agreement between the Company and GE Commercial Distribution
Finance dated March 27, 2006, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.dd to the Company’s Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2006.

.oo Credit Agreement dated December 4, 2006, among the Company, certain subsidiaries of the Company, the
lenders identified therein, Bank of America, N.A., as administrative agent and issuing lender, U.S. Bank
N.A. and Royal Bank of Canada, as syndication agents, and The Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi, Ltd., Chicago
Branch, as documentation agent, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.ee to the Company’s Current
Report on Form 8-K filed December 8, 2006.

.pp Revolving Program Agreement between Polaris Sales Inc. and HSBC Bank Nevada, National
Association, formerly known as Household Bank (SB), N.A., dated August 10, 2005, incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.u to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed August 12, 2005.

.qq Polaris Industries Inc. 2003 Non-Employee Director Stock Option Plan, as amended and restated on
January 20, 2010.*

.rr Polaris Industries Inc. 2003 Non-Employee Director Stock Option Plan Amended and Restated Stock
Option Agreement (Amended as of on January 20, 2010).*

13 Portions of the Annual Report to Security Holders for the Year Ended December 31, 2008 included
pursuant to Note 2 to General Instruction G.

21 Subsidiaries of Registrant.
23 Consent of Ernst & Young LLP.
24 Power of Attorney.
31.a Certification of Chief Executive Officer required by Exchange Act Rule 13a-14(a).
31.b Certification of Chief Financial Officer required by Exchange Act Rule 13a-14(a).
32.a Certification furnished pursuant to 18 U.S.C. 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-

Oxley Act of 2002.
32.b Certification furnished pursuant to 18 U.S.C. 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-

Oxley Act of 2002.

* Management contract or compensatory plan.
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EXHIBIT 31(a)

I, Scott W. Wine, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Polaris Industries Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state
a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements
were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report,
fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as
of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure
controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over
financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a. Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures
to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its
consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in
which this report is being prepared;

b. Designed such internal control over financial reporting or caused such internal control over financial
reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles;

c. Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this
report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the
period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d. Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that
occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an
annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal
control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of
internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board
of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a. All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over
financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process,
summarize and report financial information; and

b. Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a
significant role in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

/s/ SCOTT W. WINE

Scott W. Wine
Chief Executive Officer

Date: March 1, 2010
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EXHIBIT 31(b)

I, Michael W. Malone, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Polaris Industries Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state
a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements
were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report,
fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as
of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure
controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over
financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a. Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures
to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its
consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in
which this report is being prepared;

b. Designed such internal control over financial reporting or caused such internal control over financial
reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles;

c. Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this
report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the
period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d. Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that
occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an
annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal
control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of
internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board
of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a. All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over
financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process,
summarize and report financial information; and

b. Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a
significant role in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

/s/ MICHAEL W. MALONE

Michael W. Malone
Vice President — Finance and

Chief Financial Officer

Date: March 1, 2010
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Exhibit 32.a

POLARIS INDUSTRIES INC.

STATEMENT PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. §1350

I, Scott W. Wine, Chief Executive Officer of Polaris Industries Inc., a Minnesota corporation (the “Company”),
hereby certify as follows:

1. This statement is provided pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350 in connection with the Company’s Annual Report
on Form 10-K for the period ended December 31, 2009 (the “Periodic Report”);

2. The Periodic Report fully complies with the requirements of Sections 13(a) and 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended; and

3. The information contained in the Periodic Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial
condition and results of operations of the Company as of the dates and for the periods indicated therein.

Date: March 1, 2010

/s/ Scott W. Wine

Scott W. Wine
Chief Executive Officer

A signed original of this written statement required by Section 906, or other document authenticating,
acknowledging, or otherwise adopting the signature that appears in typed form within the electronic version of this
written statement required by Section 906, has been provided to Polaris Industries Inc. and will be retained by
Polaris Industries Inc. and furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff upon request.
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Exhibit 32.b

POLARIS INDUSTRIES INC.

STATEMENT PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. §1350

I, Michael W. Malone, Vice President — Finance and Chief Financial Officer of Polaris Industries Inc., a Minnesota
corporation (the “Company”), hereby certify as follows:

1. This statement is provided pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350 in connection with the Company’s Annual Report
on Form 10-K for the period ended December 31, 2009 (the “Periodic Report”);

2. The Periodic Report fully complies with the requirements of Sections 13(a) and 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended; and

3. The information contained in the Periodic Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial
condition and results of operations of the Company as of the dates and for the periods indicated therein.

Date: March 1, 2010

/s/ Michael W. Malone

Michael W. Malone
Vice President — Finance and
Chief Financial Officer

A signed original of this written statement required by Section 906, or other document authenticating,
acknowledging, or otherwise adopting the signature that appears in typed form within the electronic version of this
written statement required by Section 906, has been provided to Polaris Industries Inc. and will be retained by
Polaris Industries Inc. and furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff upon request.
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Net Income per Share from  
Continuing Operations
(dollars)

	� NOTE: All periods presented reflect the classification of the marine products division’s financial results as discontinued operations.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
(dollars and shares in thousands, except per-share data) 2009 2008 % Change

For the Year
Sales $ 1,565,887 $ 1,948,254 –20%

Operating income 164,970 182,799 –10%

Net income from continuing operations 101,017 117,395 –14%
Percent of sales 6.5% 6.0%

Per Share
Net income from continuing operations (diluted) $ 3.05 $ 3.50 –13%

Dividends paid 1.56 1.52 3%
Average shares outstanding (diluted) 33,074 33,564 –1%

Financial Position
Total assets $ 763,653 $ 751,148 2%
Stockholders’ equity 204,541 137,027 49%

Other Information
Property and equipment (net) $ 194,416 $ 215,637 –10%

Capital expenditures 43,932 76,575 –43%

Depreciation and amortization 64,594 66,112 –2%

Borrowings under credit agreement 200,000 200,000 0%

Total credit facility 450,000 450,000 0%

Return on average shareholder equity 59% 76%    

Average dividend yield 4.3% 4.0%

Number of employees — average 3,000 3,300 –9%
Stock price at year end 43.63 28.65 52%
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